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STATEMENT FROM THE CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Dear shareholders of KVB Kunlun:

Another year has gone by in a blink of an eye.

In summary, the Group achieved a total annual revenue of
approximately HK$471.1 million and recorded an annual profit
of approximately HK$34.2 million. These statistics might not be
as outstanding as they would be under normal circumstances.
However, there were ongoing fluctuations in the global financial
market and economic outlook in 2018 which were further worsened
in the fourth quarter, where uncertainties in terms of the direction
of monetary policies and trade disputes have weakened the
investment sentiment and trading traffic at the end of the year.
Under such circumstances, the Group’s results could be deemed
as satisfactory as it was able to maintain substantial growth in
earnings and stable financial conditions. The Group still maintained
strong control over risks and operations, therefore, our customers,
counterparties and the regulatory authorities have placed a lot of
trust in our current system, network and trading capability.

In early 2018, the Group issued convertible bonds with an
aggregate principal amount of HK$200,000,000, which have been
fully subscribed. This is the first capital operation completed by the
Group since its transfer of listing from the GEM to the Main Board
of the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited, which demonstrated
the confidence of the subscribers and the market in the financial
independence and fulfilment of commitments of listed companies.

2018 was also a year of transitioning from the old to the new.
As the original chairman of the Board retired at the end of his
term, we welcomed the arrival of four new executive and non-
executive directors, bringing in new experience and vitality to the
management of the Group.

2019 will be a challenging year ahead. We believe the fundamentals
of global economy will become harsher while regional protectionism
persists. The trade conflicts and the mid-to-long term adjustments
in macro and monetary policies will continue to leave deep impacts,
and may even cause short-term panics in the market due to
changes or fluctuations, including detrended fluctuations of the
exchange rate. In consideration of the interests of the industries
and strategic positions behind the trade war, no one will make easy
concessions for compromise in the trade conflicts. The aggravating
geopolitical risks faced by certain countries and regions are also of

major concerns.
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STATEMENT FROM THE CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

A7 B AR R

As a company engaging in forex brokerage business, we do not
believe this could bring positive effect on market activities; on the
contrary, the uncertainties and risks will lead to a drop in trade
sentiments of investors.

Yet, as negative market sentiment brews on, we see that
organizations and enterprises are attempting proactive
adjustments, in order to mitigate risks and reduce potential losses
through learning and using foreign exchange-related financial
instruments. The implementation of the Guangdong-Hong Kong-
Macao Greater Bay Area strategic development plan brought not
only ideas, but also massive demands from enterprises in financial
trading, and market systems which are gradually becoming
internationalized.

The Group finds opportunities hidden amidst these challenges.
Traditional barriers in financial information, data and computation
models are slowly giving way to technological advances which are
open for sharing, thus bringing in new operation and management
models to the real economy. In particular, the application of
foreign exchange has gone beyond trading and payment, and is
becoming an electronic technology which can help the enterprises
in optimizing every micro-financial operation. In the context of this
general environment, it is worthwhile to explore how the Group
can leverage the system, information and corporation treasury
models that have long been accumulated by KVB to enhance its
capabilities in foreign financial technology and how the Group can
gradually expand its existing product offering with the advantages
of strategic shareholders in the industry.

The Group will remain with its composure while preparing to
respond to all kinds of changes, and seeking for prudent progress.
In 2019, the Group will continue to focus on our main tasks in
improving preparations for risk management, quick responses
and stringent risks controls. With years of trading experiences and
insights into the future, the Group will actively respond to market
fluctuations and provide our investment customers with superior
and dependable trading services. Meanwhile, we will continue
to capitalize on our advantage in differential services and march
forward along the path of servicing the real economy with our
technological capabilities. The Group will definitely adhere to the
strategy of attaining growth and success through technological
development. Only by keeping our initial aspirations of mutual
benefits and prosperity through intelligence and open mind that we
can grow together with our customers.
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STATEMENT FROM THE CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

KVB Kunlun will be celebrating its 20th anniversary soon. We firmly
believe the growth potentials of the industry that we operate in and
the opportunities given by the time, and we fully understand our
social responsibilities and missions. All KVB staff will strive to create
greater value for our shareholders, investors and customers who
have been growing and developing alongside KVB Kunlun.

LIU Stefan
Executive Director and Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong, 18 March 2019
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

L e M g i

The Board is pleased to present the audited consolidated results of
the Group for the year ended 31 December 2018, together with the
audited comparative figures for the corresponding year in 2017.

BUSINESS REVIEW AND FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE
Business review

During the year under review, we have experienced a market
condition with increased overall market volatility and many swings,
driven by changing global economic conditions and unexpected
geopolitics events. Significant swings in market volatility can result
in increased customer trading losses and higher turnover; therefore,
it is difficult to predict volatility and its effects on the financial
markets. Overall, the revenue had decreased compared with 2017
figures.

The year started with positive economic outlook for US and other
major countries, which had driven global asset values to new highs
in early February. The turning point was Trump administration’s
decision to renegotiate trade terms between US and other major
economic bodies (Canada, EU and China, etc.), which led to
fear of increased tariffs. As trade-conflicts built up, and Federal
Open Market Committee continued to adjust cash rate up to the
“neutral level” in response to a fast recovering US economy, the
global investors moved quickly towards US assets, which led to
depreciation of many major currencies, commodities and indexes
against USD. Geopolitics events, such as US sanction on Iran, US-
Turkey diplomatic conflict, Saudi Arabic journalist assassination,
and Brexit deal negotiation had also imposed unexpected
fluctuation on the market.

The top three most traded FX pairs in the year under reviewed were
USD/JPY, EUR/USD and GBP/USD. For contracts for difference
(*CFD”) and commodity products, gold was the most popular
product traded by our customers, followed by the crude oil.

In the currency market, the price movement of USD/JPY in 2018
was in a slightly narrower range compared with that of 2017. The
highest and the lowest price levels of USD/JPY were observed to
be 114.55 and 104.56 respectively, a nearly 999-pips trading range
during 2018; this is compared with a price movement of 1,128-pips
in 2017, with highest level as 118.6 and the lowest as 107.32.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EUR/USD was mainly traded within in a price range of 1,339-pips,
which was slightly narrower than that of 2017. The highest level of
EUR/USD was traded at 1.2555, while the lowest level was seen at
1.1216. The price range of EUR/USD in 2017 was 1,751-pips, with
highest price at 1.2092 and lowest price at 1.0341.

The GBP/USD price moved in a wider range in 2018 than that in
2017. The highest and lowest prices were observed to be 1.4377
and 1.2478 respectively, a nearly 1,899-pips range. This can be
compared with the 1,671-pips range observed in 2017, between
highest level of 1.3657 and lowest level of 1.1986.

For CFD and commodities, the gold mainly traded within a price
range of $205.76 USD/ounce. The highest price of gold was traded
at $1,366.15 USD/ounce and the lowest at $1,160.39 USD/ounce
under the period of review. The 2017 price range, in comparison,
was $211.44 USD/ounce; with highest price at $1,357.61 USD/
ounce, and lowest at $1,146.17 USD/ounce.

The crude oil price range had become much wider in 2018,
compared with that of 2017. In 2017, the crude oil was traded in a
range of $18.46 USD/barrel, with highest price at $60.51 USD/barrel
and lowest at $42.05 USD/barrel. The price movement of crude
oil in 2018, however, was almost doubled to $34.54 USD/barrel,
with highest price traded at $76.9 USD/barrel and lowest traded at
$42.36 USD/barrel.

The retail margin FX trading market is highly competitive. This
includes international multi-product trading firms, other online
trading firms, and financial institutions. We expect the market to
remain very competitive in the foreseeable future. We are constantly
looking for ways to improve our customer service level and meet the
needs of our clients, by providing more trading opportunities in the
global financial markets.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
PG 2w M g B

Total income

The total income of the Group decreased by approximately 8.5% to
approximately HK$471.1 million for the year ended 31 December
2018 from approximately HK$514.9 million for the year ended 31
December 2017.

A. Leveraged foreign exchange and other trading income

The leveraged foreign exchange and other trading income of
the Group decreased by approximately 6.1% to approximately
HK$372.9 million for the year ended 31 December 2018
from approximately HK$397.0 million for the year ended
31 December 2017. This was mainly due to the decreased
trading volume during the year ended 31 December 2018 as
compared to the year ended 31 December 2017.

B. Cash dealing income

The cash dealing income of the Group increased from
approximately HK$1.1 million for the year ended 31 December
2017 to approximately HK$3.3 million for the year ended 31
December 2018. The increase was mainly attributable to
higher market volatility and successful dealing strategy.

C. Fee and commission income

The fees and commission income of the Group decreased
from approximately HK$108.8 million for the year ended 31
December 2017 to approximately HK$56.4 million for the year
ended 31 December 2018. The decrease was mainly due
to the decrease in commission earning as a result of lower
trading volume.

D. Other income

The Group recorded other income of approximately HK$38.4
million for the year ended 31 December 2018 as compared
to other income of approximately HK$8.0 million for the year
ended 31 December 2017.

As at 31 December 2018, there was a fair value gain of
approximately HK$26.0 million on the embedded derivative
portion of convertible bonds issued on 12 February 2018.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group
recorded an exchange gain of approximately HK$9.4 million,
the recorded exchange gain for year ended 31 December
2017 was approximately HK$5.4 million. This was mainly due
to the year-end translation of monetary assets denominated in
foreign currency into local reporting currency by KVB Kunlun
New Zealand Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company.

Referral expenses and other charges

The referral expenses and other charges of the Group decreased
by approximately 41.3% to approximately HK$175.8 million for
the year ended 31 December 2018 from approximately HK$299.2
million for the year ended 31 December 2017. The decrease was
mainly due to the decrease in the trading volume of the clients
referred by services providers.

Staff costs

The staff costs of the Group increased by approximately 78.6% to
approximately HK$101.7 million for the year ended 31 December
2018 from approximately HK$56.9 million for the year ended 31
December 2017. The increase was mainly due to special bonus
paid and share options granted during the year.

Depreciation and amortisation

Depreciation and amortisation increased by approximately 17.3%
to approximately HK$14.7 million for the year ended 31 December
2018 from approximately HK$12.5 million for the year ended 31
December 2017. The increase was mainly due to the upgrade of
computer software for the year.

Lease payments under land and buildings

Lease payments under land and buildings increased by
approximately 6.2% to approximately HK$14.2 million for the year
ended 31 December 2018 from approximately HK$13.4 million for
the year ended 31 December 2017. The increase was mainly due to
the increased rental expenses of lease review in some offices.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
PG 2w M g B

Administrative and other operating expenses

The administrative and other operating expenses of the Group
decreased to approximately HK$84.6 million for the year ended 31
December 2018 from approximately HK$96.4 million for the year
ended 31 December 2017. The decrease was mainly due to the
significant decrease in handling fee expenses which are partially
offset by the increase in marketing expenses and repair and
maintenance expenses compared with 2017.

Net profit and net profit margin

For the reasons set forth above, the Group achieved a net profit of
approximately HK$34.2 million for the year ended 31 December
2018 compared with the net profit of approximately HK$27.4 million
for the year ended 31 December 2017. The net profit margin for
the year ended 31 December 2018 was approximately 7.3% (2017:
5.3%).

Excluding the fair value gain of approximately HK$26.0 million on
the embedded derivative portion of convertible bonds, in summary,
the decrease in profitability of the Group was primarily contributed by:

e decrease in transaction volume resulting in decreased trading
revenue, and

e increased expenses in a few main items due as disclosed
above.

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

During the year under review, the operations of the Group were
financed principally by equity capital, cash generated by the
Group’s business operations, the cash and bank deposits and
proceeds from convertible bonds issued by the Company.

As at 31 December 2018, cash and bank balances held by the
Group amounted to HK$725.4 million (2017: HK$517.8 million).
There were no bank borrowings of the Group (2017: nil) and the
carrying amount of convertible bonds of the Company amounted to
HK$191.1 million as at 31 December 2018 (2017: nil).

GEARING RATIO

The gearing ratio calculated on the basis of net debts (finance lease
obligations and convertible bonds) over the total shareholders’
equity as at 31 December 2018 was approximately 33.5% (2017:
0.05%).

TR AEMEERX

AEBMITR M EMELERYHEE S —+
F+=A=+—H 1EFE#996,400,0007 JL
VEBE_E-N\F+_A=+—HULEFEY
84,600,000 7T * £S5 EEHNFEEFH
TORMER A - IS R T — I N
RS RS AR S T o

7 5 ) AR &

ER bl AEBREBE=Z—N\F+=
HA=+4—B8 It 5= 'R )F % 434,200,000/
L MEBE T —tF A =+—HILFE
$R15 5% F 427,400,000 7T - HE—ZF—N
F+ZAZT+—HIEFEMMAFERLA7.3%
ZET—+4F 53%) °

Bk

%

S T R0 15 35 B A SUAT A TR BB R 18 10
252 k4 4926,000,00078 7T {4 - BEFETI S -
REBAFIE S FEDEBHR -

s MREBPEHZIZ WAL K&

s LEXWEZAOBMEBIHEB MG -

RBEERMBER

REEFE  AEEONEEETBHRA - AE
EXB2EMSRE  REMBITERAER
NAETZABRRESZFAFRIARRES -

R-ZE—NE+_A=+—H AEBFHAEAN
R4 NMERTTHE#2B725,400,00008 7 (—E—+
£ : 517,800,000 7C) c R_FE—N\F+=
A=Z+—8 A&EBIETARTEE (=T
—tF  E) RARRTRRES ZREES
191,100,000/ 7T (ZE —+4F : &) -

EEHE=R

BELETIBREER FE (MERERER
ARES) RARRERBRETE R E
—N\F+_A=+—BHA3IBLK(ZZF—+
£ :0.05%) °



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

FOREIGN CURRENCY EXPOSURE

During the year under review, the Group recorded an exchange
gain of approximately HK$9.4 million (2017: HK$5.4 million). This
was mainly due to the year-end translation of monetary assets
denominated in foreign currency into local reporting currency by a
subsidiary of the Group in New Zealand. The foreign currency risk is
managed proactively by regular review of the currency positions in
the basket of currency mix. In order to minimize the exposure of the
Group to risk, the Group has hedge strategy based on prevailing
market conditions and working capital requirements of subsidiaries.

CAPITAL STRUCTURE

During the year under review, the capital structure of the Group
consists of equity attributable to owners of the Company,
comprising issued share capital, reserves, and convertible bonds
issued by the Company.

ISSUE OF CONVERTIBLE BONDS

On 12 February 2018 (the “Issue Date”), the Company issued
7.5% convertible bonds (the “Bonds”) with an aggregate principal
amount of HK$200 million to BC Global Fund SPC - BC Fintech
Fund SP and PA Investment Funds SPC for the account of PA High
Technology Fund SP (collectively the “Bondholders”).

The Bonds will expire at the second anniversary of the Issue Date.
The Company may extend the maturity date for a further term of one
year from the maturity date by giving notice in writing to all of the
Bondholders on or before the maturity date and with the prior written
consent from Bondholders of not less than 50% of the aggregate
principal amount of Bonds outstanding. In the event of extension of
the maturity date, the interest rate will be adjusted from 7.5% per
annum to 12% per annum.

The Bonds are convertible into the Company’s ordinary shares of
HK$0.01 each (the “Ordinary Shares”) at the initial conversion price
of HK$0.613 per share (subject to adjustment). The closing price of
the Ordinary Share was HK$0.500 on the Issue Date. Based on the
assumption of full conversion of the Bonds at such initial conversion
price, a total of 326,264,273 Ordinary Shares will be allotted and
issued by the Company. As at 31 December 2018, no Bonds were
converted into any Ordinary Shares by the Bondholders, and the
aggregate principal amount of the Bonds remained as HK$200
million.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
PG 2w M g B

The Directors consider that the issue of the Bonds would provide
strong capital support for the development of the Group’s business
and strengthen the Group’s capital base effectively after full
conversion of the Bonds.

The net proceeds from the issue of the Bonds of approximately
HK$199.28 million. The Company currently intends to use the net
proceeds for investment in financial assets and working capital
purposes. The net proceeds from the issue of the bonds have been
utilized for trades with clients in foreign currencies, commodities
and products through the margin trading business.

Details of the issue of the Bonds were set out in the announcements
of the Company dated 25 January 2018 and dated 12 February
2018 respectively.

NEW PRODUCTS AND SERVICES

During the year under review, there was no new products or
services launched.

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS, MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS
AND DISPOSALS OF SUBSIDIARIES DURING THE YEAR
UNDER REVIEW

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group did not have
any material acquisitions and disposals.

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICIES

As at 31 December 2018, the Group engaged a total of 53
employees (2017: a total of 76). Total staff costs including
Directors’ remuneration for the period under review amounting
to approximately HK$101.7 million (2017: HK$56.9 million). The
Group’s remuneration policies are in line with the prevailing market
practices and are determined on the basis of performance and
experience of individual employees. The Group provides retirement
benefits in accordance with the relevant laws and regulations in
the place where the staff is employed. The Company has adopted
a share option scheme pursuant to which the Directors and
employees of the Group are entitled to participate.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

CHARGES ON THE GROUP’S ASSETS AND
CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 December 2018, certain bank balances of the Group
amounting to approximately HK$90.4 million (2017: HK$86.0
million) were used to secure the banking facilities and office lease
bonds. As at 31 December 2018, the Group did not have any
material contingent liabilities.

FUTURE PLANS FOR MATERIAL INVESTMENTS OR
CAPITAL ASSETS

We plan to:

1. expand operations in the worldwide overseas Chinese
communities;

2. extend the range of our financial services and products;
3. further upgrade our online trading platform; and

4. develop the high net worth and sophisticated institutional
clients segment.
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. LIU Stefan, aged 52, is the Chief Executive Officer of the
Company. He is also a director of certain subsidiaries of the
Company. Mr. Liu is one of the responsible officers of KVB Kunlun
International (HK) Limited (*KVB HK”) and is also a director of KVB
Kunlun Holdings Limited (“KVB Holdings”) and certain subsidiaries
of KVB Holdings, which do not belong to the Group.

Mr. Liu was appointed as the managing director of the Group in
March 2006 and the country manager of New Zealand and Australia
in August 2011. He was appointed as a Director of the Company on
9 November 2010 and is responsible for the overall management
and strategic development of the Group.

Before joining the Group, Mr. Liu served as the managing director of
Aiming International (New Zealand) Co. Limited from August 1997
to August 2001 and was responsible for fostering the development
plan, structuring investment direction and strategy, liaising and
maintaining relationships with business partners and searching
for and maintaining public relationship with potential strategic
investors.

With his previous and current positions in the Group and other
companies, Mr. Liu has obtained over 16 years of experience in the
forex market which is relevant to the management, operation and
development of the Group. Mr. Liu obtained his bachelor’'s degree
in arts from the Tianjin Foreign Studies University (K245MNERE A )
in July 1989 and completed the OPM program at Harvard Business
School in November 2018.

Mr. HUANG Songyuan, aged 42, is the director of global margin
business of the Group responsible for the management of
investment business of the Group, including foreign exchange,
commodities and equities business. He is currently one of the
responsible officers of KVB HK and KVB Kunlun Pty Limited (“KVB
AU”), and a director and managing principal of KVB Kunlun New
Zealand Limited (“KVB NZ”) and a director of KVB Kunlun Securities
(NZ) Limited. KVB AU and KVB NZ, all of which are subsidiaries
of the Company. Mr. Huang joined the Group in August 2002
as an executive accountant of KVB NZ and was responsible for
general accounting duties, book-keeping and financial reports.
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BIOGRAPHIES OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Huang was the manager of treasury strategy of KVB NZ and
was responsible for the implementation of its dealing system and
the day-to-day running of its global forex dealing operations and
all its associated financial management. Currently, he is also a
independent non-executive director of Marlborough Wine Estates
Group Limited, which is listed on the New Zealand Stock Exchange.

Mr. Huang obtained his bachelor’'s degree in accounting from
the Sun Yat-Sen University (FFLUKEE) in June 1999, his master’s
degree in international business from the Auckland Institute of
Studies at St. Helens, New Zealand in December 2000 and his
graduate diploma in commerce from the University of Auckland in
May 2002. Mr. Huang became a chartered financial analyst of the
CFA Institute in September 2006. Mr. Huang has been a member of
the Institute of Directors in New Zealand since 2015. Mr. Huang was
appointed as a Director on 21 May 2018.

Mr. WONG Yiu Kit, Ernest, aged 51, is the Chief Financial
Officer and the Company Secretary of the Company. He is also a
director of certain subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. Wong is also
the President and Group Chief Financial Officer of KVB Kunlun
Holdings Limited, a substantial Shareholder of the Company within
the meaning of Part XV of SFO. Mr. Wong has extensive experience
in venture capital, corporate finance, business development,
legal, IT, financial and general management Currently, he is
an independent non-executive director of Renheng Enterprise
Holdings Limited (HKEx Stock Code: 3628), HongDa Financial
Holding Limited (HKEx Stock Code: 1822), Progressive Path Group
Holdings Limited (HKEx Stock Code: 1581), China Regenerative
Medicine International Limited (HKEx Stock Code: 8158) and
Common Splendor International Health Industry Group Limited
(HKEx Stock Code: 286). Mr. Wong has also served as a director
of Adamas Finance Asia (London Stock Code: ADAM, listed on
London AIM market (previously known as China Private Equity
Investment Holdings Limited (“CPE”)). He was an independent non-
executive director of Legend Strategy International Holdings Group
Company Limited (HKEx Stock Code: 1355) from November 2016
to September 2018.
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Previously he was an executive director and the chief financial
officer of CPE. He was in charge of the private equity investment,
portfolio management, corporate finance activities including fund
raising and initial public offering, financial management, legal
services, IT and company secretarial work. Before that, Mr. Wong
was the chief financial officer for Hong Kong Applied Science
and Technology Research Institute Company Limited (“ASTRI”)
and held management responsibilities for its overall financial,
legal, IT, business development and corporate finance functions.
Before joining ASTRI, Mr. Wong was the vice president for Vertex
Management Pte Ltd. (now known as Vertex Venture Holdings
Ltd.),focusing on venture investment in communications, IT and
electronics sectors. Previously, he also held management positions
at Guangdong Investment Ltd., Transpac Capital Limited and
Accenture.

Mr. Wong earned his Bachelor of Business Administration degree
from the University of Hong Kong, and received his Master of
Science in investment management from the Hong Kong University
of Science and Technology and Master of Science in Electronic
Engineering from the Chinese University of Hong Kong. Mr.
Wong is a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants and the Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants, United Kingdom and the Institute of Chartered
Accountants in England and Wales. He is also a charter-holder
of Chartered Financial Analyst, United States of America and
a member of the Hong Kong Security Institute. Mr. Wong was
appointed as a Director on 21 May 2018.
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NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Stephen Gregory McCOY, aged 66, joined the Group in
October 2006 as the senior manager of operations and was
later appointed the country manager of Australia in 2008. Mr.
McCoy is also a director of KVB Kunlun Pty Ltd and LXL Capital
[l Limited. Mr. McCoy is also a director of other subsidiaries of
KVB Holdings which do not belong to the Group. Before joining
the Group, Mr. McCoy worked at Arab Bank Australia Limited as
an internal auditor from May 2002 to December 2003 and later
as the head of operations from January 2004 to October 2006
and was responsible for managing the operations department of
the bank including treasury settlements, retail operations, loan
administration, office administration, trade finance and product
compliance in line with regulatory authorities and policies and
procedures of the bank and before that, Mr. McCoy worked at
Westpac Banking Corporation for over 30 years from February 1969
to April 2001 and last held the position of manager of operational
risk. With the previous and current positions held by Mr. McCoy
in the Group and other companies, Mr. McCoy has obtained over
46 years of combined experience in the financial services industry
which is relevant to the operation and development of the Group.
Mr. McCoy was appointed as a Director on 15 April 2011.

Mr. LI Jiong, aged 48, concurrently serves as the director of
CITIC Securities Overseas Investment Company Limited which is
a substantial Shareholder of the Company within the meaning of
Part XV of the SFO and CITIC Securities International USA, LLC.,
as well as a chief treasury officer and person-in-charge of the
treasury department of CITIC Securities Company Limited (“CITIC
Securities”, a shareholder of CITIC Securities Overseas Investment
Company Limited). After Mr. Li joined CITIC Securities in 1996, he
had served as the manager of the international cooperation division
of the information centre of China International Trust Investment
Corporation (renamed to CITIC Group Corporation), manager of
development department of CITIC International Cooperation Co.,
Ltd., manager of the bond department, deputy general manager
of the treasury department and person-in-charge of the treasury
department of CITIC Securities. Mr. Li obtained a bachelor's degree
in International Finance from the University of International Business
and Economics in 1992 and a master’s degree in MBA from
Tsinghua University in 2000. Mr. Li was appointed as a Director on
21 May 2018.
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Mr. XU Jianqgiang, aged 38, currently serves as a deputy head of
the equity derivatives business line of CITIC Securities and also
a head of Equity Derivatives at CITIC CCSA. After Mr. Xu joined
CITIC Securities in August 2005, he had served as an analyst of the
research department, product development manager of the equity
derivatives business line, head of trading of the equity derivatives
business line and head of equity derivatives of CITIC Securities
International Company Limited. Mr. Xu obtained a bachelor’s
degree in Mathematics and Applied Mathematics from Peking
University in 2003 and a master’'s degree in Mathematics from the
University of British Columbia in 2005. Mr. Xu was appointed as a
Director on 21 May 2018.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Ms. ZHAO Guixin, aged 55, joined the Group in April 2011.
From June 2005 to July 2007, Ms. Zhao worked at Tianjin Jiandu
Investment & Development Co. Ltd. (KZEHEEEREAR A
A]) which was engaged in property and investment and she
was responsible for providing consultation services in project
financing, cooperation in public affairs and international investment
matters. From May 2003 to August 2007, Ms. Zhao also provided
consultation services in finance and investment related matters to
Tianjin Wanhe Investment & Development Co. Ltd. (K& 8 Fl#% & 3%
EEBR /A F]) which was engaged in property and investment. From
July 2001 to October 2003, Ms. Zhao was appointed as the general
manager of the audit department of China CITIC Bank, Tianjin
branch and was responsible for managing the overall performance
of the audit department, implementing policies and procedures and
other management work. Ms. Zhao has over 26 years of experience
in accounting and auditing matters including but not limited to
financial analysis, financial management, asset management,
assessment and auditing of financial positions and involvement
in financial and auditing decision making process. Ms. Zhao
completed the course in economics and management organised
by the Party School of Central Committee of the Communist Party
of China (XA REH) in December 1996. Ms. Zhao further
completed the course in business administration organised by
Nankai University (FFIAZ) in September 1999 and obtained her
master’'s degree in arts in international relations in economy and
trade from The Flinders University of South Australia in October
2002. Ms. Zhao was assessed and awarded the qualification of
accountant by the Tianjin branch of the Bank of China in 1992.
Ms. Zhao was appointed as a Director on 15 April 2011.
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Mr. Cornelis Jacobus KEYSER, aged 61, first joined the Group
in December 2003 as a senior consultant. In June 2005, he was
appointed as the joint Group managing director (group operations
and treasury) and managing director (designate proposed banking
division) and held that position until he left the Group in April 2008.
From August 2014 Mr Keyser is a director of Orkney Investment
Company which engages in equity, property and other investment
activity and from April 2016 he is a director of Highgate Property
Group, an ASIC authorised financial institution (AFSL), focussed on
managed investment property schemes in Australia. From March
2003 to February 2014, Mr. Keyser has been a director of Keyser
Merchant & Capital Finance (New Zealand) Limited which engaged
in the provision of consultation services and he was responsible for
managing all aspects of such company and acted as a consultant.
From July 1999 to August 2002, Mr. Keyser held the position of
group treasurer to Gensec Ltd. and Gensec Bank. From September
1996 to March 1997, Mr. Keyser worked at the Swabou Building
Society Group of Companies as the group managing director
and was responsible for the operations of the group. From May
1990 to August 1992, Mr. Keyser was appointed the managing
director of Keyser Trading (Pty) Limited and from September
1992 to June 1999, he was appointed the managing director of
Keyser Merchant and Capital Finance (Pty) Limited. Mr. Keyser is a
chartered member of the Institute of Directors in New Zealand Inc.
and a member of the Australian Institute of Company Directors. Mr.
Keyser has over 26 years of experience in the financial industry. Mr.
Keyser obtained his bachelor’'s degree in industrial psychology, his
honours degree in economics (Cum laude) and his master’s degree
in economics (Cum laude) from the Rand Afrikaans University in
April 1981, April 1982 and April 1983, respectively. Mr. Keyser was
appointed as a Director on 15 April 2011.

Mr. LIN Wenhui, aged 40, joined the Group in July 2011. Mr. Lin
is currently the audit director of Fujian Yango Holdings Group
Limited (18 2% 5B AR A R]). Mr. Lin was appointed as a
supervisor of supervisory committee in June 2017 and currently as
a chairman of the supervisory committee of Fujian Longking Co.,
Ltd. (SH. 600388) with effect from November 2017. With effect from
1 July 2014, Mr. Lin has temporarily been transferred to the board
of supervisors of SAC in the State Council for the inspection of
enterprises directly under the central government. He was an audit
manager of Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu in Beijing from September
2011 to August 2016. From April 2009 to September 2011, Mr. Lin
was a manager of RSM China Certified Public Accountants (1
ISEEEHAIEMFT). Mr. Lin served as a project manager in the
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taxation and accounting services department of Reanda Certified
Public Accountants (FIZEGFTEMEBKAEREEAR) from
September 2004 to March 2006 and a manager assistant in the
audit department of the same firm from April 2006 to December
2008. From August 2002 to September 2004, Mr. Lin worked in
the accounting department of the head company of the Beijing
Shougang Oxygen Plant (Jt R & %% ER) which was engaged in
the production and sales of oxygen and other gases for industrial
enterprises. Mr. Lin obtained his bachelor’'s degree in accounting
from the Harbin University of Commerce (FAEEREZE AZ) in July
2002 and master’s degree in accounting from Renmin University of
China in January 2018. Mr. Lin obtained his certificate of accounting
professional from the Finance Bureau of Beijing (At R ETEB) in
June 2003 and passed the PRC’s national accounting examinations
and was awarded the certificate issued by the Committee of the
Registered Accountant Examination of the Ministry of Finance (B4
e stemE#ZE ) in April 2005. Mr. Lin has been a member
of the Chinese Institute of Certified Public Accountants recognised
by the Ministry of Finance of the PRC (FF = A IR X F1 3 B BX26) since
April 2008. Mr. Lin was appointed as a Director on 16 July 2011.

OTHER SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Ms. ZHANG Rongjun is the regional financial controller of New
Zealand and Australia of the Group. Ms. Zhang joined the Group
in December 2002 as the financial controller. Ms. Zhang has also
been a director of KVB NZ since May 2009. From December 1997
to July 2002, Ms. Zhang served as a senior accountant at HWI
Limited Chartered Accountants and was responsible for preparing
financial statements and tax returns and providing tax advice.
Ms. Zhang has over 21 years of experience in accounting matters
in New Zealand. Ms. Zhang obtained her bachelor’s degree in
accounting from the Unitec Institute of Technology in April 2000.
Ms. Zhang has been a member of the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of New Zealand since January 2002.
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Mr. SO Chi Hang Stephen is the director and head of investment
of KVB AU. Mr. So joined the Group in May 2003 as a senior sales
executive of margin forex of KVB AU. He has been the Responsible
Manager (RM) of the Australian Financial Services License (AFSL)
for the company since then. Mr. So is at present a director of KVB
AU. Before joining the Group, Mr. So worked at The Hong Kong
Chinese Bank, Limited and Lippo Securities Holdings Limited from
March 1994 to December 2002 and was responsible for providing
investment advice and dealing with private clients and retail clients.
He first joined The Hong Kong Chinese Bank, Limited as a senior
investment consultant and thereafter served as a senior manager of
the global investment division of Lippo Securities Holdings Limited.
Mr. So has over 25 years of experience in advising clients on
financial products ranging from securities, indices and stock futures
and options, foreign exchanges and other derivatives financial
products. Mr. So obtained his bachelor of arts degree (Economics)
from the University of Sydney, Australia in April 1992, and a diploma
in financial services issued by the Australian Financial Markets
Association in 20083.
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KVB Kunlun Financial Group Limited (the “Company”, together with
its subsidiaries, the “Group”) is committed to high standards of
corporate governance in the interest of its shareholders and other
stakeholders. It has continued and will continue to identify and
adopt the best corporate governance practices appropriate to the
Company.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE CODE

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Company has
complied with all code provisions as set out in the Corporate
Governance Code (“CG Code”) contained in Appendix 14 to the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities (the “Listing Rules”) of The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited, the (“Stock Exchange”),
except for the following deviations:

Pursuant to the code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code, the roles of
chairman and chief executive should be separated and should not
be performed by the same individual. The division of responsibilities
between the chairman and chief executive should be clearly
established and set out in writing.

Mr. Li Zhi Da retired as chairman of the board (the “Board”) of
directors (the “Directors”) of the Company and non-executive
Director after the conclusion of the annual general meeting of
the Company held on 21 May 2018 (the “2018 Annual General
Meeting”). After the retirement of Mr. Li, no individual was appointed
as chairman of the Board. The Board will keep on identifying
suitable candidate to assume duties as chairman of the Board as
soon as possible.

Pursuant to code provision A.2.7 of the CG Code, the chairman
should at least annually hold meetings with the independent non-
executive directors without the presence of other directors. The
then Chairman did not hold any meeting with the independent non-
executive Directors without the other Directors present in 2018 due
to the tight schedule of the Chairman.

Pursuant to the code provision E.1.2 of the CG Code, the chairman
of the board should attend the annual general meeting. Mr. Li Zhi
Da, the then Chairman and a non-executive Director, was unable to
attend the 2018 Annual General Meeting due to other commitment.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board is responsible for the formulation of strategies
and policies, including an oversight of the management. The
management of the Company is responsible for the day-to-day
operations of the Company under the leadership of the Chief
Executive Officer.

As at 31 December 2018, the Board comprised nine Directors,
namely (i) Mr. Liu Stefan (as Chief Executive Officer), Mr. Huang
Songyuan and Mr. Wong Yiu Kit, Ernest (as Chief Financial Officer)
as executive Directors; (ii) Mr. Stephen Gregory McCoy, Mr. Li
Jiong and Mr. Xu Jiangiang as non-executive Directors; and (iii) Ms.
Zhao Guixin, Mr. Cornelis Jacobus Keyser and Mr. Lin Wenhui as
independent non-executive Directors. The Company has fulfilled
the requirement of Rule 3.10(2) of the Listing Rules that at least one
of the independent non-executive Directors must have appropriate
professional qualifications or accounting or related financial
management expertise.

Each executive Director has entered into a service agreement with
the Company for a specific term, and his term of office is subject to
retirement by rotation and re-election in accordance with the articles
of association of the Company and the Listing Rules. For all non-
executive Directors and independent non-executive Directors, the
term of them has been fixed for 3 years and they are also subject to
retirement by rotation and re-election in accordance with the articles
of association of the Company and the Listing Rules.

There is no relationship (including financial, business, family or
material/relevant relationships) among members of the Board.

The biographical details of the Directors are set out in the section of
“Biographies of Directors and Senior Management” on pages 16 to
23 of this annual report.
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INDEPENDENCE OF INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

In determining the independence of the independent non-executive
Directors, the Board has followed the requirements as set out in
the Listing Rules. The Company has received from each of the
independent non-executive Directors an annual confirmation of
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. Based
on such confirmation, the Company is of the view that all the
independent non-executive Directors have met the independence
guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and considers
that they are independent.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Pursuant to the code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code, the roles
of chairman and chief executive officer should be separate and
should not be performed by the same individual. The Chairman of
the Board is responsible for the leadership and effective running
of the Board, and for ensuring that all key and appropriate issues
are discussed by the Board in a timely and constructive manner,
while the Chief Executive Officer, supported by other members
of the Board and the senior management, is responsible for the
day-to-day management of the Group’s business, including the
implementation of major strategies and initiatives adopted by
the Group. The roles of the Chairman of the Board and the Chief
Executive Officer were assumed by Mr. Li Zhi Da, the then non-
executive Director, and Mr. Liu Stefan, an executive Director,
respectively. However, after the retirement of Mr. Li Zhi Da, no
individual appointed as Chairman of the Board.

The Board will keep reviewing the current structure of the Board
from time to time. The Board is looking for a candidate with suitable
knowledge, skills and experience is identified, the Company will
make appointment to fill the vacancy of chairman/chairperson as
appropriate.

RE-ELECTION OF RETIRING DIRECTORS

Pursuant to the articles of association of the Company, at each
annual general meeting, one-third of the Directors for the time
being, or, if their number is not three or a multiple of three, then the
number nearest to but not less than one-third, shall retire from office
by rotation provided that every Director, including those appointed
for a specific term, shall be subject to retirement by rotation at least
once every three years. All the retiring Directors shall be eligible for
re-election. A circular which includes the biographical details of the
retiring Directors who stand for re-election together with the notice
of annual general meeting of the Company will be despatched to
the shareholders of the Company in due course.
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BOARD AND GENERAL MEETINGS ATTENDANCE

The Board meets regularly and at least four times a year at
approximately quarterly intervals. Between scheduled meetings,
senior management of the Company from time to time meets with
Directors to discuss the businesses of the Group. In addition,
Directors have full access to information on the Group and
independent professional advice whenever deemed necessary by
the Directors.

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Board held ten
board meetings and the Company held one general meeting, and
the attendance records of these meetings are set out below:
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Board Meetings AGM Held on

Attended/Eligible 21 May 2018

to Attend Attended

Ezged HER-2-NF
HERY,/ HER-t+-BEfZ

EERHERE BRREAEAE
Executive Directors HTEE
Mr. Liu Stefan (Chief Executive Officer) BITRFE S (7T 483) 10/10 11
Mr. Huang Songyuan HEREE 4/4 N/A
(appointed on 21 May 2018) (R-FE-NFERA-+—HEZHF) T
Mr. Wong Yiu Kit, Emest (Chief Financial Officer) EREE%4 (BEHKE) 4/4 N/A
(appointed on 21 May 2018) (RZE-NNERA=1T—HEZHF) i
Non-executive Directors FYTES
Mr. Li Zhi Da (Chairman) FEEE(ZE) 0/6 0/1
(retired on 21 May 2018) (R-BE-NNELZA-+—HEHL)
Mr. Stephen Gregory McCoy Stephen Gregory McCoy%t & 9/10 11
Mr. Li Jiong (appointed on 21 May 2018) EMAER=ZFE-NFRAZ1T—HEZHF) 3/4 N/A
T
Mr. Xu Jiangiang FEBEE 4/4 N/A
(appointed on 21 May 2018) (RZE-NNERA-1T—HEZHF) T
Independent Non-executive Directors BUFHTES
Ms. Zhao Guixin HEEERL 910 111
Mr. Cornelis Jacobus Keyser Cornelis Jacobus Keyser5t 4 10/10 11
Mr. Lin Wenhui MR 9/10 n
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DIRECTORS’ AND OFFICERS’ LIABILITY INSURANCE

The Directors and officers are indemnified under a directors’ and
officers’ liability insurance against any liability incurred by them in
the discharge of their duties while holding office as the Directors
and officers of the Company.

SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the required Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers as set out in Appendix
10 to the Listing Rules (the “Model Code”) during the year ended
31 December 2018 as the code of conduct regarding securities
transactions in securities of the Company by the Directors.
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Having made specific enquiry with the Directors, all the Directors
confirmed that they had complied with the required Model Code
during the year ended 31 December 2018.

DIRECTORS’ CONTINUOUS TRAINING AND PROFESSIONAL
DEVELOPMENT

Pursuant to the code provision A.6.5 of the CG Code, all Directors
should participate in continuous professional development to
develop and refresh their knowledge and skills so as to ensure
their contribution to the Board remains informed and relevant. The
Company should be responsible for arranging and funding suitable
training, placing an appropriate emphasis on the roles, functions
and duties of the Director.

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Company has
arranged an in-house seminar for and provided relevant training
materials to the Directors. A summary of the records of training
received by the Directors is as follows:
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Training on Corporate
Governance Regulatory
Development and/or

Other Suitable Topics
FHLXER EERRE
& SREAMEEEEZEZI
Executive Directors HMITES
Mr. Liu Stefan (Chief Executive Officer) LIREE S (TT I AEEL) 4
Mr. Huang Songyuan FHMEIR A AE v
Mr. Wong Yiu Kit, Ernest (Chief Financial Officer) Z¥REEEE (B EHFE) v
Non-executive Directors FHITES
Mr. Stephen Gregory McCoy Stephen Gregory McCoy 7t 4 v
Mr. Li Jiong FEILE v
Mr. Xu Jiangiang FFIESR LA v
Independent Non-executive Directors BIUAFHTES
Ms. Zhao Guixin HEEAL L v
Mr. Cornelis Jacobus Keyser Cornelis Jacobus Keysersft 4 v
Mr. Lin Wenhui MR ST A v
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Company established a remuneration committee (the
“Remuneration Committee”) on 18 December 2012. Written terms
of reference in compliance with the CG Code has been adopted.
The primary duties of the Remuneration Committee are to evaluate
the performance and determine the remuneration packages of the
Directors and the senior management of the Group, and evaluate
the performance and make recommendations on any other
employee benefit arrangement.

The Remuneration Committee consists of three independent non-
executive Directors, namely, Ms. Zhao Guixin, Mr. Cornelis Jacobus
Keyser and Mr. Lin Wenhui. Ms. Zhao Guixin is the chairman of the
Remuneration Committee.

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Remuneration
Committee held three meetings. Details of the attendance of
the Remuneration Committee meetings during the year ended
31 December 2018 are set out below:
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Attended/Eligible to Attend

HEXRE EERHERH
Ms. Zhao Guixin (Chairman) HEEZ T (FE) 3/3
Mr. Cornelis Jacobus Keyser Cornelis Jacobus Keysert & 3/3
Mr. Lin Wenhui MR S A 2/3

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Remuneration
Committee has considered and recommended to the Board,
amongst other things, distribution of the 2017 bonus payments for
the Directors and the senior management of the Company.
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Company established a nomination committee (the
“Nomination Committee”) on 18 December 2012. Written terms
of reference in compliance with the CG Code has been adopted.
The primary duties of the Nomination Committee are to review the
structure, size and composition of the Board on a regular basis
and make recommendations to the Board regarding nomination of
suitable candidate to fill vacancies in the Board.

The Nomination Committee consists of three independent
non-executive Directors, namely, Ms. Zhao Guixin, Mr. Cornelis
Jacobus Keyser and Mr. Lin Wenhui. Ms. Zhao Guixin is the
chairman of the Nomination Committee.

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Nomination
Committee held two meetings. Details of the attendance of the
Nomination Committee meetings are set out below:

A 56 5 16 B

REZERE
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YR -

REEZEEREZRBIIERNITES » BIHEE
2277+ - Cornelis Jacobus Keyserst 4 K kX
WA  MEEZTARBREZESTER -

BE-T—\F+-A=T—ALFE RE
EEERTTMAEH - REZEEEHN

A s E S T

Attended/Eligible to Attend

HEREEEREERE
Ms. Zhao Guixin (Chairman) iR (EE) 2/2
Mr. Cornelis Jacobus Keyser Cornelis Jacobus Keyserit A& 2/2
Mr. Lin Wenhui PRI 5 A 1/2

The Nomination Committee considered and reviewed the
independence of the independent non-executive Directors, the
structure, size, composition and diversity of the Board, and the
attendance records of the Board meetings, committees meetings
and general meetings for the year ended 31 December 2018. The
Nomination Committee recommended the Board to approve the
proposed sequence for re-election of retiring Directors in 2019
annual general meeting. The Nomination Committee considers that
the existing policy for nomination, selection and recommendation
for directorship are suitable.

The Company recognises and embraces the benefits of diversity in
the boardroom. The Board has therefore adopted a board diversity
policy which stated that the Board sees diversity as a wide concept
and believes that a diversity of perspectives can be achieved
through consideration of a number of factors, including but not
limited to skills, regional and industry experience, background,
race, gender and other qualities. In informing its perspective on
diversity, the Company will also take into account factors based on
its own business model and specific needs from time to time.
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DIRECTOR NOMINATION POLICY

The Company endeavours to ensure that the Board has the
appropriate balance of skills, experience and diversity of
perspectives that are required to support the execution of its
business strategy and in order for the Board to be effective.

The Nomination Committee shall consider, among others, the
following criteria in evaluating and selecting candidates for
directorships:

° Character and integrity;

e  Personal attributes including professional qualifications, skills,
knowledge, experience and expertise that are relevant to the
Company’s business and corporate strategy, and the ability
to provide insights and practical wisdom based on those
attributes;

e Willingness to devote adequate time to discharge duties as a
Board member, other directorships, memberships of various
committees and significant commitments;

° For independent non-executive directors to be appointed in
accordance with the Listing Rules and whether the candidates
would be considered independent with reference to the
independence guidelines set out in the Listing Rules;

e  Ability to develop a good working relationship with other Board
members and contribute to the Board’s working relationship
with senior management of the Company;

e  Board Diversity Policy and any measurable objectives adopted
by the Committee for achieving diversity on the Board; and

e Any other perspectives appropriate to the Company’s
business.

BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

The Company aims to build and maintain a Board with a diversity
of Directors, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and
educational background, or professional experience.
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A truly diverse Board will include and make good use of differences
in the skills, regional and industry experience, background, race,
gender and other qualities of Directors. These differences will be
taken into account in determining the optimum composition of the
Board. All Board appointments will be based on merit while taking
into account diversity (including gender diversity).

The Nomination Committee will discuss and agree annually
measurable objectives for implementing diversity on the Board
and recommend them to the Board for adoption. The Nomination
Committee will report annually, in the corporate governance report,
on the Board’s composition under diversified perspectives, and
monitor the implementation of this policy.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company established an audit committee (the “Audit
Committee”) on 18 December 2012 with written terms of reference
in compliance with the CG Code. The primary duties of the Audit
Committee are to review and supervise the financial reporting
process and risk management and internal control systems of the
Company, nominate and monitor external auditors and provide
advice and comments to the Directors.

The Audit Committee comprises three independent non-executive
Directors, namely, Mr. Lin Wenhui, Ms. Zhao Guixin and Mr.
Cornelis Jacobus Keyser. Mr. Lin Wenhui is the chairman of the
Audit Committee.

The Audit Committee has met the external auditors of the Group
to review the accounting principles and practices adopted by
the Group and discussed auditing, risk management and internal
control systems and financial reporting matters including the review
of this annual report and financial statements of the Group for the
year ended 31 December 2018.
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During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Audit Committee
held two meetings. The attendance records of the Audit Committee
meetings during the year ended 31 December 2018 are set out
below:

BHE_FT-N\F+_A=1t—"HLFE B
ZESRTTMASHE BE_ZT-N\F+
A=+—HLEFENEZZESERNLFEL
ERE IS

Attended/EIigibIe to Attend
RE EEREEREY

Mr. Lin Wenhui (Chairman) MBI E (F/E) 2/2
Ms. Zhao Guixin fii=KEd g 2/2
Mr. Cornelis Jacobus Keyser Cornelis Jacobus Keyserst 4 2/2

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Audit Committee
reviewed with the management and the auditors of the Company
their audit findings, the accounting principles and practices
adopted by the Company, legal and regulatory compliance, and
financial reporting matters.

The audited consolidated results of the Group for the year ended
31 December 2018 have been reviewed by the Audit Committee.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE

The Company established a corporate governance committee
(the “CG Committee”) on 18 December 2012. Written terms of
reference in compliance with the CG Code has been adopted. The
primary duties of the CG Committee are to develop and review the
Company’s policies and practices on corporate governance and
make recommendations to the Board.

The CG Committee consists of four members, namely, Mr. Cornelis
Jacobus Keyser, Mr. Liu Stefan, Ms. Zhao Guixin and Mr. Lin
Wenhui. Mr. Cornelis Jacobus Keyser is the chairman of the CG
Committee. All members are independent non-executive Directors,
except Mr. Liu Stefan, who is an executive Director and the Chief
Executive Officer of the Company.
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During the year ended 31 December 2018, the CG Committee
held two meetings. Details of the attendance of the CG Committee
meetings are set out below:
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Attended/EIigibIe to Attend
RE BEREERE

Mr. Cornelis Jacobus Keyser

(Chairman) (£/%)
Mr. Liu Stefan BIREE LA
Ms. Zhao Guixin FHEEZE LT
Mr. Lin Wenhui PRI HE S A&

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the CG Committee
considered and reviewed the progress on the implementation of
the Group’s corporate governance framework. The CG Committee
also reviewed the effectiveness of the internal control system of the
Company. Besides, the CG Committee considered and reviewed
the environmental, social and governance reporting proposal. The
CG Committee considers that the existing policies and practices of
corporate governance of the Company are suitable.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The Directors ensure the financial statements of the Group are
prepared in accordance with the statutory requirements and
applicable accounting standards.

The Directors’ responsibilities in the preparation of the financial
statements and the auditor’s responsibilities are set out in the
section of “Independent Auditor’s Report” on pages 62 to 68 of this
annual report.

Cornelis Jacobus Keysert 4=

2/2
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1/2
2/2
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEMS

The Board has overall responsibility for the Group’s risk
management and internal control systems to safeguard the
Company’s assets and shareholders’ interests, and, with the
Audit Committee, for reviewing areas of risk and uncertainty, the
operation and effectiveness of the Group'’s systems of internal
control and the procedures by which these are monitored.
The internal audit department of the Company (“Internal Audit
Department”) is delegated to ensure and maintain sound internal
control functions by monitoring such internal control systems
and procedures constantly so as to ensure that they can provide
reasonable assurance against misstatement or loss and to manage
risks of failure in the Group’s operational systems. The internal audit
function is independent of the operating businesses of the Group.

The risk management and internal control systems are designed
to manage but not eliminate business risk, to help safeguard the
Group’s assets against fraud and other irregularities, and to give
reasonable but not absolute assurance against material financial
misstatement or loss. In addition, it should provide a basis for the
maintenance of proper and fair accounting records and assist in the
compliance with relevant rules and regulations.

During the year under review, the Board reviewed all material
internal controls, including financial, operational and compliance
control. It also reviewed with the Audit Committee and the
information from the Internal Audit Department in respect of the
effectiveness of the Group’s internal control systems, adequacy of
resources, qualifications and experience of staff of the Company’s
accounting and financial reporting function and satisfied that they

were effective and in compliance with the Group’s policies.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

The audit works of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2018
were performed by PricewaterhouseCoopers (“PwC”).
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The total fee paid/payable in respect of the statutory audit and
non-audit services provided by PwC is set out in the following table:
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BLAE LUK B R B RAEE R RIFEZR
BEN/ BNOEERG#HNTX :

2018 2017

—E-N\#F —E—tF

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FET

Audit services EZ RS 3,223 2,966

Non-audit services IEEZIRTE 302 679

Total B5EE 3,525 3,645
COMPANY SECRETARY AEME

All Directors have access to the advice and services of the
Company Secretary. The Company Secretary reports to the
Chairman on board governance matters, and is responsible for
ensuring that Board procedures are followed and for facilitating
communications among Directors as well as with shareholders and
management.

During the year under review, the Company Secretary undertook
over 15 hours of professional training in compliance with Rule 3.29
of the Listing Rules.

DIVIDEND POLICY

The Company has adopted a dividend policy. The dividend payout
ratio shall be determined or recommended, as appropriate, by
the Board at its absolute discretion after taking into account of
the operating results, cash flow, financial condition and capital
requirements of the Group, and subject to:

e the articles of association of the Company;

e the applicable restrictions and requirements under the laws of
the Cayman Islands; and

° any other applicable laws, rules and regulations.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Pursuant to article 58 of the articles of association of the Company,
any one or more shareholders of the Company holding at the date
of deposit of the requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid
up capital of the Company carrying the right of voting at general
meetings of the Company shall at all times have the right, by written
requisition to the Board or the company secretary, to require an
extraordinary general meeting to be called by the Board for the
transaction of any business specified in such requisition; and such
meeting shall be held within two (2) months after the deposit of
such requisition. If within twenty-one (21) days of such deposit the
Board fails to proceed to convene such meeting the requisitionist(s)
himself (themselves) may do so in the same manner, and all
reasonable expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a result of
the failure of the Board shall be reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by
the Company.

In the event that any shareholders of the Company holding at the
date of deposit of the requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid
up capital of the Company carrying the right of voting at general
meetings of the Company would like to call for an extraordinary
general meeting, please make a written requisition to the principal
office of the Company in Hong Kong from time to time, making
attention to “The Board of Directors and the Company Secretary”.

There are no provisions allowing shareholders to put forward
proposals at the general meetings under the memorandum and
articles of association of the Company. If shareholders wish to do
so, they may request to convene an extraordinary general meeting
as stipulated above and specify the proposals in such written
requisition.

For any enquiries, shareholders are welcome to contact the
Company by post to the principal office of the Company in Hong
Kong, by phone at (852) 3120 8888 or by fax at (852) 3120 8800.

INVESTOR RELATIONS

All corporate communication materials published on The Stock
Exchange website (http://www.hkexnews.hk) are posted on the
Company'’s corporate website (http://www.kvblistco.com) as soon
as practicable after their release. The Company’s constitutional
documents are also available on both websites. During the year
ended 31 December 2018, there have not been any significant
changes to the Company’s constitutional documents.
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The board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Directors”) of KVB
Kunlun Financial Group Limited (the “Company”,
subsidiaries, the “Group”) is pleased to present its report together
with the audited consolidated financial statements of the Group for
the year ended 31 December 2018.

together with its

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding and
the activities of the subsidiaries are set out in Note 29 to the
consolidated financial statements.

An analysis of the Group’s performance for the year ended 31
December 2018 by business and geographical segments are set
out in Note 5 to the consolidated financial statements.

ANNUAL RESULTS

The annual results of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2018 are set out in the section headed “Consolidated Statement of
Comprehensive Income” of this annual report.

FINAL DIVIDEND

The Board does not recommend the payment of final dividend for
the year ended 31 December 2018 (2017: Nil).

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The register of members of the Company will be closed from
Monday, 24 June 2019 to Thursday, 27 June 2019, both days
inclusive, during the period no transfers of shares of the Company
will be registered. In order to qualify for attending and voting at the
2019 Annual General Meeting, all transfer documents accompanied
by the relevant share certificates must be lodged with the
Company’s branch share registrar and transfer office in Hong Kong,
Union Registrars Limited, at Suites 3301-04, 33/F, Two Chinachem
Exchange Square, 338 King’s Road, North Point, Hong Kong for
registration by no later than 4:00 p.m. (Hong Kong time) on Friday,
21 June 2019.
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BUSINESS REVIEW
Business Review and Future Prospect

Since the listing of the shares of the Company on the Stock
Exchange on 3 July 2013, the Company has been implementing its
business plans to accomplish its business objectives. A review of
the business of the Group during the year and a discussion on the
Group’s future business development are provided in the section of
“Statement from the Chief Executive Officer” on pages 5 to 7 of this
annual report.

Financial Key Performance Indicators

An analysis of the Group’s performance during the year using
financial key performance indicators is provided in the section of
“Management Discussion and Analysis” on pages 8 to 15 of this
annual report.

Principal Risks and Uncertainties

A number of factors may affect the results and business operations
of the Group, some of which are inherent to its business and some
are affected by the external environment. The Group’s major risks
are summarized below.

(1) Financial risks

The Group’s principal business activities are exposed to
a variety of key financial risks including credit risk, market
risk (such as interest rate risk and foreign currency risk),
and liquidity risk. Details of the aforesaid key risks and
risk mitigation measures are set out in “Financial Risk
Management” in note 3 to the consolidated financial
statements.

(2) Macro-economic environment

Adverse macro-economic changes may affect the business
environment, which may in turn affect the operating results. It is
therefore important that the Group is able to keep track of such
changes of macro-economic environment and swiftly adjusts
its operating policy and business plan under different market
conditions.
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(3) Information technology systems

Financial services sector is highly dependent on information
technology systems and networks. Any material disruption
or slowdown of our IT systems, including a disruption or
slowdown caused by our failure to successfully upgrade
our systems, system failures, viruses or cyber attacks could
cause a loss of data or operation interruption. Therefore, we
invest continuously in our IT systems so as to keep up with the
technology security.

The above is not intended to be an exhaustive list of all
principal risks and uncertainties faced by the Group. These
may change over time as new risks and uncertainties
emerge and others cease to be of concern. The Directors will
constantly evaluate the Group’s business objectives and may
change or modify plans against the changing market condition
to avert or minimise the risks so as to attain sustainable
business growth of the Group.

Environmental Policy and Performance

We are committed to protect the environment by introducing a
green policy to enhance the awareness of environmental protection
among staff. The Group has implemented internal recycling
programme for office consumables such as toner cartridges and
paper to minimise the operation impact on the environment and
natural resources.

The Group has also implemented energy saving practices in offices
and branch premises where applicable, such as taking initiatives to
reduce paper usage by encouraging the use of websites and online
version of corporate communications. As regards reduction of
power consumption, lighting, air- conditioners and office equipment
will be turned off when not in use.
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Compliance with Laws and Regulations

The Group recognises the importance of compliance with
regulatory requirements. The Group has been allocating resources
to ensure the Group’s ongoing compliance with the updated
applicable rules and regulations. During the year under review,
the Group has complied, to the best of our knowledge, with the
Listing Rules, the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571
of the Laws of Hong Kong), the Companies Law, Cap. 22 (Law 3
of 1961, as consolidated and revised) of the Cayman Islands, the
Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the Laws of Hong Kong)
and other relevant rules and regulations.

Relationships with key stakeholders

The Group’s success lies also on the support from key
stakeholders, including employees, customers, bankers, service
providers and shareholders.

Employees

The Group treasures our employees as the most important and
valuable assets of the Group. The objective of the Group’s human
resources management is to reward and recognise our employees
by providing a competitive remuneration package, appropriate
incentives, and opportunities within the Group for career
advancement.

Customers

The Group is committed to provide excellent services to our
customers with a view to maintaining steady business and asset
growth as well as long term profitability.

Bankers

To order to ensure adequate market penetration and access, the
Group has maintained excellent relationship with our bankers and
has been soliciting funds from our bankers as and when necessary.

Service Providers

The Group’s good relationships with its key service providers
are important in provision of effective and efficient services to
our customers and meeting business challenges and regulatory
requirements. The key service providers comprise system
and equipment vendors, external consultants which provide
professional services, and other business partners which provide
value-added services to the Group.
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Shareholders

One of the corporate goals of the Group is to enhance corporate
value to our shareholders. Description of the shareholders’ rights
and our investor relations can be found in the section of “Corporate
Governance Report” on pages 24 to 38 of this annual report.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment of the
Group during the year ended 31 December 2018 are set out in Note
12 to the consolidated financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the shares issued during the year ended 31 December
2018 are set out in Note 23 to the consolidated financial statements.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
articles of association or the laws of the Cayman Islands.

RESERVES

Details of the movements in reserves of the Group during the year
under review are set out in the section headed “Consolidated
Statement of Changes in Equity” of this annual report.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

Under the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands, the funds in the
share premium account and retained earnings of the Company
are distributable to the shareholders of the Company subject to
the provisions of the memorandum and articles of association of
the Company and provided that immediately following the date on
which the dividend is proposed to be distributed, the Company will
be in a position to pay off its debts as they fall due in the ordinary
course of business.

As at 31 December 2018, in the opinion of the Directors, the
Company'’s reserves available for distribution to shareholders
was approximately HK$369 million (2017: approximately HK$382
million).
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

For the year under review, the aggregate percentage of purchases
attributable to the Group’s five largest suppliers is approximately
59.20% of the total purchases of the Group and the largest supplier
included therein amounted to approximately 25.67%.

For the year under review, the aggregate percentage of sales
attributable to the Group’s five largest customers accounted for
approximately 33.05% of the total sales of the Group and the largest
customer included therein amounted to approximately 23.18%.

At no time during the year have the Directors, chief executive,
substantial shareholders of the Company or any of its subsidiaries
or their associates (which to the knowledge of the Directors own
more than 5% of the Company’s share capital) had any interest in
these major customers and suppliers.

PURCHASE, SALE AND REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'’S LISTED SECURITIES

For the year ended 31 December 2018, neither the Company nor
any of its subsidiaries had purchased, sold or redeemed any of the
Company’s listed securities.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group
for the last five financial years is set out in the section headed
“Financial Summary” of this annual report.

RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEME

Details of the Group’s retirement benefits scheme for the year
ended 31 December 2018 are set out in Note 2.17 to the
consolidated financial statements.
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DIRECTORS

During the year ended 31 December 2018 and up to the date of this
annual report, the Board comprises the following Directors:

Executive Directors

Mr. Liu Stefan (Chief Executive Officer)

Mr. Huang Songyuan
(Appointed on 21 May 2018)

Mr. Wong Yiu Kit, Ernest (Chief Financial Officer)
(Appointed on 21 May 2018)

Non-executive Directors

Mr. Li Zhi Da (Chairman)
(Retired on 21 May 2018)
Mr. Stephen Gregory McCoy
Mr. Li Jiong (Appointed on 21 May 2018)
Mr. Xu Jiangiang
(Appointed on 21 May 2018)

Independent Non-executive Directors

Ms. Zhao Guixin
Mr. Cornelis Jacobus Keyser
Mr. Lin Wenhui

In accordance with article 84(1) of the articles of association of
the Company, one-third of the Directors shall retire but are eligible
for re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the
Company. Any new Director appointed to fill a casual vacancy or as
an addition to the Board shall hold office only until the next following
general meeting of the Company and shall then be eligible for re-
election pursuant to article 83(3) of the articles of association of the
Company. Details of the Directors retiring and subject to re-election
at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company will be
contained in a circular of the forthcoming annual general meeting to
be despatched in due course.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the Directors have entered into any service contract with
any member of the Group which is not determinable by the Group
within one year without payment of compensation, other than
statutory compensation.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed in the sections headed “Related Party
Transactions” and “Continuing Connected Transactions” and Note
30 to the consolidated financial statements of this annual report, no
transactions, arrangements or contracts of significance in relation
to the Group’s business to which any of the Company’s subsidiaries
and fellow subsidiaries was a party, and in which a Director or an
entity connected with a Director had a material interest, whether
directly or indirectly, subsisted at any time during the year or at the
end of the year.

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION

Details of the Directors’ remuneration are set out in Note 28 to the
consolidated financial statements.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES AND
DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed in the heading “Directors’ and Chief Executive’s
Interests in Securities” below, at no time during the year or at the
end of the year has been/was the Company, its holding company,
or any of its subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries a party to any
arrangement to enable the Company'’s Directors to acquire benefits
by means of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the
Company or any other body corporate.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY

Pursuant to the articles of association of the Company, subject
to the applicable laws and regulations, every Director shall be
indemnified and secured harmless out of the assets and profits of
the Company against all actions, costs, charges, losses, damages
and expenses which they or any of them may incur or sustain in
or about the execution of their duty in their offices. Such permitted
indemnity provision has been in force throughout the Year. The
Company has arranged appropriate directors’ and officers’ liability
insurance coverage for the directors and officers of the Group.
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DIRECTORS’ COMPETING INTERESTS

As at 31 December 2018, none of the Directors and their respective
associates (as defined under the Listing Rules) had any business
or interest in a business which competes or may compete with the
business of the Group.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Other than the convertible bonds and share option scheme of the
Company as disclosed below, no equity-linked agreements that
will or may result in the Company issuing shares or that require the
Company to enter into any agreements that will or may result in the
Company issuing shares were entered into by the Company during
the year or subsisted at the end of the year.

CONVERTIBLE BONDS

On 12 February 2018 (the “Issue Date”), the Company issued 7.5%
convertible bonds with a principal amount of HK$200 million (the
“Bonds”) to two individuals. The Bonds will become mature on
the second anniversary from the Issue Date. The Company may
extend the maturity date subject to the terms of the subscription
agreement.

Further information on the Bonds are set out in Note 22 to the
consolidated financial statements.

The net proceeds from the issuance have been used for investment
in financial assets and general working capital.

DIRECTORS' REPORT
e

ESNHRFES
(Z_FE-N\F+A=+—RH #HESESE .
MiEELEENBEAL(EER TR RN
AR SR 7K 55 [ SR A5 18 A 3 R RE I A B T FY 275

FEEAE IR

B SR 88 165 2R

RN X PR R 2 AN A B AR AR E 75 N R AR AT
5 - REARNRAFRELERE - ARFRER]
S AS & AT BB B R AR T TAX 0 B AR SR 6
W% - SESRAN R R RIS 175 K = sk Al BE
BYARRREITRM R EH B HE

AR ES

N-EBE—NEFE-A+—B ([ET7EHE]) » AA
A\ W 4 {E A 17 48 € %8 /200,000,0007% 7T
Z75EEABREKRES ([EH])) - BEEESE
REEITHEARERTE —EFEIH - AR F] A AR
BREW®R ZIGRERI A -

BRES 2 E —PHIBENGE M B mRMGE
22 °

BITZMERIBEFRECANKESREEN —
REEEE e

47

&

E i R % <5 4 T 5 R



48

KVB KUNLUN FINANCIAL GROUP LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2018

DIRECTORS REPORT
o3

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company adopted a share option scheme (the “Scheme”) on

3 June 2013. A summary of the Scheme is as follows:

(@

(b)

Purpose of the Scheme

The purpose of the Scheme is for the Group to attract, retain
and motivate talented Participants (as defined below) to strive
for future developments and expansion of the Group.

Participants of the Scheme

Under the Scheme, the Board may, at its discretion, invite the
following persons as participants (the “Participants”) of the
Scheme:

(i) any executive or non-executive Director including any
independent non-executive Director or any employee
(whether full-time or part-time) of any member of the
Group;

(i) any trustee of a trust (whether family, discretionary or
otherwise) whose beneficiaries or objects include any
employee or business associate of the Group;

(i) any consultant (in the areas of legal, technical, financial or
corporate management) and other adviser to any member
of the Group;

(iv) any supplier of goods and/or services to the Group; or

(v) any other person whom the Board considers, in its sole
discretion, has contributed to the Group.

In determining the basis of eligibility of each Participant, the

Board would take into account such factors as the Board may
at its discretion consider appropriate.
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()

(d)

(e)

Basis for determining the exercise price and acceptance of
offer

The exercise price of an option to subscribe for shares granted
under the Scheme shall be a price determined by the Board at
its sole discretion and notified to the Participant and shall be
no less than the highest of (i) the closing price of the shares
as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheet
on the date on which an option is granted; (ii) the average
closing prices of the Shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s
daily quotation sheets for the five trading days immediately
preceding the date on which an option is granted; and (iii) the
nominal value of the Share.

Offer of an option shall be deemed to have been accepted
by the grantee when the duplicate of the relevant offer letter
comprising acceptance of the option duly signed by the
grantee together with a remittance in favour of the Company
of HK$1.00 (or such other nominal sum in any currency as the
Board may determine) by way of consideration for the grant.

Maximum numbers available for issue

The total number of shares of the Company which may be
issued upon exercise of all options to be granted under the
Scheme shall not in aggregate exceed 10% of the issued
share capital of the Company as at the adoption date (the
“General Scheme Limit”) unless further shareholders’ approval
is obtained in general meeting, provided that options lapsed in
accordance with the terms of the Scheme will not be counted
for the purpose of calculating the General Scheme Limit.

Notwithstanding the foregoing the total number of shares
of the Company which may be issued upon exercise of all
outstanding options granted and yet to be exercised under the
Scheme shall not exceed 30% of the shares of the Company in
issue from time to time.

Maximum entitlement of each Participant

For each Participant, the total number of shares issued and to
be issued upon exercise of all options granted and further to
be granted in any 12-month period (including both exercised
and outstanding options) and in the 12-month period up to and
including the acceptance date (including exercised, cancelled
and outstanding options) shall not in isolation or aggregate
exceed 1% of the shares, and any grant of option which would
result in such limit being exceeded shall be approved by the
Company in general meeting with such Participant and any
associate thereof abstaining from voting.

()
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(e)
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(9)

(h)

Time of exercise of the option

An option may be exercised in whole or in part in accordance
with the terms of the Scheme at any time during the period
commencing on the first business day from the date of grant
of option and expiring at the close of business on a date to be
determined and notified by the Directors which shall not be
more than 10 years from the date of grant of option.

Unless the Directors otherwise determined and stated at the
time of granting the option, there is no minimum period for
which an option must be held before it can be exercised.

Remaining life of the Scheme

The Directors shall be entitled at any time within 10 years
commencing on 3 July 2013 to offer the grant of an option to
any qualifying participants.

Movements of the options granted under the Scheme

On 19 August 2015, the Company granted share options to
95 individuals to subscribe for an aggregate of 40,000,000
ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each in the share capital of the
Company. Among the 40,000,000 share options granted,
12,200,000 share options were granted to six Directors.

On 29 December 2016, the Company granted share options
to 95 individuals to subscribe for an aggregate of 40,000,000
ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each in the share capital of the
Company. Among the 40,000,000 share options granted,
11,750,000 share options were granted to six Directors.

On 22 March 2018, the Company granted share options to
82 individuals to subscribe for an aggregate of 40,000,000
ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each in the share capital of the
Company. Among the 40,000,000 share options granted,
17,550,000 share options were granted to seven Directors.

Details of the movements of the options granted under the
Scheme are set out in Note 26 to the consolidated financial
statements.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2018, none of
the Directors, chief executive, substantial shareholders of the
Company or their respective associates (as defined under the
Listing Rules) had any right to subscribe for the shares of the
Company under the Scheme.
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INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF DIRECTORS
AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE IN SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2018, save as disclosed below, none of the
Directors nor the chief executive of the Company or their associates
had any interests or short positions in the shares, underlying
shares and debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and
Futures Ordinance (the “SFO”)) which were (i) required to be
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to
Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and
short positions which he is taken or deemed to have taken under
such provisions of the SFO); or (ii) required, pursuant to section 352
of the SFO, to be entered in the register referred to therein; or (iii)
required, pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Director contained in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules, to be notified
to the Company and the Stock Exchange:

Interests in shares of the Company:
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Approximate %

Number of shares/

of the number

Name of director Capacity underlying shares held Total of issued shares
FrsRe,/ HEBTRG
BEEpR -gvi) HEROEA Ay HEABYEIH
Shares Options
B 5 BRE
(Note 1)
(Hiit1)
Mr. Liu Stefan Beneficial owner 9,520,000 18,000,000 27,520,000 1.35%
(Chief Executive Officer)
BfRGE K (TTiECAE ) ERBEBA
Mr. Huang Songyuan Beneficial owner - 6,850,000 6,850,000 0.34%
BEEREAE ERBEBA
Mr. Wong Yiu Kit, Ernest Beneficial owner - 2,050,000 2,050,000 0.10%
(Chief Financial Officer)
BERBEE(EEYIFE) ExBEAA
Mr. Stephen Gregory McCoy Beneficial owner - 2,000,000 2,000,000 0.10%

Stephen Gregory McCoy %t &

It

BEDBEEA
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Number of shares/

Approximate %
of the number

Name of director Capacity underlying shares held Total of issued shares
s,/ HEBRTRS
BEEMA -gvi) HEROEAE Ay HEABYEIH
Shares Options
& 5 BRE
(Note 1)
(Hfit1)
Ms. Zhao Guixin Beneficial owner 200,000 700,000 900,000 0.04%
HEEZL EnEAA
Mr. Cornelis Jacobus Keyser Beneficial owner - 700,000 700,000 0.03%
Cornelis Jacobus Keyserst 4 EmEAA
Mr. Lin Wenhui Beneficial owner 200,000 700,000 900,000 0.04%
MRS & EnEAA
Note: s

1. Those options were granted on 19 August 2015, 29 December 2016 1.

and 22 March 2018 respectively under the Scheme.

=

=

BREBRESIIR-_FE—AFNA+NIH =
NF+ A=+ NAR=—ZF—NF=H
T HIREZ AR -



INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF SUBSTANTIAL
SHAREHOLDERS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES
AND DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2018, so far as was known to the Directors
or chief executive of the Company, the following persons (other
than the directors or chief executive of the Company) had, or were
deemed or taken to have, an interest or short position in the shares
and underlying shares of the Company which would fall to be
disclosed to the Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and
3 of Part XV of the SFO, or as recorded in the register to be kept by
the Company under section 336 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified

DIRECTORS REPORT
o 3

FERRRRS - HEROKRES 2#ES
RRAE

BARREFREIBTHRAEMM R_F
—N\F+ZA=+—B UTAL(EXRRAZ
EFHTEEBTHRABRIN RARQRARND &
MBI () A SRR AR EER A ARIERE
% M EIE ARG EXVER 2535 & 2 R X A1 A
N EH R RSN AR RR RS 5 MR (R A
L3361 P 17 #Y B RC sk LA Ho Ath 75 =X AT & A8
RAE| BT RE s SR B

to the Company and the Stock Exchange:

Number of shares/
underlying shares held
FrislRe RERGHE
Approximate%
Name of substantial Derivative of the number
shareholder Capacity Shares interests Total of issued shares
REBT
RO #E
TERRER EL) i) PTERE By BRED
CITIC Securities Company Limited Interests in controlled 1,200,310,001 - 1,200,310,001 59.03%
(“CITIC Securities”) corporation (Note 1)
RETFROERAR ([FEEF])  RIEHEBRER (Hi21)
CITIC Securities Overseas Investment Beneficial owner 1,200,310,001 - 1,200,310,001 59.03%
Company Limited
PRI R EIMERR AT EREAA
KVB Kunlun Holdings Limited Beneficial owner 300,000,000 - 300,000,000 14.75%
("KVB Holdings”) (Note 2)
KVB Kunlun Holdings Limited ERBEBA
(TKVB Holdings ) (#/7#2)
Mr. Li Zhi Da (Note 2) Interests in controlled 300,000,000 - 300,000,000 14.75%
corporation
FEERE W22 IR EHEE 2 %
Calypso International Investment Beneficial owner 106,525,000 - 106,525,000 5.24%
Co., Limited (Note 3)
Calypso International Investment ERBEBA
Co., Limited (#7£3)
HNA Group (International) Company Interests in controlled 106,525,000 - 106,525,000 5.24%

Limited (Note 3)

BREE (ER) BRAR (HiF3)

corporation

REEHEE 2 s

53

&

E i R % <5 4 T 5 R



54

KVB KUNLUN FINANCIAL GROUP LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2018

DIRECTORS REPORT
o3

Number of shares/
underlying shares held
FisRe RERGHE
Approximate%
Name of substantial Derivative of the number
shareholder Capacity Shares interests Total of issued shares
HERT
RO#E
TERRER 54 i) TEER ag BREDH
HNA Group Co., Ltd. (Note 3) Interests in controlled 106,525,000 - 106,525,000 5.24%
corporation
BEBERRR (#73) REEGNER 2 5
Hainan Traffic Administration Holding Interests in controlled 106,525,000 - 106,525,000 5.24%
Co., Ltd. (Note 3) corporation
BEAREERERAR (Hi23) REZHER R
Sheng Tang Development (Yangpu) Interests in controlled 106,525,000 - 106,525,000 5.24%
Co. Ltd. (Note 3) corporation
REER(FR) BRAR (H:23) REEHEE 2 5
Tang Dynasty Development Co. Ltd. Interests in controlled 106,525,000 - 106,525,000 5.24%
(Note 3) corporation
BRERRERDA (H73) REEGER 2 5
Pan- American Aviation Holding Interests in controlled 106,525,000 - 106,525,000 5.24%
Company (Note 3) corporation
Pan-American Aviation Holding Company W52 #AE 2 #x
(H1it3)
Cihang Sino-Western Cultural and Interests in controlled 106,525,000 - 106,525,000 5.24%
Educational Exchange Foundation corporation
Limited (Note 3)
EMRAAXHXNESEEBRAR  RIEFEE R
(H1it3)
Notes: it -

1. As CITIC Securities is entitled to control over one-third of the voting 1.
power at general meetings of CITIC Securities Overseas Investment
Company Limited, CITIC Securities is deemed under the SFO to be
interested in the entire 1,200,310,001 shares held by CITIC Securities
Overseas Investment Company Limited.

R (5 4 55 B R (5 FE 58 90 18 B H IR
RAIZREBEAX G LGB =52 — AR E
B IRIBFZRAE IR - (5 i 54512 53
RAPFFEF GO B F RN Al 55 892 55
1,200,310,0018 & 17 HEH # 7s ©



2. AsMr. Li Zhi Da is entitled to control over one-third of the voting power
at general meetings of KVB Holdings, he is deemed under the SFO to
be interested in the entire 300,000,000 shares held by KVB Holdings.

3. Calypso International Investment Co., Limited was a wholly owned
subsidiary of HNA Group (International) Company Limited, which was
in turn owned as to 91.09% by HNA Group Co., Ltd.. HNA Group Co.,
Ltd. was held as to 70% by Hainan Traffic Administration Holding Co.,
Ltd.. Hainan Traffic Administration Holding Co., Ltd. was in turn held
as to 50% by Sheng Tang Development (Yangpu) Co., Ltd.. Sheng
Tang Development (Yangpu) Co., Ltd. was held as to 65% by Hainan
Province Cihang Foundation and 35% by Tang Dynasty Development
Co., Ltd. which was in turn 98% held by Pan-American Aviation
Holding Company, which is wholly held by Cihang Sino-Western
Cultural and Educational Exchange Foundation Limited.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2018, the Directors
are not aware of any other person who has an interest or short
position in the shares or underlying shares (including interest in
options, if any) of the Company as recorded in the register required
to be kept under section 336 of the SFO.

CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed in the section headed “Continuing connected
transactions”, no contract of significance in relation to the Group’s
business to which any member of the Group was a party and in
which a director of the Company had a material interest, whether
directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year ended 31
December 2018.

Save as disclosed in the section headed “Continuing connected
transactions”, no contract of significance (including provision of
services) between the Company, or any of its subsidiaries, and a
controlling shareholder or any of its subsidiaries subsisted during
the year ended 31 December 2018.

DIRECTORS' REPORT
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2 HIRFEEEAEFRIEEIKVB HoldingsfR#E A

B LA =5 —RREE  IRIEES KA
B1E0) - 1% #8188 ARKVB Holdings % # ¥+ 5 &9
300,000,0008% i (7 # #E G 1z ©

3. Calypso International Investment Co.,Limited

BAEE (BIR) BR A A2 2 ENBARA] -
7 8 i 5 [ (EG BY) B R 2 7] /7 )& A 2E [ 7 R
DNEEEI1.09% 5 © JGMIFEEE R Al )6
AXREFRBRINFIFHE70%# 2 - MAREK
EIFIRB R L 7 B R CF#) BIRA Alfr
FE0%Em o BE)E F IR (FH) BRI 7l #1865
BEM AN B L BT H65%Em N 5 F R
BRRAIFFBEIBIERD  BEFFREERAAIH
Pan-American Aviation Holding Company## &
98%1# zx + MiPan-American Aviation Holding
Company i Z i R 75 75 X H R i E L B HRA
B2 EHH -

BREXFHBEREEN R_FT—-NE+_A1
=t—H BRI TABREMEMALTREAR
AR S AR RE A (D B A RC s3I R IR 78 75 K B
BIRPIEIB6IEMETF 2 ELMZERIOXR
(BRERERE . ES (E)) °

BEREHD

BRIFERERS | —SMEEEI - AREIE
A B R B BT I B AR EXFBEEANAAN
ARAEEFNHEPERAERERERAERMR

(E_E-N\FT_A=+—BILEFERNDA
BRZEREH °

BRIFERERS | —fMEEEIN » ARFIK
ELATA(rTB B8 2~ B R 2 R B AR s EL AT (] P /B 2 )
WEIIRBE—FT-N\F+-_A=+—Hit
FERNDABRZEXREH (BIERHERE)
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MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company was
entered into or existed during the year.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Significant related party transactions entered into by the Group
during the year ended 31 December 2018 are disclosed in Note
30 to the consolidated financial statements. Certain of these
transactions also constitute continuing connected transactions
under the Listing Rules, as identified below.

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS
Sharing of Office premises

As disclosed in an announcement of the Company dated 18
December 2015, the Company and KVB Kunlun Holdings Limited
(“KVB Holdings”) entered into an existing renewed office licence
agreement (the “Existing Renewed Office Licence Agreement”) on
18 December 2015 for a term from 1 January 2016 to 31 December
2018. The annual caps for the transactions contemplated under the
Existing Renewed Office Licence Agreement for the years ended 31
December 2016, 31 December 2017 and 31 December 2018 were
HK$4 million, HK$4.5 million and HK$5 million, respectively.

As disclosed in an announcement of the Company dated
1 December 2017, the Company and KVB Holdings entered into a
supplemental agreement to the Existing Renewed Office Licence
Agreement on 1 December 2017 to revise certain terms of the
Existing Renewed Office Licence Agreement and the revised
annual caps for the services provided by the Company. For the
services provided by the Company for each of the three years
ended 31 December 2016, 31 December 2017 and 31 December
2018, the revised annual caps are HK$4 million, HK$3.7 million and
HK$1.9 million. For the services provided by KVB Holdings for each
of the three years ended 31 December 2016, 31 December 2017
and 31 December 2018, the revised annuals cap were nil, HK$0.8
million and HK$3.1 million respectively.

EEEH

FA - BHEREIEREEARRT 2R
REDEBMA LKA BEMEL -

BBLXS

AEEHEZ_Z— \FF+A=1T—HILFE
CERBEH AR ZEBERIRE M HEHRERWM T
30 ° BN ZER HIMERK LR A2 &R E
R HFBWT -

HARLEYWHE

WA ATEBRA-E—AF+_A+N\BZ
NEFTHE - AR A EKVYB Kunlun Holdings
Limited ([KVB Holdings ) R =& — A F+ =
A+ N\BRIVBEERKEERNERFT R
([REKEER A AEFTERED B IRA
—E-XFE—A—BRBE=ZE—N\F+=A
=t—HlE - HEZFE-—R"F+-HA=+—
B ZZ—+tHF+HA=1+—BEZZF—N\F
TZRA=+—HILFE BELEBENLNER
TREBGEETRETRIZFE LR A A
4,000,000/ 7T * 4,500,000/ 7T % 5,000,00058
T o

AN BHAE—_T—ttF+_A—8BZ
NEFTH R - A A A HEKVB Holdingsid — &
—tF+ A —HIURELEBERLAER
R o MEET R AKEENR
EFTEBE2E TEHRREARQFMMERR
BIEETTFELR - HARFTRBEZZT
—R"F+_A=+—H ZFT—tF+=HA
=+—BHERZE—N\FF+ZA=4+—H1=
FEFREBEZRGEMS @ KIE5]FELRAE
4,000,000/ 7T * 3,700,000 7T & 1,900,00058
JC ° BLKVB HoldingsR&E = =T —XF+— A
=+—B -ZF—+tF+ZH=1T—HKZ=ZF
—NFE+_A=+—BIE=FSFAREZR
HmE - &EFTFE LR 5 54Z - 800,000
7 7T 53,100,000 7T °



As disclosed in an announcement of the Company dated 28
December 2018, the Company and KVB Holdings entered into
an renewed office licence agreement on 28 December 2018 (the
“Renewed Office Licence Agreement”), for a term from 1 January
2019 to 31 December 2021. For the services provided by the
Company for each of the three years ending 31 December 2019,
31 December 2020 and 31 December 2021, the annual caps of
the transactions contemplated under the Renewed Office Licence
Agreement are HK$2.2 million, HK$2.3 million and HK$2.4 million.
For the services provided by KVB Holdings for each of the three
years ending 31 December 2019, 31 December 2020 and 31
December 2021, the annual caps are HK$3.3 million, HK$3.4 million
and HK$3.6 million respectively.

Cash Dealing Services

As disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated 17 June
2016, the Company and KVB Kunlun Global Capital Limited (“KVB
GC”), a company incorporated in BVI and is wholly owned by KVB
Holdings, entered into an existing renewed cash dealing agreement
(the “Existing Renewed Cash Dealing Agreement”) on 17 June
2016 for a term from 1 July 2016 to 31 December 2018. Pursuant
to the Existing Renewed Cash Dealing Agreement, the Company
shall provide or procure its subsidiaries to provide, to KVB GC and
its subsidiaries (“GC Group”) the cash dealing services including
the provision of the exchange of currencies (“KVB Services”) by
the Group; and KVB GC shall provide, or procure its subsidiaries to
provide, to the Group, foreign exchange conversion and settlement
services (“GC Services”). The maximum revenue (net of realized/
unrealized gain/loss) to be recorded by the Company in respect of
the KVB Services for the six months ended 31 December 2016 and
two years ended 31 December 2017 and 31 December 2018 were
HK$7.1 million, HK$20 million and HK$20 million respectively.
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As disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated 28
December 2018, the Company and KVB GC entered into an
renewed cash dealing agreement (the “Renewed Cash Dealing
Agreement”) on 28 December 2018 for a term from 1 January 2019
to 31 December 2021, under which the Company, together with
its subsidiaries, would provide cash dealing services including the
provision of exchange of currencies at a rate determined at the
time of the transaction to KVB Holdings’ group. The annual caps
for transactions contemplated under the Renewed Cash Dealing
Agreement for each of the three years ended 31 December 2021 in
respect of revenue (in terms of net of realised gains, realised losses,
unrealised gains and unrealised losses) are HK$10 million.

Information Technology Services
Software Licence

As disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated 18
December 2015, a software licence agreement (the “Software
Licence Agreement”) was entered into between the Company and
Banclogix System Co., Limited (“Banclogix”) on 18 December
2015, pursuant to which Banclogix shall grant the Company a three-
year licence for certain software to enable the Group to, inter alia,
use the routing service and data integration layer developed by
Banclogix. The licence fee payable under the Software Licence
Agreement was a one-off payment of HK$3.5 million.

As disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated 19
April 2016, the Company and Banclogix entered into an existing
information technology services agreement (the “Existing
Information Technology Services Agreement”) for a term from
19 April 2016 to 31 December 2018. Pursuant to the Existing
Information Technology Services Agreement, Banclogix would
from time to time provide software development and maintenance
services, information technology infrastructure project management
services and information technology infrastructure maintenance
services to the Group. The aggregate annual caps payable by the
Group to Banclogix under the Software Licence Agreement and the
Existing Information Technology Services Agreement for each of
the three years ended 31 December 2016, 31 December 2017 and
31 December 2018 were HK$20 million, HK$19 million and HK$20
million, respectively.
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As disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated 26
September 2016, the independent shareholders approved the
first supplemental agreement dated 12 August 2016 to revise
the existing aggregate annual caps under the Software Licence
Agreement and the Existing Information Technology Services
Agreement. The revised aggregate annual caps payable by the
Group to Banclogix for each of the three years ended 31 December
2016, 31 December 2017 and 31 December 2018 were HK$28.5
million, HK$26.0 million and HK$24.5 million, respectively.

As disclosed in the announcement dated 27 March 2018, the
independent shareholders approved the second supplemental
agreement dated 12 February 2018 to revise the existing aggregate
annual caps under the Existing Information Technology Services
Agreement as revised by the first supplemental agreement.
The revised aggregate annual caps payable by the Group to
Banclogix for each of the three years ended 31 December 2016,
31 December 2017 and 31 December 2018 were HK$28.5 million,
HK$26.0 million and HK$37.5 million, respectively.

As disclosed in the announcement dated 28 December 2018,
the Company and Banclogix entered into a renewed information
technology services agreement (the “Renewed Information
Technology Services Agreement”) for a term from 1 January 2019
to 31 December 2021. Pursuant to the Renewed Information
Technology Services Agreement, Banclogix would from time to
time provide software development and maintenance services,
information technology infrastructure project management services
and information technology infrastructure maintenance services
to the Group. The aggregate annual caps payable by the Group
to Banclogix under the Renewed Information Technology Services
Agreement for each of the three years ended 31 December 2019,
31 December 2020 and 31 December 2021 are HK$25 million
respectively.

All independent non-executive Directors have reviewed and
confirmed that the above continuing connected transactions have

been entered into:

(i) inthe ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;
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(i) either on normal commercial terms or, if there are not sufficient
comparable transactions to judge whether they are on normal
commercial terms, on terms no less favourable to the Group
than terms available to or from (as appropriate) independent
third parties; and

(iii) in accordance with the relevant agreement governing them on
terms that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the
shareholders of the Company as a whole.

The Directors also confirm that the Company has complied with
the disclosure requirements in accordance with Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules.

The Company’s auditor was engaged to report on the Group’s
continuing connected transactions in accordance with Hong
Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 “Assurance
Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial
Information” and with reference to Practice Note 740 “Auditor’s
Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions under the Hong Kong
Listing Rules” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants.

In accordance with Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules, the auditors
must provide a letter to the Board confirming whether anything
has come to their attention that causes them to believe that the
continuing connected transactions:

(1) have not been approved by the Board;

(2) were not, in all material respects, in accordance with the
pricing policies of the Group if the transactions involve the
provision of goods or services by the Group;

(3) were not entered into, in all material respects, in accordance
with the relevant agreement governing the transactions; and

(4) have exceeded the cap.

The auditor has issued his unqualified letter containing his
findings and conclusions in respect of the continuing connected
transactions disclosed by the Group in this section headed
“Continuing Connected Transactions” above. A copy of the
auditor’s letter has been provided by the Company to the Stock
Exchange.
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EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

The Directors are not aware of any significant event requiring
disclosure that has taken place subsequent to 31 December 2018
and up to the date of this Annual Report.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

The Company has maintained a sufficient public float during the
year ended 31 December 2018.

DONATIONS

Charitable and other donations made by the Group during the year
amounted to approximately HK$2,364,000 (2017: approximately
HK$1,313,000).

AUDITORS

The financial statements have been audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers
who retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment
at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company.

On behalf of the Board

Liu Stefan
Chief executive officer and executive Director

Hong Kong, 18 March 2019

DIRECTORS' REPORT
e

REPRER

EFVITABARAZE—N\F+_A=+—H1&
BEEARFERARBLEMETFRECEAS
18 o

EHALNRFERE
RARRBE-FT—/\F+_A=1+—HLF
E-EHFHRADTFHRE -

B/

AREBFRN 2 ZBERHEMIBFAI2,364,0007 7T
—E—+4F : #91,313,000087T) ©

=B ED

MIBMREREBOKE S EHAEZ %
EBFRN AR B EERRRBFE RS LEISE
o

REEES

Bk =&
TTIRAR LR TTEF

BB —E-AEFE=A+NH

61

&

E i R % <5 4 T 5 R



KVB KUNLUN FINANCIAL GROUP LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2018

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B8 3 A% BT o

.
pwc

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF

KVB KUNLUN FINANCIAL GROUP LIMITED
ErEReREBEERAT

(Incorporated in Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION
What we have audited

The consolidated financial statements of KVB Kunlun Financial
Group Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”)
set out on pages 69 to 179, which comprise:

° the consolidated balance sheet as at 31 December 2018;

e the consolidated statement of comprehensive income for the
year then ended;

e the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the year
then ended,;

e the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended; and

° the notes to the consolidated financial statements, which
include a summary of significant accounting policies.

Our opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2018, and of its consolidated financial performance and
its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”)
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(“HKICPA”) and have been properly prepared in compliance
with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial
Statements section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA'’s
Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the Code”), and we
have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with
the Code.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we
do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.
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The key audit matter identified in our audit was the leveraged
trading system and controls.

Key Audit Matter
Leveraged trading system and controls

The leveraged foreign exchange and other trading income is a key
revenue stream for the Group, which contributed to over 79% of the
Group’s total income.

The Group’s leveraged foreign exchange and other trading
business and the recognition and calculation of the leveraged
foreign exchange and other trading income are dependent on the
design and operational effectiveness of key Information Technology
(“IT”) controls over the trading system given the significant amount
of transactions that are automatically processed in the systems.
Therefore, controls over the trading system are a key focus in our
audit.

Refer to Note 5 to the consolidated financial statements.

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter

We identified, evaluated and tested the following key IT controls of
the Group’s leveraged trading system:

1. IT General Controls Testing

Assessed IT control environment including examining the
framework of governance over the Group’s IT organisation and
the key IT general controls over the trading system covering
access to system and data, program changes, program
development, and IT operations.

2. IT Application Controls Testing

Assessed key automated control procedures, key system
generated reports from the trading system and calculations
within the automated applications through comparing the
source data to the underlying trade details and performing
recalculation on a sample basis.

The results of the audit testing performed supported our ability to
place reliance on the IT dependencies of the leveraged trading
system.
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OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information
included in the Directors’ Report, Corporate Information, Statement
from the Chief Executive Officer, Management Discussion and
Analysis, Biographies of Directors and Senior Management,
Corporate Governance Report and Financial Summary (but does
not include the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s
report thereon), which we obtained prior to the date of this auditor’s
report, and the Environmental, Social and Governance Report,
which is expected to be made available to us after that date.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not and will not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
identified above and, in doing so, consider whether the other
information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed on the other information
that we obtained prior to the date of this auditor’s report, we
conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to
report in this regard.

When we read the Environmental, Social and Governance Report,
if we conclude that there is a material misstatement therein, we are
required to communicate the matter to the Audit Committee and
take appropriate action considering our legal rights and obligations.
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RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND AUDIT
COMMITTEE FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary
to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as
a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to
going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting
unless the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Audit Committee is responsible for overseeing the Group’s
financial reporting process.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue
an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. We report our opinion
solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not
assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person
for the contents of this report. Reasonable assurance is a high level
of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of
users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

e |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or
the override of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

e FEvaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to
draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures
in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may
cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

e  FEvaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent
the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.
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e  Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the Group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal
control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we
have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current
period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe
these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely
rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences
of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public
interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is FU, Ho Kee.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 18 March 2019
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TED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
Aok 2 T A 2R AR

or the year ended 31 December 2018 B2 —Z— \F+_A=+—HIFE

2018 2017
—ZE—-NF —FT—+tF
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
B aE FHET BT
Leveraged foreign exchange and BRI HNE K H At 22 F U A
other trading income ] 372,940 397,025
Cash dealing income BERHIKA 5 3,309 1,136
Fee and commission income A kEsIRA 56,446 108,775
Other income H AU A 6 38,416 7,996
Total income WA 4a%8 471,111 514,932
Referral expenses and other charges B\ 5k & E 4t & A (175,772) (299,247)
Staff costs 8 T 7 (101,669) (66,931)
Depreciation of property, plant and M HERKRETER
equipment and amortisation of mEEEE
intangible assets 12& 13 (14,681) (12,521)
Lease payments under land and T3t RAEFEEE R
buildings (14,228) (13,395)
Administrative and other operating TTIER I B 48 8 F =2
expenses 8 (84,576) (96,404)
Total expenses Sz 4 %a (390,926) (478,498)
Operating profit £ s ) 80,185 36,434
Finance cost 7l & B AR (28,428) (1,415)
Profit before tax B A A1 4 A 51,757 35,019
Income tax expense FriS B 5 2 9 (17,508) (7,665)
Profit for the year F [ i 1) 34,249 27,354
Other comprehensive (expense)/ Ha2m(BX) W
income
Item that may be reclassified to profit — AJGEEZ S IEE 15752 1B H
or loss
Currency translation difference EshE N =5 (15,105) 3,858
Other comprehensive (expense)/ FEHEMAE2E (AX) S
income for the year, net of tax (B FiIE) (15,105) 3,858
Total comprehensive income for the year 4 E 2 M W 54258 19,144 31,212
Earnings per share for profit FEXRATREFEA
attributable to the equity holders of EERNzSRER
the Company for the year
— Basic — B
(HK cents per share) (=B 11 1.68 1.88
— Diluted — 8
(HK cents per share) (=B 11 1.44 1.35

The notes on pages 75 to 179 form part of these consolidated

financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET
O EEAMER

As at 31 December 2018 R=—ZE— \F+=-_HA=+—H

2018 2017
—E-N\F —FT—tF
Notes HK$’000 HK$’'000
&tz FET FET
ASSETS EE
Non-current assets FREBEE
Property, plant and equipment M - RE K& 12 9,454 9,719
Intangible assets mILEE 13 43,835 34,496
Deferred tax assets IRAERIE & = 19 1,719 1,367
Total non-current assets FREBEEHAE 55,008 45,582
Current assets REBEE
Other receivables, prepayments H {th fE UL FRIE
and deposits TENFRIE R iR E 14 9,692 11,824
Tax prepayment TEBAIE 4,625 11,211
Derivative financial instruments PTTEemIA 15 67,400 139,567
Balances due from agents e USRI 4 B 16 21,751 88,551
Cash and bank balances and Re MIBITHERNU K
client trust bank balances BEEFLIRITAEA S 17 980,766 1,104,050
Total current assets hEEEHAE 1,084,234 1,355,203
Total assets BEEAE 1,139,242 1,400,785
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES EzRAE
5 Equity S
S Share capital &N 23 20,333 20,333
g Reserves & 347,541 365,190
Retained earnings IR & F 203,832 161,704
Total equity SRR 571,706 547,227

KVB KUNLUN FINANCIAL GROUP LIMITED ANNUAL

The notes on pages 75 to 179 form part of these consolidated

financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET  _
e EREAEE

As at 31 December 2018 R =—ZE— \F+_-_A=+—H

2018 2017
—E-N\E —E—+tF
Notes HK$°000 HK$’'000
Kt FHBT BT
Current liabilities REEE

Finance lease obligations B & S E 18 42 47
Tax payable FE TR IR 2,633 -
Other payables and accrued liabilities ~ E b EN KB N ET B (S 20 31,643 53,272
Derivative financial instruments PTTHEemIA 15 5,374 30,646
Clients’ balances 2P AR 21 331,731 766,182
Total current liabilities mEEEAEE 371,423 850,147

Non-current liabilities FRBEE
Finance lease obligations e T E AR IE 18 146 205
Deferred tax liabilities EETIEE & 19 4,902 3,206
Convertible bonds A # % & 5 22 191,065 =
Total non-current liabilities FREEEHETE 196,113 3,411
Total liabilities SEAHE 567,536 853,558
Total equity and liabilities BEXAREE 1,139,242 1,400,785

The financial statements on pages 69 to 179 were approved by the  ZE6e9E 1798 WB B HEAE RN —_ZE— LE= A
Board of Directors on 18 March 2019 and were signed on its behalf + \HEEZ=eit ELRBHILATEESEKASEE

i

J\AEAE

Liu Stefan Wong Yiu Kit Ernest
v =9 303 &

The notes on pages 75 to 179 form part of these consolidated 57521798 KM TR :Z S 434 B B sh &R 8
financial statements. — &5 o
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQ!

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #Z = — A\ + A=+ HIEFZ

Share  Currency

Share Share Capital option translation  Retained Total
capital  premium reserve reserve reserve  earnings equity
BRE g%

Bx  ROEE EAEE e EifRH REEN RERAE
Notes ~ HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS$'000  HK$'000  HKS$'000

i3 TEr  TEx  TEx  TEr  TEx  TER  TEx

(Note 24)
(Hiz#24)
At 1 January 2017 W_ZE—+&—f—H 20,332 180,464 171,892 17,692 (9,766) 133,903 514,517
Comprehensive income 2ENE
Profit for the year EEEA - - - - - 27,354 27,354
Other comprehensive income FEEMRANE
for the year - - - - 3,858 = 3,858
20,332 180,464 171,892 17,692 (5,908) 161,257 545,729
Share option scheme BiREsrE 2 - - - 1,032 - 436 1,468
Issuance of new ordinary shares  {T{¢ BB AR ERE 1T 2
upon exercise of share option T E &M 1 29 = (1) = 11 30

Balance at 31 December 2017 R-B-t&F+=R
=t-He&s 20,333 180493 171,892 18713 (5908) 161,704 547,227

Effect of adoption of HKFRS 9 RABBHBREER

FIhLEE - - - - - (1,040) (1,040)
= At 1 January 2018 RZZ-N\F—A—H 20,333 180,493 171,892 18,713 (5,908) 160,664 546,187
Comprehensive income 2ENE
Profit for the year EEEA - - - - - 34,249 34,249
Other comprehensive expense FEAMEZARY
for the year - - - - (15,105) - (15,105)

20,333 180,493 171,892 18,713 (21,013 194,913 565,331
Share option scheme BRiETE 26 - - - (2,544) - 8,919 6,375

Balance at 31 December2018 ~ R=F-N\£+=A
=t-Hez&&H 20,333 180,493 171,892 16,169 (21,013) 203,832 571,706

The notes on pages 75 to 179 form part of these consolidated 57521798 KM T K ;2 S 434 B I sh &R 19
financial statements. — &5 o
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
i Bl i R R

or the year ended 31 December 2018 B2 —Z— \F+_A=+—HIFE

2018 2017
—E-N\F — T4
Notes HK$°000 HK$'000
B aE FET FAET
Cash flows from operating activities K& EZBFFEBRERE
Profit before tax R A5 AT 4 A 51,757 35,019
Adjustments for: TR
Depreciation of property, plant and M - WE REE
equipment and amortisation of WEREREERE
intangible assets 12& 13 14,681 12,521
Interest income B A 6 (4,945) (2,661)
Interest expense B2 28,428 .
Loss on disposal of fixed assets HEBETEEERNEER 6 - 438
Impairment of intangible asset B EEZRE 8& 13 2,937 1,730
Share option expenses HE S A el =2 7&26 6,375 1,468
Fair value gain on the embedded AR ES TR A
derivative portion of convertible ALTETEZLMD 2
bonds N EWE 6&22 (26,042) -
Amortisation of deferred losses AR E SR D
on conversion component of iR R i
convertible bonds 6&22 1,982 -
Cash flows from operating activities BB EBAIL S
before working capital changes EERRESRE 75,173 48,515
(Increase)/decrease in pledged time B # 3 F B
deposits (&) (4,344) 72,905
Decrease/(increase) in client trust B EFLIRITAR
bank balances wWA (g ) 330,514 (173,732)
Decrease/(increase) in balances due  fEUL K IR 4564
from agents w7 (3 hn) 66,226 (30,995)
Decrease/(increase) in derivative PTHEESRMT A
financial instruments A () 46,895 (34,591)
Decrease/(increase) in other H b g SR8
receivables, prepayments and TR RIE ik &
deposits A () 2,610 (1,279)
(Decrease)/increase in clients’ BE&# L) /1 f
balances (434,451) 292,278 A
(Decrease)/increase in other payables E fth &~ K38 & fE 51 \
and accrued liabilities BEORd) (27,464) 21,487 1
w
4
Cash generated from operations KEFSIRS 55,159 194,588 =
Income tax paid B FF 18 B (6,860) Shiis) =
Net cash generated from operating KL EE TSR ERE f,fj
activities 48,299 182,870 %E
__________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ :
)
The notes on pages 75 to 179 form part of these consolidated E75F 1798 MM T K ZEE A M BERET D N

financial statements. —ZB5 o
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
mAaBlEaEiER

For the year ended 31 December 2018 & Z= ==

— N+ A=,

2018 2017
—E-N\F —ET—tF
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
B aE FET TAT
Cash flows from investing activities REZTHABEER
Interest received S @S 4,427 2,991
Purchase of property, plant and BEME KEK
equipment and intangible assets RiENEREE 12& 13 (27,888) (19,684)
Proceeds from sale of fixed assets iHE EE & EFTis 5I8 - 25
Net cash used in investing activities KB EEFTARSFRE (23,461) (16,668)
Cash flows from financing activities METEBRBEESRE
Net proceeds from issue of shares A% 10 21T FT 15 IRV E 58 - 30
Repayment of finance lease BEmERERE
obligations 25 (54) (41)
Interest paid 252 (7,468) =
Repayment of borrowing BEEE 25 - (55,835)
Proceeds from issuance of BATA MR EFH AT IR
convertible bonds 22 & 25 200,000 -
Net cash generated from/(used in) BB EEFTE, (FTA)
financing activities IR & F 58 192,478 (55,846)
Net increase in cash and cash HeRESEEY
equivalents BN A 217,316 110,356
Cash and cash equivalents at FYHReRRSEEY
beginning of year 431,736 318,916
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes, bE R E )5 B F R
net (14,004) 2,464
Cash and cash equivalents FREEGRESEEY
at end of year 17 635,048 431,736
The notes on pages 75 to 179 form part of these consolidated 57521798 KM T K ;2 S 434 B I sh &R 19

financial statements.
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HE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1 CORPORATE INFORMATION

11

1.2

General information

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands
on 9 November 2010 as an exempted company with
limited liability under the Companies Law, Cap. 22 (Law
3 of 1961, as consolidated and revised) of the Cayman
Islands. The Company’s immediate parent is CITIC
Securities Overseas Investment Company Limited (the
“CITIC Securities Overseas”), a company incorporated
in Hong Kong and its ultimate holding company is CITIC
Securities Company Limited (the “CITIC Securities”), a
company incorporated in the People’s Republic of China.
The address of its registered office is Cricket Square,
Hutchins Drive, PO Box 2681, Grand Cayman, KY1-1111,
Cayman Islands. The Company is an investment holding
company and its subsidiaries are principally engaged in
the provision of leveraged foreign exchange and other
trading, cash dealing business, and other services.

As at 31 December 2018, 59.03% of the total issued
shares of the Company are held by CITIC Securities
Overseas, 14.75% of issued shares are held by KVB
Kunlun Holdings Limited and the remaining 26.22% of
issued shares are listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).

The consolidated financial statements are presented in
Hong Kong dollars (“HK$”), unless otherwise stated.

Significant event

Pursuant to subscription agreements entered into by
the Company on 25 January 2018, the Company issued
convertible bonds with aggregate principal amount of
HK$200,000,000 on 12 February 2018 (the “Issue Date”).
The convertible bonds entitled the holders to convert them
into ordinary shares of the Company at the conversion
price of HK$0.613 (the “Conversion Price”) per share of
the Company at any time from the day following one year
from the Issue Date up to the fifth business day immediately
before the second anniversary of the Issue Date (the
“Maturity Date”) and bear interest at 7.5% per annum.
Unless previously redeemed, converted or cancelled, the
Company has to redeem the convertible bonds on Maturity
Date at 100% of the outstanding principal amount, together
with accrued interest, if any. See Note 22.

1 2AF&ER

1.1

—RER
ARARIRZ=ZZTE—ZEF+—ANABR
BRESHE RREF2E (KRE
RIEETEI—NAS—E B =550 1
HERHESaMKXILAERRERA
Ale RARzEEE AR RBPIEI
FBIMNEEBR AT ([FIEEHE
SN  —RRBEBEMK L Z AT
HERKREKRARAFEILEFRNDE
RAE ([FREERD - —KHRHPE
AR HEAMBIZEM K 2 AR o KA F]
B 5 1 % =5 55 b ik A Cricket Square,
Hutchins Drive, PO Box 2681,
Grand Cayman,KY1-1111, Cayman
Islands e " A Al & —HIREZER A
A - EB AR EZXRFREERN
INER B REAMIZ G - HERXRHER
R E M AR o

R—_ZE—N\NE+_A=+—H K
N AEBBEITIR 48 259.03%H H
ERAEFBINGH - 14.75%E FITR
9 EBKVB Kunlun Holdings Limited#F
B MEET26.22% B BEITRHNE
BHERFGMERAR ([HAA]) =
R T e
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(BT 25 -

1.2 EXREH

BEARR_ZE—N\F—A=-+H
BEI 2 RERZE - ARFIERZE
—N\F_A+=8(=/TBH]) %7
7K < 48 %8 £200,000,00078 7T 2 7]
f&1EZ - ATRRESE T3F 8 AR
AIAREITHEREGT —FRBAREER
BT BB E MM AT AT S A
8 ([B/HIA ) I BRI R R IR AR E
FH%0.61378 7T (HRRE ) H s AR
NAEZEBR - FHRERT.5% ° BRIE
IEATMEE « iR - ANAFIAR
2 HY H i R EE AR S5 2 100%E [
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B 5E22 o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STA
A 3 B 5 A Mt

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 EE@iHEEE

POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation BRI SR M ERRTEEANEESS
of these consolidated financial statements are set out below. BEREFNIT - R R AHBEI - ZEWER
These policies have been consistently applied to all the years —BHBERRBEEIFEE -

presented, unless otherwise stated.

2.1 Basis of preparation 21 REEE

The consolidated financial statements of the Company
and its subsidiaries (together the “Group”) have been
prepared in accordance with all applicable Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) and
applicable requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance (Chapter 622). The consolidated financial
statements have been prepared under the historical cost
convention, as modified by the revaluation of financial
assets and financial liabilities (including derivative
instruments) at fair value through profit or loss, which are
carried at fair value.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with
HKFRSs requires the use of certain critical accounting
estimates. It also requires management to exercise
its judgement in the process of applying the Group’s
accounting policies. The areas involving a higher degree
of judgement or complexity, or areas where assumptions
and estimates are significant to the financial statements
are disclosed in Note 4.

RRATREKBLRR (S AEEH )
AR A MR R IRIBMEERER
smE R ([ BHHREEN D)
MEBRRMED (F6228) ZEM AR
FEMREL o iR B M IS MERTHIRE L AR
AmE - WREBHREAAERF ARR
NERMEERSRAB(BETET
B) FrEsT - KRR BEIIER -

RENT BB BB IMEERRENT
BHMERARAE THEREHE - &
BEERAAREN S BREAE
LA o 08 K= A B S R R
BE - HBEREMGEAHVBEREMS
BEANEE - EHFI4NWE -



O THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

(a) New and amended standards adopted by the
Group

The Group has applied the following standards
and amendments for the first time for their annual
reporting period commencing 1 January 2018:

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments;

° HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with
Customer;

e (Classification and Measurement of Share-
based Payments Transactions — Amendments
to HKFRS 2;

e  Annual improvements 2014-2016 cycle; and

e Interpretation 22 Foreign Currency Transactions
and Advanced Consideration.

The impact of adoption of HKFRS 9 is set out in Note
2.2 and all other standards and amendments listed
above did not have material impact on the amounts
recognised in prior periods and are not expected to
significantly affect the current and future periods.

2 EEEHBERBE(E)

21 mMBEE ()
(a) FTEEERARIFTET R AT E R

AEEEN—_F—N\F—HA—H
ez FERSHHEEXERT
SR MAERT A

s FBYUBHREEAFSR =2
AEE]

s FEMBMEERFISH
[P EALA ]

e B A/ERIMHRZH
DR E BBV BHRE
AR ZE25% (BRI A

s T MFEE-TFH
iz FESE R

o REF22HINERZ KIAN
KE-

RAEEV B RERNES 2 EHN
Bi5E2.2 - T bl P A H b 2E Bl K (& FT A
HEEHRERNSRY BEANTE - 75
TS HAPENRRKPEEEETRF
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;g NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STA
A 3 B 5 A Mt

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 EZS@iHEHE(£)
POLICIES (continued)

21 REEE(E)
(b) New standards and interpretations not yet (b) 5 K ERAN B FT2E B R 72 FE

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)
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adopted

Certain new accounting standards and
interpretations have been published that are not
mandatory for 31 December 2018 reporting periods
and have not been early adopted by the Group.
The Group’s assessment of the impact of these new
standards and interpretations is set out below.

HKFRS 16, ‘Leases’, was issued in January 2016.
It will result in almost all leases being recognised
on the balance sheet, as the distinction between
operating and finance leases is removed. Under
the new standard, an asset (the right to use the
leased item) and a financial liability to pay rentals
are recognised. The only exceptions are short-term
and low-value leases. The accounting for lessors
will not significantly change. The standard will affect
primarily the accounting for Group’s operating
leases. At 31 December 2018, the Group had
non-cancellable operating lease commitments of
HK$37.4 million (2017: HK$19.2 million), see Note
3il.

LI SR MR EC R,
BR-ZE-—N\F+-_A=1+—8
¥l BRI I R 58 il AR S R AN SR
I IR F IR - NEE B % FH
AR RENEZENGRIIRT
X o

B BHRERERF165E[HE
BERZZE—AR"FE—A%M - AR
HEEHENREHREEN =
S E MR - EH BT
FTEHEARNEERBERANRE
R IBIBEFER] - BE (HEHE
EMERE) M HHESN SR
BEAERALR AR EEAR
MEHMEREEEE - HEANE
FTEREFTEHENEE o RE
B EELERAEELKEHERN
@ RIE - R -_ZE—N\FE+ A
=+—H  NEEFTAHEL
& FH & A #£37,400,0007% 7T (=
=T —+4 :19,200,000/57T) © R
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) THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 79
m/T E\j‘%iﬁil}ﬁ‘

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 EZSiHEHE(4£)

POLICIES (continued)
2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

21 RBHEE(E)
(b) [E R IRABIFTE R R 2 FE (4B)

(b) New standards and interpretations not yet

adopted (continued)

The Group does not expect the adoption of HKFRS
16 as compared with the current accounting policy
would result in a significant impact on the Group’s
results and it is expected that right of use asset
and lease liabilities of these lease commitments will
be required to be recognised in the consolidated
balance sheet. The Group will apply the standard
from its mandatory adoption date of 1 January 2019.
The Group intends to apply the simplified transition
approach and will not restate comparative amounts
for the year prior to first adoption. Right-of-use assets
for property leases will be measured on transition as
if the new rules had always been applied. All other
right-of-use assets will be measured at the amount
of the lease liability on adoption (adjusted for any
prepaid or accrued lease expenses).

There are no other standards that are not yet
effective and that would be expected to have a
material impact on the Group in the current or
future reporting periods and on foreseeable future
transactions.

REBEE - EIBITEEEERL
8 RAFBMEREERE16
TR TEHAREXREELEXN
T& AFEHZSHEREZE
EFEAEIHERE/{ARGES
BERBERTER - AEBEHR
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go NOTESTO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STA
A 3 B 5 A Mt

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 EZS@iHEHE(£)
POLICIES (continued)

2.2 Impact of adoption of HKFRS 9 22 RMERBMBRELERFIF 2LE
This note explains the impact of the adoption of HKFRS 9 MR ER R AN B B B IS iR 22 RIS
Financial Instruments on the Group’s financial statements. SRR T ENANEFUBERRZE

a5 .
(a) Adoption of HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (a) FRANE B R TR EER EIF £
AT A
HKFRS 9 replaces the provisions of HKAS 39 BB RS ERFFENKE
that relate to the recognition, classification and BEFTERIFIREHTHE
measurement of financial assets and financial ENEREERNER  pENET
liabilities, derecognition of financial instruments, 2 RIERES/HT A - £71E&
impairment of financial assets and hedge B E R EDRE TR RS -
accounting.
The adoption of HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments from H-ZT— N\F— A —HEENE
1 January 2018 resulted in changes in accounting B HmELERFESR R T A
policies and adjustments to the amounts recognised BYE T RERE B N B SRR A
in the financial statements. The new accounting REFIEAE PTAAE - FTaTBER
policies are set out in Note 2.9 below. %zﬁIJE’Q‘—FKWEZQ °
(i)  Classification and measurement () DERE=Z
On 1 January 2018 (the date of initial R=ZZF—N\F—HA—B(H
application of HKFRS 9), the Group’s RIER BB HREELSE
management has assessed which business oSt HER) - AREEEIRE
models apply to the financial assets held Bt AREFFEN SR
s by the Group and has classified its financial EERBANERERN i
< instruments into the appropriate HKFRS 9 HEemT REEHDEREENT
categories. B ISR 2E RSB 95 AA R

KVB KUNLUN FINANCIAL GROUP LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT



) THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 SEESHHEME(£)
POLICIES (continued)

2.2 Impact of adoption of HKFRS 9 (continued) 22 EAERUMBHRELERNFFE 2EE
(&)
(a) Adoption of HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (a) FHANEEHBREERFIN 2
(continued) BT A (E)
(i)  Classification and measurement (continued) (i) DRt E (&)
On the date of initial application, 1 January AERERBESH -—Z=— \F
2018, the financial instruments of the Group —A—HB  AXEESNEMT
were as follows, with any reclassifications BT - EREFHHEHEE
noted: A
Measurement category Carrying amount
HEER BEE
Original New
(HKAS 39) (HKFRS 9) Original - Remeasurement'*? New
RA(ERet A (BAGE
R8I 230%) REERZ0%) RA Eifita ]
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
TAn TR TEn
Current financial assets T
Other receivables and depostts ipElE Amartised cost Amartised cost
iz EHEA EHHA 5,863 (40) 5823
Derivative financial instruments 2RI FVPLY FVPL
BOREABRY  ROREHARE 139,567 - 139,567
Balance due from agens EhREES Amartised cost Amartised cost
0 00 88,551 (574) 87977
Cash and bank balances and R RETHERIR Amortised cost Amortised cost
client rust bank balances REETRAER SRR B 1,104,050 (426) 1,103,624
Current financal iabilities THSHER
Finance lease obligations HERSAE Amortised cost Amortsed cost
EHAA EAA 4 = 7
Other payables EfbEf3E Amortised cost Amortsed cost
EiHA B 4145 - 41452
Derivative financial instruments 2RI FUPL FUPL
BORETARE  BOnEHABAE 30,646 - 30,646
Clients' balances RF&H Amortised cost Amortised cost
T T 31,731 - 31,731 _
Non-current financial liabilty FrBRER <
Finance lease obligations HERSAE Amortised cost Amortised cost W
el sl 205 - 25 T
(1) FVPL - Financial assets/liabilities measured at (1) EAREBEFAEBEZ—IZE E
fair value through profit or loss NREFABREEZ =
SRAE BE 3
Note:The remeasurement efforts are due to the Kt - EFFEZFETIRR 1%
change of impairment provision by adoption of RN B 78 B 75 5 2E A fﬁ
HKFRS 9. SEO5R M U (B B B =
g o é%
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82 b MR

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 EZS@iHEHE(£)
POLICIES (continued)

22 FMBEBMBRERENFIR2RE
(%)

(@) RAEBUBEREERFIN T

2.2 Impact of adoption of HKFRS 9 (continued)

(a) Adoption of HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments

(continued) T A (&)

(i) Impairment of financial assets (i) = HEEERE
The Group has three types of financial assets AREEE=ZFBRBERNES
that are subject to HKFRS 9 expected credit B 7% s 5 2E B S5O TR HA(S
loss assessment: EEEFENESRmEE
e  Cash and bank balances and client trust o HENRITEKRUEE

bank balances FErtiR1T4E 84

e Balances due from agents o EINMRIBARR
e Other receivables and deposits o HhEUWFIAKIZE
The Group was required to revise its impairment AEEBMSZSHENEE
model under HKFRS 9 for each of these classes RIRE A %5k & 2R 59
of assets. HKFRS 9 replaces the incurred loss SRASE] HRER - BB
model in HKAS 39 with the expected credit loss 7% 3 5 2E Rl 5957 A TR HA(E

(*ECL”) model. A 12-month expected credit
loss allowance of HK$1,040,000 was made on
1 January 2018. There was no material change
in the amount of expected credit loss allowance
for the year ended 31 December 2018.

BEER((AMEEERDE
ANEREB & ERIE39
FHMIEEEABBRIRN - B
R_ZB—N\FE—H—BEH
1218 A WIEE EEIRRE

1,040,000 T e A& =&
—N\E+-—A=+—HI%E
EZEBEEEERESRE
WEEREF -
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THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 SEESHHEME(£)
POLICIES (continued)

2.2 Impact of adoption of HKFRS 9 (continued) 22 EAMEBUBBREERFER 2%

(&
(a) Adoption of HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (a) FHANEEHBEREERFIN 2
(continued) T A (&)

Statements

(iii) Impact on the consolidated financial

In accordance with the transitional provisions
in HKFRS 9 (7.2.15) and (7.2.26), comparative
figures have not been restated. The
adjustments were recognised in the opening
consolidated balance sheet on 1 January 2018.
The following table shows the adjustments
recognised for each individual line items. Line
items that were not affected by the changes
have not been included, and therefore the line
items disclosed do not add up to the sub-totals

and total below.

(iii) #irE M BHREx 2 ZE

RIEE S B 75 3Rk & 2E R 559
57(7.2.15) }2(7.2.26)89 3B )&
&3 WEEF BT -
BEAERCR - —N\F—
A—BHZFVmEeEEAR
FIER o NIB RS (ERIE
BFTER AR TXEE)
TEZIEEWESTEEN -
H R AT 2 [@5)E B
MIERER NRTRZ/N
TR AEETERTE -

31 December Impact of 1 January
2017 adoption of 2018
Consolidated balance sheet REEESER (R As originally HKFRS 9 Restated
(extract) presented (Note 2.2(a)(i))
RNERHE —E-N\F
R-B—tF  HREEAFSR —-A—H
+=-A=+-H A7 "ED
BEZ25 (B:22.2(3)(0)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FEL T FHL
ASSETS BE
Current assets MEBEE
Other receivables, prepayment Hft IR -
and deposits BEFERES 11,824 (40) 11,784 N
Balances due from agents R IR £ 52 88,551 (574) 87,977 il
Cash and bank balances and Be MRTEHRIR ¥
client trust bank balances EPREERITHER 1,104,050 (426) 1,103,624 I
Total assets BEmE 1,400,785 (1,040) 1,399,745 i
w
EQUITY AND LIBILITIES ERREE :\§
Equity 1% T
Retained eamings RE AT 161,704 (1,040) 160,664 @
Total equity % EE 547,207 (1,040) 546,187 Q%
E
it
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 EZS@iHEHE(£)
POLICIES (continued)

2.3 Subsidiaries 23 Mt Tl
2.3.1 Consolidation 2314588
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Subsidiaries are all entities (including structured
entities) over which the Group has control. The
Group controls an entity when the Group is
exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns from
its involvement with the entity and has the ability to
affect those returns through its power over the entity.
Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date on
which control is transferred to the Group. They are
deconsolidated from the date that control ceases.

The Group applies the acquisition method of
accounting to account for business combinations.
The consideration transferred for the acquisition of a
subsidiary is the fair values of the assets transferred,
the liabilities incurred and the equity interests issued
by the Group. The consideration transferred includes
the fair value of any asset or liability resulting from a
contingent consideration arrangement.

Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.

Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and
contingent liabilities assumed in a business
combination are measured initially at their fair
values at the acquisition date. On an acquisition-by-
acquisition basis, the Group recognises any non-
controlling interest in the acquiree either at fair value
or at the non-controlling interest’s proportionate
share of the acquiree’s net assets.

ME AR EAREBEEEEHIEN
EHNER(REEABER) -~
SEHERMIEHIERERSEE
REIR B RS A] £ (B 3 A [ e S A
Mo WHEEHERITHEREN AR
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THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 85
m/T E\j‘ % $|§ % l}ﬁ

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 EZSiHEHE(4£)

POLICIES (continued)
2.3 Subsidiaries (continued) 23 KB AT (&)

2.3.1 Consolidation (continued) 231 588K E (&)

The excess of the consideration transferred,
the amount of any non-controlling interest in the
acquiree and the acquisition-date fair value of any
previous equity interest in the acquiree over the
fair value of the Group’s share of the identifiable
net assets acquired is recorded as goodwill. If
this is less than the fair value of the net assets of
the subsidiary acquired in the case of a bargain
purchase, the difference is recognised directly in the
statement of comprehensive income.

Inter-company transactions, balances and
unrealised gains on transactions between group
companies are eliminated. Unrealised losses are
also eliminated unless the transaction provides
evidence of an impairment of the transferred asset.
Accounting policies of subsidiaries have been
changed where necessary to ensure consistency
with the policies adopted by the Group.

2.3.2 Separate financial statements

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost
less impairment. Cost includes direct attributable
costs of investment. The results of subsidiaries
are accounted for by the Company on the basis of
dividend received and receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in subsidiaries
is required upon receiving a dividend from these
investments if the dividend exceeds the total
comprehensive income of the subsidiary in the
period the dividend is declared or if the carrying
amount of the investment in the separate financial
statements exceeds the carrying amount in the
consolidated financial statements of the investee’s
net assets including goodwill.
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FEFE B 2R & B A M IS
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STA
A 3 B 5 A Mt

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.4 Segment reporting

25

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent

with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating
decision maker. The chief operating decision maker is the
person or group that allocates resources to and assesses

the performance of the operating segments of an entity.

The Group has determined the executive directors and

senior management as its chief operating decision maker.

Foreign currency translation

(a)

(b)

Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements of each
of the Group’s entities are measured using the
currency of the primary economic environment in
which the entity operates (the “functional currency”).

The consolidated financial statements are presented
in HK$, which is the Company’s functional and the
Group’s presentation currency.

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated
into the functional currency using the exchange
rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions or
valuation where items are remeasured. Foreign
exchange gains and losses resulting from the
settlement of such transactions and from the
translation at year-end exchange rates of monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are recognised in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income.

2 EEEHBERBE(E)

2.4

2.5
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O THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.5 Foreign currency translation (continued)

(c) Group companies

The results and financial position of all the Group

entities (none of which has the currency of a
hyperinflationary economy) that have a functional
currency different from the presentation currency are

translated into the presentation currency as follows:

(i)

(iii)

assets and liabilities for each balance sheet
presented are translated at the closing rate at
the date of that balance sheet;

income and expenses for each consolidated
statements of comprehensive income are
translated at average exchange rates (unless
this average is not a reasonable approximation
of the cumulative effect of the rates prevailing
on the transaction dates, in which case income
and expenses are translated at the dates of the
transactions); and

all resulting exchange differences are
recognised in other comprehensive income.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 EZS@iHEHE(£)
POLICIES (continued)

2.6 Property, plant and equipment 26 Y% -BMEKRRE

KVB KUNLUN FINANCIAL GROUP LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2018

Property, plant and equipment are stated at historical
cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment if
any. Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly
attributable to the acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’'s carrying
amount or are recognised as a separate asset, as
appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic
benefits associated with the item will flow to the Group
and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. All
other repairs and maintenance are charged to the profit or
loss during the financial period in which they are incurred.

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is
calculated using the straight-line method to allocate their
cost to their residual values over their estimated useful
lives, as follows:

Leasehold improvements 10 years or over the lease
term, whichever is shorter

Computer equipment 31to 5 years

Furniture, fixtures and 310 5 years
equipment

Motor vehicles 31to 5 years

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are
reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at each balance
sheet date. Assets that are subject to depreciation are
reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes
in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may
not be recoverable. An asset’s carrying amount is written
down immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset’s
carrying amount is greater than its estimated recoverable
amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of the
asset’s fair value less costs to sell and value in use.

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by
comparing proceeds with carrying amounts. These are
included in ‘other income’ in the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income.
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I'HE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.7

2.8

Intangible assets

The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed to
be either finite or indefinite. Intangible assets with finite
lives are amortised over the useful economic lifes (3 to
5 years) and assessed for impairment whenever there is
an indication that the intangible asset may be impaired.
The amortisation period and the amortisation method for
an intangible asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at
least at each balance sheet date.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are tested
for impairment annually. Such intangible assets are
not amortised. The useful lives of intangible assets
with indefinite lives are reviewed annually to determine
whether indefinite life assessment continues to be
supportable. If not, the change in the useful life
assessment from indefinite to finite is accounted for on a

prospective basis.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Assets that have indefinite useful lifes are not subject
to amortisation and are tested annually for impairment.
Assets that are subject to amortisation are reviewed
for impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may
not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised
for the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount
exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount
is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs to sell and
value in use. For the purposes of assessing impairment,
assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there
are separately identifiable cash inflows which are largely
independent of the cash inflows from other assets or
groups of assets (cash-generating units). Non-financial
assets other than goodwill that suffered impairment are
reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment at each
balance sheet date.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 EZS@iHEHE(£)
POLICIES (continued)

2.9 Financial assets 29 ERWMEE
2.9.1 Classification 29.1 7%
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From 1 January 2018, the Group classifies its
financial assets in the following measurement
categories:

e those to be measured subsequently at fair value
(either through profit or loss or through other
comprehensive income), and

e those to be measured at amortised cost.

The classification depends on the Group’s business
model for managing the financial assets and the
contractual terms of the cash flows.

For assets measured at fair value, gains and losses
will either be recorded in profit or loss or other
comprehensive income.

The group reclassifies debt investments when and
only when its business model for managing those
assets changes.

2.9.2 Recognition and derecognition

Regular purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised on trade-date — the date on which the
Group commits to purchase or sell the assets.

Financial assets are derecognised when the rights
to receive cash flows from the financial assets have
expired or have been transferred and the Group has
transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership.
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) THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 EZSiHEHE(4£)

POLICIES (continued)
2.9 Financial assets (continued) 29 SWMEE(E)

2.9.3 Measurement 293512

At initial recognition, the Group measures a financial
asset at its fair value plus, in the case of a financial
asset not at fair value through profit or loss (FVPL),
transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition of the financial asset. Transaction costs
of financial assets carried at FVPL are expensed in
profit or loss. Gains and losses arising from changes
in the fair value of the “financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss” category are included directly
in consolidated statement of comprehensive income
and are reported as “leveraged foreign exchange
and other trading income” in the period in which they
arise.

Certain financial assets are carried at amortised cost
using the effective interest method less impairment
if any. The Group’s receivables (including
amounts due from group companies) and “cash
and cash equivalents” fall under this category.
Amounts receivables and amounts due from group
companies are measured subsequently at amortised
cost using the effective interest rate method. Interest
on loans is included in the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income and is reported as net
interest income.
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A 3 B 5 A Mt

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 EZS@iHEHE(£)
POLICIES (continued)

29 EREE (&)
2.9.4 Impairment 2.9.4 Bt 1E

2.9 Financial assets (continued)

From 1 January 2018, the Group assesses on a
forward looking basis the expected credit losses
associated with its financial assets carried at
amortised cost. The impairment methodology
applied depends on whether there has been a
significant increase in credit risk.

2.9.5 Accounting policies applied until 31 December

2017

The Group has applied HKFRS 9 retrospectively, but
has elected not to restate comparative information.
As a result, the comparative information provided
continues to be accounted for in accordance with
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Until 31 December 2017 the Group classifies its
financial assets in the following categories:
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 EZSiHEHE(4£)

POLICIES (continued)
2.9 Financial assets (continued) 29 SWMEE(E)

2.9.5 Accounting policies applied until 31 December 29582 —_F—+F+=-HA=+—H

2017 (continued)

The classification determined on the purpose for
which the investments were acquired. Management
determined the classification of its investments at
initial recognition.

Classification

The Group classifies its financial assets in the
following categories: financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss and loans and receivables.
Management determines the classification of its
financial assets at initial recognition.

(a) Financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss are financial assets held for trading.
A financial asset is classified in this category
if acquired principally for the purpose of
selling in the short term. Derivatives are also
categorised as held for trading unless they are
designated as hedges. Assets in this category
are classified as current assets if it holds
the asset primarily for the purpose of trading
and expected to be settled within 12 months;
otherwise, they are classified as non-current.

(b) Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative
financial assets with fixed or determinable
payments that are not quoted in an active
market. They are included in current assets,
except for the amounts that are settled or
expected to be settled more than 12 months
after the balance sheet date. These are
classified as non-current assets.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 EZe:iHEHME(4£)
POLICIES (continued)

29 EREEE)
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2.9 Financial assets (continued)

2.9.5 Accounting policies applied until 31 December

KVB KUNLUN FINANCIAL GROUP LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2018

2017 (continued)

Recognition and measurement

Regular purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised on trade-date — the date on which the
Group commits to purchase or sell the assets.

Financial assets are initially recognised at fair value
plus transaction costs for all financial assets not
carried at fair value through profit or loss. Financial
assets carried at fair value through profit or loss are
initially recognised at fair value, and transaction
costs are expensed in the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income. Gains and losses arising
from changes in the fair value of the “financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss” category
are included directly in consolidated statement
of comprehensive income and are reported as
“leveraged foreign exchange and other trading
income” in the period in which they arise. Financial
assets are derecognised when the rights to receive
cash flows from the financial assets have expired
or where the Group has transferred substantially all
risks and rewards of ownership.

Loans and receivables are carried at amortised cost
using the effective interest method less impairment
if any. The Group’s receivables (including other
receivables and deposits and balances due from
agents) and “cash and cash equivalents” fall
under this category. The Group's receivables are
measured subsequently at amortised cost using
the effective interest rate method. Interest on
loans is included in the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income and is reported as net
interest income.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 EZe:iHEHME(4£)
POLICIES (continued)

2.10 Offsetting financial instruments 210 T E

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net
amount reported in the balance sheet when there is a
legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts
and there is an intention to settle on a net basis or realise
the asset and settle the liability simultaneously. The legally
enforceable right must not be contingent on future events
and must be enforceable in the normal course of business
and in the event of default, insolvency or bankruptcy of
the Company or the counterparty.

2.11 Derivative financial instruments

The Group classifies derivatives as financial assets or
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss at
inception. The Group does not classify any derivatives as
hedges in a hedging relationship.

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value on the date
a derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently
re-measured at their fair values. Gains or losses arising
from changes in the fair values are recognised in the
“leveraged foreign exchange and other trading income”
in the period in which they arise.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 EZe:iHEHME(4£)
POLICIES (continued)

2.12 Cash and cash equivalents 212 REEEEY
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Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash in hand,
deposits held at call with banks, bank deposits with
original maturities of three months or less, and bank
overdrafts.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash
flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash and
cash equivalents available for the disposition of the
Group and exclude client trust bank balances, and bank
deposits held to secure the banking facilities granted to
the Group.

2.13 Rental, utility and other deposits

Rental, utility and other deposits held on a long term basis
are stated at amortised cost using the effective interest
method less impairment if any.

2.14 Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities representing other payables are
recognised initially at fair value net of transaction costs
incurred. Financial liabilities are subsequently stated at
amortised cost; any difference between proceeds net of
transaction costs and the redemption value is recognised
in the profit or loss over the period of the other financial
liabilities using the effective interest method. Financial
liabilities are derecognised when they are extinguished
— that is, when the obligation is discharged, cancelled or
expires.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 EZe:iHEHME(4£)
POLICIES (continued)

2.15 Compound financial instruments 215EESRmTIT A

Compound financial instruments issued by the Company
comprise convertible bonds that can be converted to
share capital at the option of the holder, and the number
of shares to be issued does not vary with changes in their
fair value.

The derivative component of the convertible bonds is
recognised initially at fair value. The liability component is
recognised initially at the difference between the fair value
of the convertible bonds as a whole and the fair value of
the derivative component.

Subsequent to initial recognition, the liability component
of compound financial instruments is measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method. The
derivative is subsequently measured at fair value through
profit or loss and any gains or losses derived from its
changes are recognised in the consolidated profit or loss.

2.16 Provision

A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal
or constructive) has arisen as a result of a past event and
it is probable that a future outflow of resources will be
required to settle the obligation, provided that a reliable
estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.
When the time value of money is material, provisions are
stated at the present value of the expenditure expected to
settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability unless the probability of outflow of
economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations, whose
existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or
non-occurrence of one or more future events are also
disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the probability of
outflow of economic benefits is remote.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 EZe:iHEHME(4£)
POLICIES (continued)

2.17 Employee benefits 217EETH

(a) Retirement benefits scheme (a) EBhkEFE
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The Group operates a defined contribution
Mandatory Provident Fund retirement benefits
scheme (the “Scheme”) under the Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for all of its
employees in Hong Kong. Contributions are made
based on a percentage of the employees’ basic
salaries and are charged to the profit or loss as they
become payable in accordance with the rules of the
Scheme.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiary,
which operates in New Zealand, are eligible to
participate in KiwiSaver plan on a voluntary basis.
This subsidiary is required to contribute certain
percentage of its payroll costs to the fund only if
employees are making contribution to KiwiSaver
plan. The contributions are charged to the profit or
loss as they become payable in accordance with the
rules of the fund.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiary, which
operates in Australia, are required to participate
in employee superannuation fund. This subsidiary
is required to contribute certain percentage of its
payroll costs to the fund. The contributions are
charged to the profit or loss as they become payable
in accordance with the rules of the fund.

The assets of the Scheme and other plans as
described above are held separately from those of
the Group in an independently administered fund.
The Group’s employer contributions vest fully with
the employees when contributed into the Scheme
and other plans.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.17 Employee benefits (continued)

(b) Employee level entitlements

(c)

Employee entitlements to annual leave are
recognised when they are accrued to employees. A
provision is made for the estimated liability for annual
leave as a result of services rendered by employees
up to the balance sheet date.

Bonus

The Group recognises a liability and an expense
for bonuses, in which the bonus scheme is at the
discretion of the Group’s directors based on the
Group performance that takes into consideration
the profit attributable to the Group after certain
adjustments. The Group recognises a provision
where contractually obliged or where there is a past
practice that has created a constructive obligation.

2.18 Share-based payment transactions

(a)

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions

The Group operates a share option scheme for the
purpose of providing incentives and rewards to
eligible participants who contribute to the success
of the Group’s operations. Employees (including
directors) of the Group receive remuneration in the
form of share-based payment transactions, whereby
employees render services as consideration for
equity instruments (“equity-settled transactions”).

The cost of equity-settled transactions with
employees is measured by reference to the fair
value at the date at which they are granted. The fair
value is determined with reference to the fair value
estimated by external valuer under a valuation model
commonly used in the market.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 EZe:iHEHME(4£)
POLICIES (continued)

2.18 Share-based payment transactions (continued) 218 URBZRARF (&)
(a) Equity-settled share-based payment transactions (a) BmiZEROGZTHXE (E)

(continued)
In valuing equity-settled transactions, no account R ERAEER S - BREEZN
is taken of any performance conditions, other than N IR E A8 R 2 G ([T 5 (5
conditions linked to the price of the shares of the 1) (aRsE A ) oh + W E B
Company (“market conditions”), if applicable. RIFEHE o
The cost of equity-settled transactions is recognised, WA G KA - E R
together with a corresponding increase in equity, TRFEIE INEL S - RIS IR(F1ES
over the year in which the service conditions are EBrrzEE (RE@AEETEE
fulfilled, ending on the date on which the relevant HESETFZA(FBBRE]) &
employees become fully entitled to the award (the R)ANER -EHEBHEA - &
“vesting date”). The cumulative expense recognised BEE BRI EREER S 2
for equity-settled transactions at each balance sheet ZEMX - REEBFED S H
date until the vesting date reflects the extent to which o RAEBHRZKRBSEFEE 2
the vesting year has expired and the Group’s best R T AESE 2 &EMH - KEF
estimate of the number of equity instruments that EEBEEANRSELR - TRk
will ultimately vest. The charge or credit to the profit BEERATRFVEFLRER
or loss for a year represents the movement in the B o

cumulative expense recognised as at the beginning
and end of that year.

When the options are exercised, the Company RATIR IS IE TR BT TR
issues new shares. The proceeds received net of I o B W15 I8 (FOBRE (A
any directly transaction costs are credited to share BEEXSGHKA) » That AR -

capital.

Where the terms of an equity-settled award are RS 2N 45 & 12 ) > &2k EAS R

modified, as a minimum an expense is recognised BIZEfER—TER LI - LA
as if the terms had not been modified. In addition, BRI SRS TR o thoh - S AT
an expense is recognised for any modification, [A{ERERT - (FIRHD X H
which increases the total fair value of the share- ZHHE AR BB - B 1TEE
based payment arrangement, or is otherwise BRMEE - EET B HIPTET
beneficial to the employee as measured at the date =& o

of modification.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 EZe:iHEHME(4£)

POLICIES (continued)
2.18 Share-based payment transactions (continued) 218 URBZRARS (&)

(a) Equity-settled share-based payment transactions (a) BmiZEROGZTHAXE (&)

(b)

(continued)

Where an equity-settled award is cancelled, it is
treated as if it had vested on the date of cancellation,
and any expense not yet recognised for the award
is recognised immediately. However, if a new
award is substituted for the cancelled award, and
is designated as a replacement award on the date
that it is granted, the cancelled and new awards are
treated as if they were a modification of the original
award, as described in the previous paragraph.

The dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflected
as additional share dilution in the computation of
earnings per share.

Share-based payment transaction among group
entities

The grant by the Company of options over its
equity instruments to the employees of subsidiary
undertakings in the Group is treated as a capital
contribution. The fair value of employee services
received, measured by reference to the grant date
fair value, is recognised over the vesting periods an
increase to investment in subsidiaries undertakings,
with a corresponding credit to equity in the parent
entity accounts.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 EZe:iHEHME(4£)
POLICIES (continued)

2.19 Share capital 219 A
Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental TR D E AR - HiEREBENE
costs directly attributable to the issue of new shares or 1737 A& Bk B A A9 3T 38 B AR A FO B A
options are shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax, IBAIEEZS T Y] BB RIER A ©
from the proceeds.
Dividend on ordinary shares is recognised as a liability LB B RN ERR R E S (REA)
in the consolidated financial statements in the period HERR R AT A TS RERANER B R
in which it is approved by the shareholders or directors (=
where appropriate.
2.20 Income tax 2.20Fi 88
The tax expense for the year comprises current and FRHIESZ D BRI RIELERTE -
deferred tax. Tax is recognised in the profit of loss, except THIBERSER  EHEEREME®E
to the extent that it relates to items recognised in other WS TR B R R MR R IE B 48
comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this case BARIBEIERAN o FERZIBA T » FIEIN
the tax is also recognised in other comprehensive income DRI M 2 WS E R
or directly in equity, respectively. R o
(a) Current income tax (a) EIEFrZ#
The current income tax charge is calculated on BN EAFT1S 2 AR IR AN & [ (Y B
the basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively BB N A e AR TR U AR B
enacted at the balance sheet date in the countries XREEBE BHEEEMAD
where the Group’s subsidiaries operate and WMISENTE - BEIEERBER
generate taxable income. Management periodically A BT AR IR B 1B 5 7E HR 5T
5 evaluates position taken in tax returns with respect AR AR - WA BN
3 to situations in which applicable tax regulation is TRIRTEHRZE M R A4 R = T /Y
subject to interpretation. It establishes provisions KR E B o

where appropriate on the basis of amounts expected
to be paid to the tax authorities.

KVB KUNLUN FINANCIAL GROUP LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT



THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 EZe:iHEHME(4£)
POLICIES (continued)

2.20 FT 5% (&)
(b) EEFFiEH

2.20 Income tax (continued)

(b) Deferred income tax

Deferred income tax is recognised in full, using the
liability method, on temporary differences arising
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and
their carrying amounts in the consolidated financial
statements. Deferred income tax is determined
using tax rates (and laws) that have been enacted
or substantially enacted by the balance sheet date
and are expected to apply when the related deferred
income tax asset is realised or the deferred income
tax liability is settled.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised only
to the extent that it is probable that future taxable
profit will be available against which the temporary
difference can be utilised.

Deferred income tax is provided on temporary
differences arising on investments in subsidiaries,
except for deferred income tax liability where the
timing of the reversal of the temporary difference
is controlled by the Group and it is probable that
the temporary difference will not reverse in the
foreseeable future.

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset
when there is a legally enforceable right to offset
current tax assets against current tax liabilities and
when the deferred income taxes assets and liabilities
relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation
authority on either the taxable entity or different
taxable entities where there is an intention to settle
the balances on a net basis.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 EZe:iHEHME(4£)

POLICIES (continued)
2.21 Goods and Services Tax (“GST”)

The financial statements have been prepared so that
expenses/costs are stated inclusive of GST, where
appropriate. The Group is not a registered person in term
of the Goods and Services Tax Act 1985 in New Zealand.

2.22 Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised when it is probable that the
economic benefits will flow to the Group and when the
revenue can be measured reliably, on the following
bases:

(i) fees and commission income, when the services
have been rendered;

(i) management fees income, when the services have
been rendered; and

(iii) interest income, on an accrual basis using the
effective interest method by applying the rate that
discounts the estimated future cash receipts through
the expected life of the financial instrument to the net
carrying amount of the financial asset.

2.23 Cash dealing income

Unleveraged cash dealing services are provided to
corporate clients, in particular, those clients engaged in
money changing business for the purpose of hedging
their cash positions and meeting settlement obligations.
The Group is rewarded by the spread between the price
quoted to our clients and the price offered by our market
makers. Cash dealing income is recognised when cash
dealing transactions have been completed by market
makers with reference to prevailing exchange rate.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 EZe:iHEHME(4£)
POLICIES (continued)

2.24 Leases 2247105

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and
rewards of ownership are retained by the lessor are
classified as operating leases. Payments made under
operating leases (net of any incentives received from the
lessor), are charged to the profit or loss on a straight-line
basis over the period of the lease.

The Group leases certain property, plant and equipment.
Leases of property, plant and equipment where the Group
has substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership
are classified as finance leases. Finance leases are
capitalized at the lease’s inception at the lower of the fair
value of the leased property and the present value of the
minimum lease payments.

The corresponding rental obligations, net of finance
charges, are included in finance lease obligation. Each
lease payment is allocated between the liability and
finance charges. The corresponding rental obligations,
net of finance charges, are included in non-current
liabilities. The interest element of the finance cost is
charged to the profit or loss over the lease period so as
to produce a constant periodic rate of interest on the
remaining balance of the liability for each period. The
property, plant and equipment acquired under finance
leases is depreciated over the shorter of the asset’s useful
life and the lease term.

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and
rewards of ownership are not transferred to the Group
as lessee are classified as operating leases (Note 31).
Payments made under operating leases (net of any
incentives received from the lessor) are charged to profit
or loss on a straight-line basis over the period of the lease.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

Risk is inherent in the financial service business and sound
risk management is a cornerstone of prudent and successful
financial practice. The Group acknowledges that a balance
must be achieved between risks, control and business growth.
The principal financial risks inherent in the Group’s business
are credit risk, market risk (including interest rate risk and
foreign currency risk) and liquidity risk. The Group’s overall risk
management objective is to enhance shareholder value while
retaining exposure within acceptable thresholds in response to
changes in markets. The Group has a robust risk management
system in place to identify, analyse, assess and manage risks.

The Group’s risk management is carried out by the Group
Risk Department under policies approved by the Group audit,
risk and compliance committee. The Group Risk Department
provides written principles for overall risk management, as well
as written policies covering specific areas, such as mitigating
credit risk, market risk, liquidity risk, capital management risk
and risk limits setting and monitoring.

The policies for managing each of these risks are summarised
below:
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
3.1 Credit risk

Credit risk refers to the risk that a counterparty will default
on its contractual obligations resulting in financial loss
to the Group. The Group is exposed to credit risk from
bank balances, balances due from agents, derivative
financial instruments and other receivables and deposits.
After evaluating the clients’ risk profiles, the Group sets
stop-out levels to the clients. Once their equity drops
to the stop-out level the Group’s trading system will
automatically liquidate the client’s positions. Without
taking into account any collateral held or other credit
enhancements, the maximum exposure to credit risk
is the carrying amounts of these assets. The Group
monitors the credit risk exposure of the balances on a
regular basis, taking into account the financial position
and past experience. The Group did not experience any
losses from non-performance by the counterparties. The
balances due from agents have no defaults in the past.

The Group’s bank deposits are held with banks and
balances due from agents are held with major financial
institutions and Tianjin Precious Metals Exchange
Limited (“TPME”). Management reviews the banks and
financial institutions’ creditworthiness on a regular basis.
The banks and financial institutions are of high credit
quality and substantially with a rating of grade A or
with long established relationships. The Group is also
subject to credit risk relating to balance due from TMPE,
a recognised investment exchange under the Tianjin
Municipal People’'s Government and a related party
of the Group. The credit risk relating to the balance is
treated as any other receivables in the normal course of
business. The Group assessed its credit risk exposure as
insignificant as at 31 December 2018.
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3  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3 HKRARER (&)
3.1 SERK(E)

(a) zHEEHRE

3.1 Credit risk (continued)

(a) Impairment of financial assets

018

)

KVB KUNLUN FINANCIAL GROUP LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT

The Group has three types of financial assets
that are subject to HKFRS 9 expected credit loss
assessment:

° Cash and bank balances and client trust bank
balances;

e  Balances due from agents; and

e  QOther receivables and deposits.

The Group measures loss allowances for these
financial assets at an amount equal to 12-month
expected credit losses, which is an estimate of
losses that the Group expects will result from a credit
event, such as a payment default.

To measure the expected credit losses, the Group
determines the expected loss rates based on the
credit default rates of the debtors of these financial
assets with reference to the corresponding credit
ratings from internationally renowned credit rating
agencies. These rates are further adjusted to reflect
the possible changes in the current and forwarding
looking macroeconomic factors which may result
in different default behavior and credit risks of the
debtors. At each reporting date, the credit default
rates are updated and changes in the forward-
looking estimates are analysed.

As at 31 December 2018, the 12-month ECL
calculated by the Group is not material and there has
been no significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition.
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3 HMBEREBER (&)
3.1 Credit risk (continued) 31 FERK (&)
(a) Impairment of financial assets (continued) (a) THEZERE (&)
The movement in the provision for expected credit FRIRE RIVITERUART~E
loss account in respect of Cash and bank balances FLIRTTAE R ERRIBESBR N E
and client trust bank balances, balances due from MEW RTE RiRe 2 TAE=EE
agents and other receivables and deposits during BERBEHEZEHHT -

the year is as follows:

Cash and
bank balances
and client Balances Other
trust bank due from receivables
balances agents  and deposits Total
REREMT
EHRUREF EhRE HittEWRE
Consolidated balance sheet (extract) SAEEEER (FR) fERERITE R &8 ke @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

TRL TRL TR TR

Balance at 1 January 2017 and RERB 5 ERE305

31 January 2017 under HKAS 39 RZZ—+$-A-Ak

—Z—+F-A=+-REH - - - -

Impact on initial adoption of HKFRS 9 MEFHE AT RE LR

(Note 2.2(a)(i)) F9% 2 %2 (Hr2.2(a))) 426 574 40 1,040
Balance at 1 January 2018 RZE-N\E—-A—-R&H 426 574 40 1,040
Impairment losses recognised FERERAAEEE

during the year = = = =
Balance at 31 December 2018 RZ-N\E+-F=+-B&#H 426 574 40 1,040
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STA
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3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1 Credit risk (continued)

(b)

(c)

Maximum exposure to credit risk before collateral
held or other credit enhancements

The Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk in
the event the counterparties fail to perform their
obligations as at the balance sheet date, in relation
to each class of financial assets, is the amounts of
those assets before provision for expected credit
loss as indicated in the consolidated balance sheet.
These amounts represent the worst case scenario
of credit risk exposure to the Group at 31 December
2018 and 2017, without taking into account any
collateral held or other credit enhancements
attached.

The amounts of receivables and other assets arising
from the course of business of the Group are as

3 HMBERER(E)
3.1 FEARE)

(b) FFEL A KB IS EI2HFTHT
REEFERREE
WHFHAREREEBDRITER
T AIAREAAERESES R
BEMBNRSEERBRERR
REERBERANMTIZEEER
FRHMEEEERERNERE - %
ELRAAREENR _—_T-N\FR
—E—+F+_A=+—HFA
REEERBRHKEET - AR
T B AT A] P 45 #5490 o =X P B LA
EERER -

MARBEEG BT EEN R
REREMEESRRNOD

follows:

2018 2017
—E-N\HF —T—tF
HK$’000 HK$'000
T FET
Other receivables and deposits Hib el 8 iR & 6,901 5,863
Derivative financial instruments PTHEESRMT A 67,400 139,567
Balances due from agents JE W AR 3 45 4 22,325 88,551

Cash and bank balances and Be RIBITEBR AR
client trust bank balances RE{=LIRITE 981,192 1,104,050
Total gross amounts BEBEF 1,077,818 1,338,031

None of the financial assets is either past due or
impaired.

(c) BiESBMEEBHPIRME -
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3 MKEBRERE(F)
3.1 Credit risk (continued) 3.1 EERRE)

(d) The following table breaks down the Group’s major (d TRUSEHASAEBEEEE
credit exposure at their amounts, as categorised EER  TIREE T —N\FX
by geographical region as of 31 December 2018 —E—tHF+ - A=+—HaH
and 2017. The Group has allocated exposures BEEDIE o  REBEIRBEEEF
to regions based on the country of domicile of its FHFTE R R o i A S 2 & i
counterparties. Credit risk exposure by geographical & o 7 & D s E R AT
sectors is classified according to the location of N EE R IR F S M T
counterparties after taking into account the transfer LA %8 -
of risk.

As at 31 December 2018 R=Z2—N\F+=—H=+—H
Asia Pacific Europe
excluding and other
Hong Kong  Hong Kong regions Total
TAHE BN R
B (TREDH) HithE wst

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TR TER TEx

Other receivables and deposits HitERTIERES 4,660 2,241 - 6,901
Derivative financial instruments fTESRBTA 16 67,384 - 67,400
Balances due from agents GRS EE - 22,325 - 22,325
Cash and bank balances and Re RBTEHRAR

client trust bank balances REERRTEH 418,442 468,984 93,766 981,192
Tota izt 423,118 560,934 93766 1,077,818
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for o B 5 R 2R B
3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3 HMERKRER (&)
3.1 Credit risk (continued) 3.1 FERK(Z
(d) (continued) (d) (&)
As at 31 December 2017 R-_ZE—t+tF+_H=+—H
Asia Pacific
excluding  Europe and
Hong Kong Hong Kong  other regions Total
DAME BUM &
B (TRERH) H it & B
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

TAT TAT TAT TAT

Other receivables and deposits HinEWRIERIZE 4,019 1,844 = 5,863
Derivative financial instruments fTESBIA 21 139,546 = 139,567
Balances due from agents KRB - 88,551 = 88,551
Cash and bank balances and Re RBITEBIAR

client trust bank balances RPEERITAER 185,392 740,047 178,611 1,104,050
Total @t 189,432 969,988 178,611 1,338,031
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
3.2 Market risk

3.2.1 Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to interest rate risk as the
Group invests all surplus funds in accounts with

reputable counterparties and is susceptible to

movements in call interest rates. Interest rate risk

arises from unexpected changes in interest rates

that may result in an adverse impact on the Group’s

current and near future performance. The Group has

not used any interest rate swaps nor forward interest

rate contracts to hedge its exposure to interest rate

risk.

As at 31 December 2018

fk 0 B 25 A B

MRERER (&)
3.2 miEEE
3.2.1 7| F 7 2

HRARERABERBESIRE
REBEREHFHIORPARE
MEZMERBNTZE  WAE
EmEHEMERRER - FERRERIRA
MEREBINKE) » REEHE A
SEERE RATBRIBEL T
FE o AN B RF B AEMRF R
1= BRSR BN R & 40 3 B R
R

R-ZE—NF+=-A=+—H

Floating Fixed Non-  Provision for
interest interest interest expected
rate rate bearing credit loss Total
BHEE
FEF= B 2= %8 BREE st
HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TER TER TER TER
Assets BE
Other receivables and deposits  E it BB Rk & - - 6,901 (40) 6,361
Derivative financial instruments  $T4 & @ T A - - 67,400 - 67,400
Balances due from agents eI B i oA 2,300 - 20,025 (574) 21,751
Cash and bank balances and & RIRITEH I K
client trust bank balances RPERRITAER 810,573 169,045 1,574 (426) 980,766
Liabilities &f
Finance lease obligations BMERSHAE - 188 - - 188
Other payables Hith TR - 5,835 14,350 - 20,185
Derivative financial instruments #7448 T & - - 5,374 - 5,374
Clients’ balances RE &% - - 331,731 - 331,731
Convertible bonds RRES - 191,065 - - 191,065
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114 NOTESTO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STA
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3 BBERER (&F)
3.2 Market risk (continued) 3.2 TiERER (&)
3.2.1 Interest rate risk (continued) 3.2.1 FIZE [z (&)
As at 31 December 2017 R—_E—+tF+_H=+—H

Floating Fixed Non-

interest interest interest
rate rate bearing Total
FENF & (&l ¢ il = %8 Bt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

TAT TAT TAT TAT

Assets EE
Other receivables and deposits Hin g E kRS = = 5,863 5,863
Derivative financial instruments fTESBMTA = = 139,567 139,567
Balances due from agents ERRE LS 3,331 = 85,220 88,551
Cash and bank balances and Re RETHEBIAR
client trust bank balances BPERRTER 1,021,105 80,883 2,062 1,104,050
Liabilities &ff
Finance lease obligations MEMS AL - 252 - 252
Other payables H A1 58 = = 41,452 41,452
Derivative financial instruments fTESRMTA - - 30,646 30,646
Clients’ balances RE#EH - - 766,182 766,182
Based on the simulations performed and with other IR R mME MR S EER
variables held constant, should the interest rate HAEEE - (HFRIE2S N
increase/decrease by 1%, the profit after taxation for 1% Bz — N\F+ A
g the year ended 31 December 2018 would increase/ =+ —HIEFENBRTE RN
decrease by approximately HK$8,129,000 (2017: 1240 R 498,129,0005% 7T (—
HK$10,244,000) and the equity would increase/ T —+£F : 10,244,00058 7T) &
decrease by approximately HK$8,129,000 (2017: HEZS G AN Rk 24 498,129,000
HK$10,244,000). BT (ZF—+ 4 : 10,244,000

HIT) e
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THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.2 Market risk (continued)

3 HMBERER(E)
3.2 MiEAK (&)

3.2.2 Foreign currency risk 3.2.2 JPE 7 B

Exchange rate fluctuation is the most significant risk
in leveraged foreign exchange trading. The Group
takes on exposure to the effects of fluctuations in
the prevailing foreign currency exchange rates on
its financial position and cash flows. The Group
is exposed to foreign exchange risk arising from
various currency exposures, primarily with respect
to New Zealand dollars and Australian dollars.
The Group will suffer a loss if it fails to cover a
client deal at a better exchange rate. The Group
monitors foreign exchange exposure by reviewing
the open position of the Group and client trading
performance. The risk is measured by the use
of sensitivity analysis and cash flow forecasting.
Specific risk limits are set to measure and monitor
foreign exchange risk. Any excessive foreign
exchange risks are passed on to other financial
institutions through execution of trades with those
institutions. The management sets limits on the
level of exposure by currency and in aggregate for
both overnight and intra-day positions, which are
monitored on an intra-day basis.

The Group has certain investments in foreign
operations, whose net assets are exposed to foreign
currency translation risk. The Group currently does
not have a foreign currency policy to hedge its
currency exposure arising from the net assets of the
Group’s foreign operations.

The Group trades in foreign currencies, commodities
and other products through its margin trading
business. In order to protect against their exposures
to fluctuations in foreign exchange rates and
commodity prices, the Group has entered into a
number of foreign exchange forward transactions
and contracts for difference with the Group’s
bankers in the normal course of business.

M RZ B HIEAR A IMER &
BEARMER - NEBE OB
MASREANREREXREEHN
FEMAERR - REBAZIA
AL PE 38 T BORIT 8 E Y B R SME
Rz o fid AN SR B R BE 4% BB £ B =
EITEPRS @ AIBRZEX -
AREBFERBEEANEBHRTR
BHINEPRZRAEEINER
B2 - ERR JYBE A A SRR DT
MR RERAEFET EEITE
E - RFERBRRSIATERE
22 SN JEL g2 1 AR (AR AR SME
RV 535 28 B HL ) <5 R AR ETT
REEBBEZEHE - EEEY
[BERMENBR R B8 KA
ERRBRIKFRERRE  RNEH
Ry fE] A T IABESR -

AREFHEETBINEBRE
HEEFEm RIS H B E kR
ANEE B B Al I I E SMNEBRR
AR AR BB K EEF
BEEEMINERR -

o

REBFERERIC R HEBHE
TINE  AmREMERRS -
RREAREETRER L EME
BRB 2 BB E  NEBRIE
BEBGEREP RBEERRITRIL
ZIRIMNEERR G N EZEBEH °

A= it

E i R % < P A L PR )
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3 HMBEREBER (&)
3.2 Market risk (continued) 3.2 miERAR (&)
3.2.2 Foreign currency risk (continued) 322 JMER B2 ()
The tables below summarise the Group’s exposure TERMAREER=_F—N\FR
to foreign currency exchange rate risk as at 31 —F—tHF+-_A=+—HMHER
December 2018 and 2017. Included in the tables are BIZNE @B o TRAAETE
the assets and liabilities at carrying amounts in HK$ FBEREEYRIIZRE®E 5 HEK
equivalent, categorised by the original currency. BENBE-
As at 31 December 2018 R-ZE—N\FE+=-HA=+—H
Provision
for
expected
credit
HK$ NzD AUD usb JPY RMB  Others loss Total
BEEE

An #EER  An XX HE AR®  Et EEBE 4
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEn TEn THEx TEz TEx TEx TFEr TErR TEn

Assets £E

Other receivables and deposits EfERFERESE 3,971 436 - 939 - 1585 - (40) 6,861
Derivative financial instruments 74 £ &8 T & - 1314 8841 51,185 - - - - 67,400
Balances due fromagents ~ EMAELH 212 646 201 18950 1,206 501 510 (574 21,751

Cashand bank balancesand B2 RBTEHUR
client trust bank balances RPEFROES 30781 24308 34,680 875825 4288 9720 1,500 (426) 980,766

018

S Liabilities af
Finance lease obligations REREHE - - 188 - - - - - 188
Other payables AR 10,748 728 331 7864 1 513 - - 20,185
Derivative financial instruments 74 £ # T & - 1,100 121 4147 - - - - 5314
Clients’ balances RPis - 832 27549 278921 1,043 - - - 331,731
Convertible bonds MRRES 191,065 - - - - - - - 191,065
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fk 0 B 25 A B

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3 MEEBRER (A
3.2 Market risk (continued) 3.2 miERAR (&)
3.2.2 Foreign currency risk (continued) 322 JMER B2 ()
As at 31 December 2017 RZE—tFTA=+—H

H  NZD  AUD  USD  JPY  RMB  Others  Tot
An @B®n  BRr Xt AR ARE  Ef £
HK$000 HKS000 HK$000 HKS000 HK$000 HKS000 HKS000  HK$00
L TEL TET TER TEL TR TEL  TEn

Assets EE

Other receivables and deposits £ EMFER &% 3710 130 262 308 - 1453 - 5863
Derivative financial instruments #7448 T A - 6976 9009 123578 4 = - 139567
Balances due from agents el B £ 198 2016 213 80,184 789 4610 541 88551
Cash and bank balancesand 38 € RERTEHU K

client trust bank balances EPREERTED 5165 19416 32427 1007690 7225 10604 1523 1,104,050
Liabilities g

Finance lease obligations BAMEAE - - 252 - - - - 252
Other payables At A 7,386 9%5 1,148 31134 2 817 )
Derivative financial instruments  $74 £ & T & - 1874 0 28742 - - - 30646
Clients' balances ey - 21037 30864 710954 3527 - - 766,182

JAEAEH

x
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3 HMBERER(E)
3.2 Market risk (continued) 3.2 miERER (&)
3.2.2 Foreign currency risk (continued) 322 JMER B2 ()
The following table indicates the impact of TRIINERENSIETEES —
management’'s reasonable expectation on the TE-NEFER_ZE—tF+=A8
movement in foreign exchange rate on the Group’s =+ —BARKERTIE RN R
profit after taxation and on equity as at 31 December T Y S7|N DR R OR% N Y S 22

2018 and 2017:

Movement Movement
in foreign in foreign
currency 2018 currency 2017
Foreign currency risk SN L B HERE —EB-NEF SNERE) Tt
HK$°000 HK$'000
THET FHET
AUD SRIT +/-1% +/-1,087 +/-6% +/-589
JPY =Nl +/-4% +/-142 +/-5% +/-224
NZD A EEEE T +-1% +/-540 +/-5% +/-233
RMB ARE +/-5% +/-568 +/-4% +/-634
3.3 Liquidity risk 3.3 MEER B
The Group’s operations are subject to various statutory NREENEBSERARERENSE
liquidity requirements as prescribed by the relevant EEREE S ERFR - AEBEE
authorities. The Group has put in place a monitoring NESIE R RERS TR E
system to ensure that it maintains adequate liquid capital S ANEBRNEREAEREES K&
to fund its business commitments and to comply with the BIPEIRESK o NEE S BT HiES
= regulatory requirements. The liquidity risk of the Group is BRI TEERESE S ERKEREER

managed by regularly monitoring current and expected R - BERAEEEEEHNNIRS
liquidity requirements to ensure that it maintains sufficient EELERSEES AmEERE R
reserves of cash and current working capital to meet its EHRHESENRK - NREBEG B

liquidity requirements in the short and longer term. The MBS N EHFEREERARE -

Group holds sufficient cash and deposits on demand to
repay its liabilities.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
3.3 Liquidity risk (continued)

3.3.1 Undiscounted cash flows by contractual
maturities

The table below presents the cash flows payable
by the Group under financial liabilities by remaining
contractual maturities as at 31 December 2018 and
2017. The amounts disclosed in the table are the
contractual undiscounted cash flows assuming no
conversion of the convertible bonds up to maturity.

As at 31 December 2018

3 HMBERER(E)
3.3 REMERE (&)
3.3.1 BEREF H B 75 B KRB

BEnE

TREINAEBR _F—N\FR
—Et+tF+TZRA=+—RHEHK
TEOZHARERAEERTH
BNRERE - ZRABEENE
BERAAHNAMBERASRE  BRR
HEIHAY | RRESES

}g‘%o

R=FB-NF+=-A=+—H

Upto 1-3 3-12 1-5 Over
1month  months  months years  5years Total
-2 =z

-8Rk =EA T+zfA -ZIf ALE o
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HKS$'000
TEr FHBR TErR TEx FEx  FE=n

Liabilities a8
Finance lease obligations REMERE 4 9 38 155 - 206
Other payables EfufE58 14,182 5,842 161 - - 20,185
Clients' balances RP&H 331,731 - - - - 331,731
Debt portion of the convertible bonds MHEREHFERHD - 7,561 7430 207,561 - 222561
345,917 13,412 7,638 207,716 - 574,683
Derivative financial instruments fTESRTE 5,374 - - - - 5,374
351,291 13,412 7,638 207,716 - 580,057
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATE
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3 HMBEREBER (&)
3.3 Liquidity risk (continued) 3.3 mEIMEREE (&)
3.3.1 Undiscounted cash flows by contractual 331 & A EF HE 7 B KB H
maturities (continued) BEmE (&)
As at 31 December 2017 RZE—+tF+=—A=+—H
Upto 1-3 3-12 1-5 Over
1 month months months years 5years Total
-5 =%

—EAA =R @R -EI%¥ NS @it
HK$000  HK$000  HK§000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000
TER TAR TAT TATL TER TER

Liabilities g

Finance lease obligations BEMEAE 5 9 42 228 - 284

Other payables At fEFE 39,322 6 2,124 - - 41452

Clients’ balances RP&EH 766,182 - = = - 766,182
805,509 15 2,166 228 - 807,918

Derivative financial instruments  $T£& @ T & 30,646 - = = - 30,646
836,155 15 2,166 228 - 838,564
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3 HKRAKRERE(E)

34 TREERBENQIRME

3.4 Fair value of financial assets and liabilities

3.4.1 Financial instruments measured at fair value

The following table represents the carrying value of
financial instruments measured at fair value at the
balance sheet date across the three levels of the
fair value hierarchy defined in HKFRS 7, Financial
Instruments: Disclosures, with the fair value of each
financial instrument categorised in its entirety based
on the lowest level of input that is significant to that
fair value measurement. The levels are defined as
follows:

Level 1 (highest level): fair values measured using
quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets.

Level 2: fair values measured using quoted price in
active markets for similar financial instruments, or
using valuation techniques in which all significant
inputs are directly or indirectly based on observable
market data.

Level 3 (lowest level): fair values measured using
valuation techniques in which any significant input is

not based on observable market data.

As at 31 December 2018

341 BARBEFTENLHMT A

TREJNEE BIRE BV B
SEANE7TRIEBRTH - BHE
FISE R AR EFRSIE R =13
FERPARAEFENETHRT R
WEREE  SESRIANAAR
EREESEHRENEZAAE
AFTEREBENERETRSE -
EHESRERDOT :

FIR(ZEBEFER) - N AEER
MEFRFRE CREFAR)AER
ffE -

F2ff : AR EFEZRIERT
SRS ITENRE - KA
HERNEE - E2HEENL2
BV EERKBEE RN AIBET
B8R -

FIR (HEFR) : 2AEMER
HERME - EREENS2H
BRI Al BLER T IS B

R=FB-NF+=-A=+—H

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

F18 F24 ERE @t

HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
THERT TER TER TER "
Assets BE <
Derivative financial instruments #7442 & T E - 67,400 - 67,400 b
=
2
Liabilities B =
Derivative financial instruments ~ $T4& @@ T A - 5,374 - 5,374 %ﬂ
Embedded derivative portion of A& (&% Z SRA R ?é
the convertible bonds TTHET ARG - - 13,500 13,500 ;ij
{%
it
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3  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3 HKRAKRERE(E)
34 SHMEBEEREEBENARE (&)

341 BARBFENEH T A (&)

3.4 Fair value of financial assets and liabilities (continued)

3.4.1 Financial instruments measured at fair value

018

)
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(continued)

As at 31 December 2017

R_F—tHF+_-_HA=+—8H

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
ERE Fom F3M% Bt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FHT THT FET
Assets BE
Derivative financial instruments ~ #T4£ @ T & = 139,567 = 139,567
Liabilities a%
Derivative financial instruments #7442 & T & = 30,646 = 30,646

The fair value of financial instruments that are not
traded in an active market is determined by using
valuation techniques. These valuation techniques
maximise the use of observable market data where
it is available and rely as little as possible on entity
specific estimates. If all significant inputs required
to fair value an instrument are observable, the
instrument is included in level 2.

The fair value of forward foreign exchange contracts
is determined using forward exchange rates at the
end of the reporting period, with the resulting value
discounted back to present value.

Embedded derivative portion of the convertible
bonds is classified within Level 3 as it is mainly
driven by the valuation of the convertible bonds
using binomial model adjusted with liquidity, credit
and market risk factors as the Group may deem
necessary.

WIHRERTEEE 2R T
B -HARERABERNE
E ° s FEERIMFE D £/ A
SRR EBREMBEE - KA B
TMRER B EMFT - WIRAR
EFfE-—HTAMFTNRMEE
SN ERERS - AIZIETA
BRI

EHINER O AR ERRED
REVEHIEREE - FTELME
ERRERET@EE -

AT BB 4 B A ST A T BB 5
SEAEMM  HEBEAIR
Y AR (%
o EARETERATER
RBES  EERTHEAREE
R



O THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS |
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3 MKERERGE)
3.4 Fair value of financial assets and liabilities (continued) 34 eREEREBNAAE(E)
3.4.1 Financial instruments measured at fair value 341 BAREFNENETMT A (F)
(continued)
The following table summarises the quantitative TR =—_ZE—NF+_A4
inputs and assumptions used for valuing convertible =+—HAAR AR B34 Y
bonds which is categorised in Level 3 of the fair AR ESMEMEANECE
value hierarchy as of 31 December 2018: ABEMERE :
Fair value at
31 December ~ Valuation Significant  Relationship of significant
Description 2018  technique inputs inputs to fair value
ik RZB-N\E
+=A=+-8H
MARE  HER EXBAE EABAEHEAAREBEZENERG
HK$'000
TER
Embedded derivative portion of 13,500  Binomial model  Volatility A change in volatility by 5% would
the convertible bonds increase/(decrease) the fair value
by approximately HK$288,000/
(HK$86,000)
MRREFRANTELAS R ZIHAER R IE KIBEE5% - A E/EMm/ (L)
#1288,000/ 7T/ (86,0007 7T)

Share price A change in share price by 5%
would increase/(decrease) the fair
value by approximately HK$82,000/
(HK$63,000)

B REZE5% AR ERHEM/ (D)
#182,0007 7T/ (63,0007 7T)

Discount rate A change in discount rate by 5% would
(decrease)/increase the fair value
by approximately HK$(199,000)/
HK$208,000

LR BREEE5%  AnER(RD) /5
47 (199,000) 7 7T,/ 208,000% 7T

JAEAEH
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3 BBERER(E)
3.4 Fair value of financial assets and liabilities (continued) 34 eREEREBNAARE(E)
3.4.1 Financial instruments measured at fair value 341 BAREFEHNLTHET A (&)
(continued)
The following table presents the movement in Level 3 TRENHEZE=_Z—N\F+=A
instruments for the year ended 31 December 2018: =+—HIEFEANFIHFRITAZ

Embedded
derivative portion of
the convertible bonds

AR E S R AR
$THE T A S5
HK$'000
F&T

Opening balance F YR =
Upon issuance of convertible bonds BT RRES 42,040
Deferred losses upon issuance BIT1R 2 IREEIE (4,480)
Change in fair value included in the FFAZEREEZRZAREZY

statement of comprehensive income (26,042)
Amortisation of deferred losses on SR 30 IR X B 18 3

conversion component 1,982
Ending balance FREEER 13,500
Change in fair value for level 3 instruments R—_Z— N\FE+_A=+—H

= held at 31 December 2018 FiisEE3RITAE A RE
e (26,042)

There have been no significant transfers between RNEE—_ZE—N\FER_ZFE—+
level 1, level 2 and level 3 for the year ended 31 F+_A=+—HILFEE - F1
December 2018 and 2017. - ZB2AN N B 3AN It B KEE
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3 HKRAKRERE(E)
34 SHMEBEEREEBENARE(E)

342 WHBAAREFNEHNTHBEE

3.4 Fair value of financial assets and liabilities (continued)

3.4.2 Financial assets and liabilities not measured at

fair value

As at 31 December 2018 and 2017, the fair value
of the Group’s financial assets and liabilities not
measured at fair value are not materially different
from their carrying amounts due to their short
maturities.

Balances due from agents and other receivables
include the contractual amounts for settlement of
trades and other obligations due to the Group.

Clients’ balances represent the margin deposits
received from clients and the unrealised profit or
loss from their trading activities under normal course
of business. Their carrying values are a reasonable
approximation of fair value.

REE

REB—N\ER-F—t&F+=
A=+—8 - ENAEEL IR
ARAEHENEREERBEN
BHERE - MEAREERLR
EELHEAER -

JE A IR 5 R S EL R R TR B
RENASEBRARGENRZNE
HFRIE R B EAL -

B EERIEIN IEH 15 EIEH
REPHRBE TR LM EFET
BEIEBH RIS N N E1E -
FHEEEQAALEMRE -

i

J\AEAE

x
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATE
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3 BBERER(E)
3.4 Fair value of financial assets and liabilities (continued) 34 SRMEERBBENAAE(E)
3.4.3 Offsetting financial assets and financial liabilities 343 B EHEERTHER

(a) ZREE

(a) Financial assets

The following financial assets are subject

to offsetting, enforceable master netting

arrangements and similar agreements.

As at 31 December 2018

T EREESEN - AR
FIITHR —F G E LR

AP ARR -

RZE—N\E+=ZA=+—H

Related amounts not set off

in the balance sheet
PRREEEER
BHENERRE
Gross
amounts of Net
recognised amounts
Gross financial  of financial
amounts of liabilities assets
recognised setoffin presented in Cash
financial ~ the balance  the balance Financial collateral Net
assets sheet sheet instruments received amount
REE
BERAES BEEERRK
ERISR CRIALR  KEHM BER
EEGE  SfNE SREETE  SEIA HeHAR B8
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
2 THR THR THER ThAR ThAR THR
Derivative financial fTESHTH
instruments 108,121 (40,721) 67,400 - - 67,400
Total @t 108,121 (40,721) 67,400 - - 67,400
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3 M¥ERERE)
3.4 Fair value of financial assets and liabilities (continued) 34 eREEREBNAAE(E)
3.4.3 Offsetting financial assets and financial liabilities 43 Yt eHEERSHME R (&)
(continued)
(a) Financial assets (continued) (a) =HEE (&)
As at 31 December 2017 R_ZF—tF+-_A=1+—H

Related amounts not set off

in the balance sheet
PTAREERRR
BHNABNE
Gross
amounts of Net
recognised  amounts of
Gross financial financial
amounts of liabilities assets
recognised setoffin  presented in Cash
financial  the balance  the balance Financial collateral Net
assets sheet sheet  instruments received amount
BERNESE BEEERA
BERER CEILR  MEIH BER
RERE  AREAT oREENE  ERIA LeHfq #

HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEL TEL TEL TEL TEL TEL

Derivative financial fTEERTA
instruments 217,652 (78,085) 139,567 - - 139,567
Total @it 217,652 (78,085) 139,567 - - 139,567

1

J\AEAES

x
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATE
Ak 0 B 25 A B

3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3 HMBEREREEE)
3.4 Fair value of financial assets and liabilities (continued) 34 SRMEERBBENAAE(E)
3.4.3 Offsetting financial assets and financial liabilities 43 Yt eHEERSHMERE (&)
(continued)
(b) Financial liabilities (b) TEHEE
The following financial liabilities are subject T E&maEZEE - alasl
to offsetting, enforceable master netting HITHm— FREE T AN
arrangements and similar agreements. Fhrm AR PR o
As at 31 December 2018 R=Z-NF+=A=+—H
Related amounts not set off
in the balance sheet
PAREEEER
EHNBERE
Gross
amounts of Net
recognised amounts
Gross financial  of financial
amounts of assets liabilities
recognised setoffin presented in Cash
financial ~the balance the balance Financial collateral Net
liabilities sheet sheet instruments pledged amount
REE
BERAEH EEEERR
ERALE CERIER  MEIN 2R
BEAE  BELE SRHEERE  SRIA REKHAm B8
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TER THR THR iR iR
Derivative financial fTESmIA
instruments (46,095) 40,721 (5,374) - - (5,374)
Total by (46,095) 40,721 (5,374) - - (5,374)
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fk 0 B 25 A B

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3 HM¥ERERE)
3.4 Fair value of financial assets and liabilities (continued) 34 eREEREBNAAE(E)
3.4.3 Offsetting financial assets and financial liabilities 43 Yt eHEERSHME R (&)
(continued)
(b) Financial liabilities (continued) (b) ZEEE (&)
The following financial liabilities are subject NTEmaEZHEE - aas
to offsetting, enforceable master netting TR —FREEE B AL
arrangements and similar agreements. hEERR o
As at 31 December 2017 RZZE—+tF+=-A=1+—H

Related amounts not set off

in the balance sheet
TAREERRR
BHNARE
Gross
amounts of Net
recognised amounts
Gross financial  of financial
amounts of assets liabilities
recognised setoffin  presented in Cash
financial  the balance  the balance Financial collateral Net
liabilities sheet sheet  instruments pledged amount
AERAEHE SERERA
BERER CEAER  MEIH BER
AfEEE  AEAT cRARFE  eRIE HefHm HE

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TR TR TRET TRT TR

Derivative financial fTESRMTE
instruments (108,731) 78,085 (30,646) - - (0e)
Total st (108,731) 78,085 (30,646) - - (30,646) <

x

E i R % < P A L PR )
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3 BBERER(E)
3.4 Fair value of financial assets and liabilities (continued) 34 eREEREBNAARE(E)
343 %L HEERCHEE ()

3.4.3 Offsetting financial assets and financial liabilities
(continued)

(b) Financial liabilities (continued) (b) ZEIEE (&)
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For the financial assets and liabilities subject
to enforceable master netting arrangements or
similar arrangements above, each agreement
between the Group and the counterparty allows
for net settlement of the relevant financial assets
and liabilities when both elect to settle on a
net basis. In the absence of such an election,
financial assets and liabilities will be settled
on a gross basis, however, each party to the
master netting agreement or similar agreement
will have the option to settle all such amounts
on a net basis in the event of default of the
other party. Per the terms of each agreement,
an event of default includes failure by a party
to make payment when due; failure by a party
to perform any obligation required by the
agreement (other than payment) if such failure
is not remedied within 30 days after notice of
such failure is given to the party; or bankruptcy.

B bt AT SR BT — %
AR LRSI LU LZFERR
NEREERABMS @ A
SEEIZGHFRITNZTE
W R BT
MEE  BRIPFRGENRR
MBEERAE - HERBIF
HZEERNBERT A&
EMBERSREEELER
B BE-BH—FRBHENK
G ZEAESR — T EL

ER— B ERFLFEE
EEEEMBERBEESR - 1R
BEEBZEAOIGR - BOF
B R — T REE A B HAFK
I8 AR — 5 RBEETT Wi
Fr M E B B AE (N 5RER SN -
BRAETR D W EZ 4B A
E1R30KHAR MR BEVE 18
KiEHE  RAKE -
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THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.5

3.6

Financial instruments by category

All the financial assets and financial liabilities (including
cash and bank balances, client trust bank balances,
balance due from agents, other receivables and deposits,
clients’ balances, debt portion of the convertible bonds,
other payables and finance lease obligations) in the
consolidated balance sheet are carried at amortised
cost using the effective interest method except for the
derivative financial instruments and the derivative portion
of the convertible bonds which are carried at fair value.

Capital management

The Group’s objectives when managing capital, which
is a broader concept than the “equity” on the face of
balance sheet, are:

e To comply with the liquid capital requirements
under the Securities and Futures Commission in
Hong Kong, Australian Securities and Investments
Commission in Australia and the Securities
Commission in New Zealand for its subsidiaries
which are licensed corporations;

e To safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern so that it can continue to provide
returns for shareholders and benefits for other
stakeholders;

e To support the Group's stability and growth; and

e To maintain a strong capital base to support the
development of its business.

3 MBEREREE)

3.5

3.6

REREIHNEMITA

HAEERBERANEZHEREEN
TRBE(ERRSRRTESR T
FErEiRITHE SR - BIRARIRGERR - B
hRRUGRIAENIZ® - BPMARR - AR
BB 2 B AR - BB FRIA S
BB TH B AR ) 1L B SH A AN A B R A
TEANFR - AR AR BARNITES
BT AR AR E S 2 PTE T AL
BRON o

BEXEE

REEER (MEREEABRN 1
m| ERER)EENEE Al :

o FBFREEEMNMEBARME -
RNEBEARLFRMESEHERS
B EMNMRNESEREE
BEEeRMAMESFZEEN
MEBEERTE

s REAKSENFELEEN A
RIBRIR R E M AR E R
(= 3 Ko Al 2

s XFRAKRENREMER &

s MRNRBEMEANER UXFHH
FHRER -
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3 HM¥ERERE)
3.6 Capital management (continued) 3.6 EXEE (&)
The Group’s gearing ratio at the balance sheet date is AREBREEHWABEL RO ¢

shown below:

2018 2017

—=E-N\F —ZT—+4F

HK$’000 HK$'000

F#ET FET

Total debt (R T GE] 191,253 252

Total equity B E 571,706 547 227

Gearing ratio BELL = 33.5% 0.05%

Total debt includes finance lease obligations and B AEZE B R A T EAE R A AR

convertible bonds. & o

All licensed corporations within the Group complied with NEBE T \FER_ZT—+F|LF

their required liquid capital during the years ended 2018 E - AEEMFAGEEE D EBSTE
and 2017. MBESRKE °

4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND 4 SEZ&t{istR e

JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and fhet R H BT BT L - WIAB TR M
are based on historical experience and other factors, HithAEZAER  SIEEREIEF L NEE
including expectations of future events that are believed to be HWARARKEHEHNESIETELE o

reasonable under the circumstances.
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THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (continued)

4.1

4.2

Critical accounting estimates and assumptions

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning
the future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by
definition, seldom equal the related actual results. The
estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk of
causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are
fair value of share options and derivative portion of the
convertible bonds.

The Group determines the fair value of share options
at the date at which they are granted and the fair value
of derivative portion of the convertible bonds at each
reporting date with reference to the fair value estimated
under a valuation model which are commonly used in
the market. The assumptions used in computing the fair
value of the share options are subject to managements’
best estimation. Changes in assumptions about these
assumptions could affect reported fair value of share
options and derivative portion of the convertible bonds.
Management use their judgments to make assumptions
that are mainly reference to the historical data of
comparable listed companies.

More details of the assumptions made are included in
Note 22 and 26 to the consolidated financial statements.

Critical judgements in applying the Group’s
accounting policies

Management of the Group has not made any significant
critical judgements in applying the Group’s accounting
policies.

4 EBEESEERAEE)

4.1

4.2

BRI AT RER

AR B ® PR KAE (AR M RR -
EEZ ST ETBRARDEEEE
PREGRBAT At RIBREFER T —
MRFEEHEERABBEZREEFSL
EARBZEARRSBRENA R
BERABRBESFZITET ARG -

AREB2EREMSBEER ZMHE
RAEET 2 AR EEERBERE G
BHZAREBERABRRESTETA
BN EREBHPRZAAE - 5TERE
BHEZAAREMAZBREREERE
EhREMGET - REFBRRELEZR
REPAETEMZMIBRIER R
BERABRBRESZIOTETASD - &
BEERAIE YER2EAELL
REM AR ZELBIRIEHRER

BREAFMEHBRERZ EZFHBEHNGEE
B 755 3 2% B 5E 22 K2 26 ©

ERAEE S BRBFHZEER
) iR

AR BB I 2 (= R L AN R [ P FE AR Y
BRTBORE I E A 2 2 3B -

DA

E i R % < P A L PR )
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STA
A 3 B 5 A Mt

SEGMENT REPORTING

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent
with the internal reporting provided to the executive directors
and senior management of the Group. The Group’s operating
businesses are structured and managed separately according
to the natures of their operations and the services they provide.
Each of the Group’s business segments represents a strategic
business unit that offers services which are subject to risks
and returns that are different from those of the other business
segments. The Board of Directors considers the business from
a geographical and product perspective.

Summary details of the business segments are as follows:

(a) the margin dealing segments engage in the provision
of leveraged foreign exchange, commodity and index
trading services in Australia, Hong Kong and New
Zealand;

(b) the unleveraged cash dealing segment engages in the
provision of non-leveraged foreign exchange trading
services in New Zealand. Unleveraged cash dealing
services were provided to corporate clients, in particular,
those clients engaged in money changing business for
the purpose of hedging their cash positions and meeting
settlement obligations. The Group is rewarded by the
spread between the price quoted to our clients and the
price offered by our market makers; and

(c) the People’s Republic of China (“PRC”) business segment
engages in provision of trading and settlement of
precious metals in PRC.

Inter-segment transactions, if any, are conducted with
reference to the prices charged to third parties and there was
no change in the basis during the years ended 31 December
2018 and 2017.

7 EBERE

REDHOBMELT AN BRAAKRERITES
EEREEBRHENANBRSE 2 - AK
E & e XM R L EEE KA AR
BoRAEMNEER - AEBE NEEED
B RIREIRG RSB AL - KRS
P2 B\ B B R A RIS Bl S 75 9 &6 o
EFeitwEREMARERERS -

BREEG D BNFBHEmT

(a) RBSRFHEBREBRRM - TB R
MR EEEINE - B R EH
R R%s

(b) JFERARESRFH AR FENAIERH
REIFERENINER 5 R - AEE
AARREFEHMIFEREARERZ SR
% LERZEREIMRERESE T
METHEEEEMS2EBEE L IRER
WEPF - ARERTEFPHRESR
REB TSGR IEHAER S RIE
B R

(c) HREARLME ([HE])EHED R
ERFRERECBRX I NEE -

ZEoMENRS (WAE) HRRBEE=FH
WEREHEBRRMETT BARERBE_T
—NFR_FE—+tF+_A=1+—HIF
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SEGMENT REPORTING (continued) 5

The segment information provided to the management for the
reportable segments for the years ended 31 December 2018
and 2017 is as follows:

For the year ended 31 December 2018

DEERE (4E)

BE-—ZT—\FR-F—+F+=5
=t+—HLFE  RAlREDMEERE
RE D HBERIT :

BE-_Z-\F+-A=+—HLHFE

New Hong New
Zealand Kong  Australia Zealand
margin margin margin cash PRC
dealing dealing dealing dealing business  Unallocated  Elimination Total
REH B 2N REH
REERS REERE REERS  KERE  TEEE RAR b &t
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000
TER TR ThER TER THR TER TER THR
Segment revenue and APREREMA -
other income:
Foreign exchange and other trading  RESNFEFHSNE
income eamed from externl REBISHA
customers 365,363 4 1513 3,309 - - - 376,249
Inter-segment sales PEEEE - 119,973 10,484 - - - (130,457) -
Segment revenue PG 365,363 119977 18,057 3,309 - - (130,457) 376,49
Fee and commission income BARESMA 54,067 - 78 - - 2,301 - 56,446
Other income EilA 1,587 - 17 3 1,657 35,118 - 38,416
Total revenue and other income haREpBAEE 421,017 119,977 18,152 3,346 1,657 31419 (130,457) 471,111
Segment proftoss) A/ () 63160 106070 13034 2962 606 37419 216,563
Other unallocated staff costs A FARETHA (35,403
Other unallocated administrative. ~ EfADETHR
and operating expenses BERY (129,423)
Profit before tax AT A 51,757
Income tax expense SRR (17,508)
Proft for the year FERA 34,249
Other segment information: EfAHER
Depreciation of property, plantand ~ #1% * BERAENE
equipment and amortisationof ~ REFEERH
intangible assets - 110 26 - 1,815 12,730 14,681
Lease payments BEM - 1,492 - - 1,816 10,920 14,228
Finance cost HERE - - - - - 28,428 28,428

E i R % < P A L PR )
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5 SEGMENT REPORTING (continued) 5 ZoEEmEE)
For the year ended 31 December 2017 BHE_ZE—+H&E+-_A=+—H8ItEFE
New Hong New
Zealand Kong Australia Zealand
margin margin margin cash PRC
dealing dealing dealing dealing business  Unallocated  Elimination Total

il (0 - il
FEERS HRELRE REERH  HERG FEEH AR 2f it
HK$1000 HK$1000 HK$000 HK$1000 HK$1000 HK$000 HK$1000 HK$1000
TR TER TER TAR TER TER TARL TER

Segment revenue and other income: - 2 SRER A ¢
Foreign exchange and other trading  REINIE ERISNE

income eamed from external REMZHHA
customers 364,042 142 4472 1,136 28,369 - - 398,161
Inter-segment sales AHEE - 74673 9945 - - = (84,618) =
Segment revenue R 364,042 74,815 1447 1,136 28,369 - (84,618) 398,161
Fee and commission income BRRMAEKA 101,444 - 13 - - 7318 - 108,775
Other income(losses) 2N/ (BE) 309 - 18 % (2,056) 9,700 = 799
Total revenue and other income. M RAHMALE 465,79 74815 14,448 1,161 26313 17018 (84618) 514932
Segment profit(loss) AR/ (BB) 5053 64,064 10,036 (79) (26) 17018 141548
Other unallocated staff costs AFARETHA (31579)
Other unallocated administrative and  Ef A ETHR
operafing expenses BERY (74,950)
= Proft before tax BHEET 35,019
& Income tax expense FEHR (7,665)
Profitfor the year ER R 27,354
Other segment information: A HEH :

Depreciation of property, plantand 1% BER#fE
equipment and amortisation of TERENEE

intangible assets B - 66 26 - 1,890 10,539 12,521
Lease payments AR - 762 - - 2428 10205 13,395
Finance cost HARA 3% - - - 1217 163 1415

KVB KUNLUN FINANCIAL GROUP LIMITED ANNUAL
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SEGMENT REPORTING (continued)

The Company is domiciled in Hong Kong. The Group’s major
income from external customers is derived from its operations
in New Zealand.

DEERE (4E)

ARRARERES - REBRBINEEEFH
TEWAREERAAR AL LT

2018 2017

—E-N\F —T—tF

HK$’000 HK$’000

FET FBT

New Zealand 4 Ph 8 368,672 365,178
Others H A, 7,577 32,983
376,249 398,161

The locations of its non-current assets (excluding deferred tax
assets) are as follows:

HIERBDEE (TERBREERBEEE) D
T :

2018 2017

—E-N\F T4

HK$°000 HK$'000

FET FET

Hong Kong EHE 19,446 13,831
New Zealand 4 7 8 29,794 23,761
Australia SN 3,240 958
PRC A 809 5,665
53,289 44,215

None of the external customers contributes more than major
of the Group’s trading income individually in the respective
years.

Information on segment assets and liabilities are not disclosed
as this information is not presented to the Board of Directors as
they do not assess performance of reportable segments using
information on assets and liabilities.

MEIBEFEBREFEAEERR S
AREBELD ©

MR EERUEEAENEER S ENE
T ETTRESBHRE  WARSBE
EREEOERNTIESRTEES BN
WA AR -

i

J\AEAE

x
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OTHER INCOME 6 HfA
2018 2017
—E-NF —ZT—tF
HK$°000 HK$'000
T T F&T
Interest income ) S WA 4,945 2,661
Exchange gains, net bE X W as - JFER 9,410 5,384
Loss on disposal of fixed assets HEBTEEEZEE - (438)
Fair value gain on the embedded AR E S ER AR
derivative portion of the convertible PTET AN 2
bonds (Note 22) NRBEWE (Hit22) 26,042 =
Amortisation of deferred losses AR ESEIRE D 2
on conversion component of the IRIE R S (A 7222)
convertible bonds (Note 22) (1,982) -
Others H Aty 1 389
38,416 7,996
STAFF COSTS 7 BIRZAK
2018 2017
—ZE-N\F —ZE—+tF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FH&T
Staff costs (including directors’ BEIXAN(BIEEEHNE
remuneration (Note 28)): (K#13E28)) -
= Salaries, bonus and allowances T& -« fe4L K2Rk 94,143 54,144
; Pension scheme contributions RS T B 1,151 1,319
5 Staff option expenses (Note 26) B THIR#ER (Kit26) 6,375 1,468
101,669 56,931

KVB KUNLUN FINANCIAL GROUP LIMITED ANNUAL
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o o B 25 2R B
ADMINISTRATIVE AND OTHER OPERATING 8 f{THRHMKEERX
EXPENSES
2018 2017
—=E-N\F —E—+tF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET TA&T
Management fees paid to the then SN TEREEZERAARN

immediate holding company BB (M1:F30(a)i)

(Note 30(a)(i)) 696 664
Other office occupation expenses EmEFiEEARX 3,193 4,004
Auditor’s remuneration 12 SR EM BN &

— Audit services — Tz AR 3,223 2,966

— Non-audit services — EBEZIRTE 302 679
Information services expenses B AR X 4,136 6,417
Professional and consultancy fee BENAAE 5,558 6,798
Repair and maintenance HIEREE(BRERRHEE)

(including system maintenance) 17,250 13,708
Marketing, advertising and MSHEE BEEREERX

promotion expenses 27,166 22,864
Handling fee expenses FEEBRX 8,349 22,126
Travelling expenses =R & 4,255 3,966
Entertainment expenses = 1,055 970
Insurance IR B 768 845
Bank charges RITEF 510 975
Staff training 8 T3 425 388
Client’s debit balances written off = Al AL SR e 347 1,091
Impairment of intangible asset (Note 13) W& E 2 ME (A12F13) 2,937 1,730
Donations B/ 2,364 1,313
Others HAtb 2,042 4,900

84,576 96,404

JAEAEH

%
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9 INCOME TAX EXPENSE 9 MBBAX

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of 16.5% AR BT ThiR N8 4 =1 FE R 5w 7
(2017: 16.5%) on the estimated assessable profit during the LA16.5% (= —+4F : 16.5%) &) F K=t
years. Taxation on overseas profits has been calculated on IREHE - BINKEFIF B IR A FEE G5
the estimated assessable profit during the years at the rates FESRFE R AN E B KL R K mTT
of taxation prevailing in the countries in which the Group HF R E o IRIEE M RIFSED » AEE
operates. The income tax expenses of the Group are charged RAFEE - BN kB FFEREZ SR
at a tax rate of 28% (2017: 28%) in New Zealand, 30% (2017: 1228% (Z T —+4F : 28%) ~ 30% (==&
30%) in Australia and 25% (2017: 25%) in PRC in accordance — 5 1 30%) ]2 25% (—F—+4F : 25%)
with the local tax authorities. BB R o

2018 2017
—E-NF —ET—tF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FE&T TAT
Current tax: BIEATR IR
Charge for the year FAZH 16,064 4,992
Over-provision in prior year K FEBRER (402) (680)
Others Hfth, 486 444
Deferred tax: IREFLIE ¢
Charge for the year (Note 19) FAMER (H5E19) 1,360 2,909
Income tax expense TS %t 2 17,508 7,665
2018 2017
—B-NE —T+F
HK$’000 HK$'000
= Fix FHIT
; Profit before income tax BR BT 45 50 A i ) 51,757 35,019
N Tax at the Hong Kong statutory tax rate &% /A € fi R 5+ & #) Fi 18 8,540 5,778
2 Effect of different taxation rates in E A BIR AR B 2R A 52 &
% other countries 4,319 1,031
5 Income not subject to tax AR I A (4,780) (1,156)
& Expenses not deductible for tax AR R 2 8,116 1,814
5 Temporary differences not recognised 7 fE R & B £ = 58 1,229 434
Z Over-provision in prior year FEBEBRE (402) (680)
& Others Hith 486 444
Z
é Income tax expense Fir 15 B 7 2 17,508 7,665
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10 DIVIDENDS

The Board does not declare the payment of any dividend for
the year ended 31 December 2018 (2017: Nil).

11 EARNINGS PER SHARE

(@

(b)

Basic earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the
profit attributable to equity holders of the Company by
the weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue
during the respective periods.

10 RS

11

EEETERBE_FT—/\F+_A
=+—BLEFENEARE (T —LF:
&) -

BRAEF
(a) SREZXTER

BRESBNIRA R BIER B AR
R AR AR S HIE B #17T & B
N EETHE

2018 2017
—ZE-N\F T —tF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Profit attributable to equity holders NR A BRAERE B A A5 A
of the Company 34,249 27,354

No. of shares = No. of shares

BRH A gl 4=

Weighted average number of
ordinary shares in issue

BT E BRI TR

2,033,290,000 2,033,241,644

Basic earnings per share (HK cents)  &RXEARZF GEL)

1.68 1.35

Diluted earnings per share

The calculation of diluted earnings per share is based
on the profit for the year attributable to equity holders of
the Company. The weighted average number of ordinary
shares used in the calculation is the number of ordinary
shares in issue during the years, and the weighted
average number of ordinary shares assumed to have
been issued at no consideration on the deemed exercise
or conversion of all dilutive potential ordinary shares
under the share option scheme and convertible bonds
into ordinary shares.

(b) BRBERF

BREER T IRIEF AN R B IHE
RBEABMGRNTE - BIFrtE &
B INEFHBRFACEITE B
A - RERRERERET S LAHR
PAEF AR B TIE R EIRPT A A EE
FENBE S BBSE B TR
BT BN -

i

J\AEAE

x
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11 EARNINGS PER SHARE (continued) 11 B8RER (&)
(b) Diluted earnings per share (continued) (b) BRE#EERF (Z)
2018 2017
—ZE-NF —E—tF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHBT TFHIT
Profit attributable to equity holders RRARIRERA AEAG R
of the Company 34,249 27,354
Finance cost on convertible bonds, AR ES Z B E KA -
net of tax (Note 22) MBRBIE (A7 a222) 23,713 =
Fair value gain on the embedded AIRRE H R AR
derivative portion of the convertible ~ #74 T A& D 2
bonds (Note 6) DR BERE (AiEe) 1,982 =
Amortisation of deferred losses on BIEY T3 B v
conversion component of the IEAE B R 8 (AT aE6)
convertible bonds (Note 6) (26,042) -
Adjusted profit attributable to B AR R A
equity holders of the Company A AL & 33,902 27,354
No. of shares = No. of shares
vk ¢=| 18 B
Weighted average number of BEITE BRI INEFHE

ordinary shares in issue

2,033,290,000 2,033,241,644

Adjustments for convertible bonds AR E S AR (HfiF22)

(Note 22)

326,264,273 =

Weighted average number of shares &1 & & J& 58 2 51 19
for the purpose for calculating [i% 7 hn#E < 39 &
diluted earnings per share

2,359,554,273 2,033,241,644

Diluted earnings per share (HK cents) %% k58 2 7 GE1L)

1.44 1.35

Note:

Share options are not included in the computation of diluted
earnings per share for the years ended 31 December 2018 and
2017 as those were anti-dilutive.

i

HREREARBEZE  SETEHE"
E_NERFE—LF+-A=+—HIE
FEZEREERNEGIL BAEAERA -



12 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

O THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
fk 0 B 25 A B

12 Y- - BERRE

Furniture,
fixturesand ~ Computer  Leasehold Motor
equipment  equipment improvements vehicles Total
HE £EB
ki  ERRE  HERE RE @
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000
T THL THL THT THL
As at 1 January 2017 RZZ—t5—A—H
Cost XA 9,368 16,636 11,693 1,927 39,624
Accumulated depreciation 2EE (7,686) (10,656) (9,208) (1,674) (29,224)
Net carrying amount REFE 1,682 5,980 2,485 253 10,400
For the year ended 31 December 2017 BZE-E—+tF+-A=1t—HIFE
Opening net carrying amount EOREFE 1,682 5,980 2,485 253 10,400
Exchange adjustments R 68 125 102 7 302
Additions RE 54 1,968 - 2,250 4272
Disposals HE - 4 (460) - (464)
Depreciation Vil (605) (2,395) (1,339) (452) (4,791)
Closing net carrying amount FEREAFE 1,199 5,674 788 2,058 9,719
As at 31 December 2017 RZE—+F+-A=+—H
Cost XA 8,602 17,191 11,305 4,067 41,165
Accumulated depreciation ZHFTE (7,403) (11,517) (10,517) (2,009) (31,446)
Net carrying amount REFE 1,199 5,674 788 2,058 9,719
For the year ended 31 December 2018 HBZE-E—\F+-A=1t—HIFE
Opening net carrying amount FERFE 1,199 5,674 788 2,058 9,719
Exchange adjustments EREER: S (42) (85) 7 (21) (14)
Additions RE 220 1,366 2,828 - 4,414
Depreciation Vil (549) (2,404) (1,043) (542) (4,538)
Closing net carrying amount EREHEE 828 4,551 2,580 1,495 9,454
As at 31 December 2018 RZE-\F+-A=+—H
Cost XA 8,348 17,881 13,637 3,934 43,800
Accumulated depreciation ZHHTE (7,520) (13,330) (11,057) (2,439) (34,346)
Net carrying amount REFE 828 4,551 2,580 1,495 9,454

i
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13 INTANGIBLE ASSETS

13 BEE

Trading
Computer right
software (Note) Total
REE
ERMEMG (H15t) @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET
As at 1 January 2017 RZE—+%—H—H
Cost [B#N 37,274 1,675 38,949
Accumulated amortisation 2T (11,502) = (11,502)
Net carrying amount REFE 25,772 1,675 27,447
For the year ended 31 December 2017 HEZZT—tF+-_A=+—HIEFE
Opening net carrying amount FHREEE 25,772 1,675 27,447
Exchange adjustments B 5 5R 2 778 55 833
Additions NE 15,676 - 15,676
Amortisation B (7,730) - (7,730)
Impairment (Note 8) {E (f7E8) - (1,730) (1,730)
Closing net carrying amount FARIEEFE 34,496 = 34,496
As at 31 December 2017 RZE—+F+=ZA=+—H
Cost XA 52,702 1,802 54,504
Accumulated amortisation and ZETEHRRE
impairment (18,206) (1,802) (20,008)
Net carrying amount REHE 34,496 = 34,496
For the year ended 31 December 2018  HEZ-ZT—N\F+_A=+—HIEFE
Opening net carrying amount FHREEE 34,496 - 34,496
Exchange adjustments b i 3 (1,055) - (1,055)
Additions NE 23,474 - 23,474
Amortisation i (10,143) - (10,143)
Impairment (Note 8) W (E (fiEE8) (2,937) - (2,937)
Closing net carrying amount FEREEFE 43,835 - 43,835
As at 31 December 2018 RZZE-—N\F+=ZA=+—H
Cost B 7R 73,797 1,708 75,505
Accumulated amortisation and ZETEHERRE
impairment (29,962) (1,708) (31,670)
Net carrying amount RMEFE 43,835 - 43,835
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13 INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued) 13 BEEE (&)

Note:The balance represents the fee paid pursuant to the membership it - AR RIBER R EESB R ST L
agreement with TPME, which is not subject to amortisation and MEEREENNER  BEBHEER
is assessed for impairment annually. On 2 June 2017, the Group GEETHENG RZF—tF<A
received a notice from TPME that it will adjust its precious metals “H O AEEREXREESCBIZA
spot trading business with a view to reduce the trading risks, - HEAERSSeBIRESSER A
and it will suspend the opening of new trading positions for all BIER SRR - W& E =R 5 FT T
spot commodities traded on the exchange with effect from 12 ERERRRIEITHRHET B
June 2017 (the “Suspension”), as a result, the balance was fully T—tFANAT_BRBEXR(EEE
impaired as at 31 December 2017. B AR =ZE—+F+=_A=+—

B BEAEKREZZBRE -

14 OTHER RECEIVABLES, PREPAYMENTS AND 14 H{tEWKRE - BANRERIZS
DEPOSITS

2018 2017

—E-N\E s gsE

HK$°000 HK$'000

FET FAT

Rental and utility deposits HERAHAZBIZES 4,569 3,954
Prepayments TE FRIE 2,831 5,961
Other receivables H fth pE W SR IE 2,332 1,909
Provision for expected credit loss TEHR = E R 1B BHE (40) =
Total #5 9,692 11,824
The carrying amounts of the Group’s other receivables and 7R 68 B E At JE MUK TE SR S Y BRI (B B A

deposits approximate to their fair values. NAEESE -

i

J\AEAE

S
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15 DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 15 $TES/mIT A
2018 2017
—E-NF —ZT—tF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET TFAET
Current assets REBEE
Derivative contracts PTEEH 67,400 139,567
Current liabilities nREBAEE
Derivative contracts PTEEHA (5,374) (30,646)
Total #Et 62,026 108,921
The Group trades in foreign currencies, commodities and REBFBERBES R HEGHETING -
other products through its margin trading business. In order HmEkEMERRS ARENEETT
to protect against their exposures to fluctuations in foreign PER M mEREE AR E - KNEE
exchange rates and commodity prices, the Group has entered RIE T G AIE R BEE A RIRITE] L IR
into a number of foreign exchange forward transactions and INERBAZ G N EEBEHL] o
contracts for difference with the Group’s bankers in the normal
course of business.
The notional principal amounts of the outstanding forward R—_E—N\NFR_ZE—+F+=-A4
foreign exchange contracts at 31 December 2018 and 2017 =+t—B HARTFEREINESHB A
are HK$9,875,738,000 and HK$14,292,459,000 respectively. FE A& F 5D F 49,875,738 0007 JT &

14,292,459,000% JT °
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BALANCES DUE FROM AGENTS 16 EWRELEER
2018 2017
=B-NE —T—+tF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET

Balances due from: FEUR A 65 -

— agents — R 21,756 83,969
— TPME (Note 30 (vii)) —REESBRHFN (M12230(vii)) 569 4,582
Provision for expected credit loss TR EEE A (574) =
Total BET 21,751 88,551

The carrying amounts of the Group’s balances due from
agents approximate to their fair values. The Group is free
to withdraw the funds from accounts maintained with these
agents at any time.

CASH AND BANK BALANCES AND CLIENT TRUST
BANK BALANCES

17

AEERKRREESRNOFAEREAAE
ME o AKERIEER B B IEEERZ FHRIE
FAFRMMERPAME S °

RERBRITERKURETFETRITE
&R

2018 2017

—E-N\HF —T—tF

HK$’000 HK$'000

T FET

Cash and bank balances Re NMIRTTH R 550,591 430,198
Fixed deposits with banks RITE HIfF K 174,816 87,553
Client trust bank balances HEEFEIR1TE R 255,785 586,299
Provision for expected credit loss TBHEEEEEE (426) =
980,766 1,104,050

The Group maintains trust and segregated accounts with
authorised financial institutions to hold clients’ deposits
arising from normal business transactions. The Group is not
allowed to use the clients’ monies to settle its own obligations
in the ordinary course of business, and therefore they are not
included as cash and cash equivalents in the statement of
cash flows.

AEERNERESBEBEFAEERBL
BRF - MREBEFPHRAE —MREBRIHNF
e AEBIAABREFHNERFERD
SR BEEEBBETESR - FIZER
B EAARSRERTINEER S RIRE
EE® -

i

J\AEAE

x

E i R % < P A L PR )
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17 CASH AND BANK BALANCES AND CLIENT TRUST 17 BRERBITEMRUREFEERITE

BANK BALANCES (continued) &k (&)

As at 31 December 2018 and 2017, fixed deposits of RN\ FER_ZE—+F+_A=1+—
HK$90,359,000 and HK$86,015,000 respectively are pledged H - 90,359,0007% 7T }86,015,000/% 7T HY
to banks for banking facilities and office lease bonds. No THERD RIMEITEE M AETHERE
overdraft facility was utilised by the Group as at 31 December S FRT - R_E—N\FLR_=F—+
2018 and 2017. None of the bank deposits are placed with F+—_A=+—8  AEBEBREFHHBEM
market makers as collateral as at 31 December 2018 and BRFEH PN E— N\ FhR_E—+F+=
2017. A=+—8  #ERIEARTSHRT

EfFmEHm o

For the purposes of the consolidated statement of cash flows, MESResnERmMs B kBEEEE
cash and cash equivalents comprises of the following: MBFEATRIA :

2018 2017

—EBE-NFE T tF

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET TFHET

Cash and bank balances Re MIRTT4E &R 550,591 430,198

Fixed deposits with bank with JRETHS =& A I E BR Y
original maturity within three months 817 € Hi1F 3K 84,457 1,538
635,048 431,736
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18 FINANCE LEASE OBLIGATIONS

Lease liabilities are effectively secured as the rights to the
lease asset revert to the lessor in the event of default.

18 BEMEEAIE

HEREBEER L AHEEERNEMR -
BEBOEMHR  ZFRMNGERLE

A o
2018 2017
—ZE-NF —ET—+F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FHET TA&T
Gross finance lease liabilities mEREAERE
— minimum lease payments — HEBEEMNK
Not later than 1 year —F R 51 56
Later than 1 year and no later —FBEAFNA
than 5 years 155 228
206 284
Future finance charges on FEHE R R E
finance leases (18) (32)
Present value of finance lease MEHSAFERE
liabilities 188 252
The present value of finance lease liabilities is as follows: MEHEAEHREBAWET
2018 2017
—ZE-NF —E—+F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET TFAT
Not later than 1 year —F R 42 47
Later than 1 year and no later —FBEAFENRN
than five years 146 205
188 252

The Group leases various vehicles under non-cancellable
finance lease agreements. The lease terms are 3 to 5 years
and ownership of the assets lies within the Group.

AEBRBETAIEHEORERS B LA
ETHER HEMAS=Z0F MEEM

BHEBAEEME -

JAEAEH

%
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19 DEFERRED TAXATION 19 IEFEBIE
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset on an individual B B A E NI % BN BR B 18 & A B RN AR
entity basis when there is a legal right to set off current tax HMIBEEHRE  MELERIEY N E—#E
assets against current tax liabilities and when the deferred B Bal i EREARRERIEEEZHE
taxation relates to the same authority. The following amounts, B RERBRE EEEREAN SR
without taking into consideration the offsetting of balances (Wt LI aEe) SauT -

within the same tax jurisdiction, are as follows:

2018 2017
—E-N\F —ET—+tF
HK$’000 HK$'000
F#ET FAET
Deferred tax assets to be recovered IREF I & B
after more than twelve months (fB3@121E A 12 4 El) 1,719 1,367
Deferred tax liabilities to be settled EEFRIES &
after more than twelve months (EBim121E A & 1) (4,902) (3,206)
(3,183) (1,839)
The major components of deferred tax assets/(liabilities) GAEERBBRANIIRAELEHRBEE,
recorded in the consolidated balance sheet and the (BE)NEELo RFREENT -
movements during the year are as follows:
Other
Employee temporary
benefits Depreciation differences Total
Hity
g EEREF HE ERMES #st
2 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
2 FHT FHT THT THT
= At 1 January 2017 R-Z—+F—-A—H 1,151 (835) 709 1,025
= Exchange adjustments B 5 SR 37 (3) 11 45
= Charge for the year FANM (45) (1,612) (1,252) (2,909)
3 At 31 December 2017 R-Z—+F+-A=+—-A 1,143 (2,450) (532) (1,839)
.
2 At 1 January 2018 RZZ—-N\E—H[—H 1,143 (2,450) (532) (1,839)
Z Exchange adjustments BE A (55) 39 32 16
s (Charge)/credit for the year FRER) FTA (339) (1,456) 435 (1,360)

At 31 December 2018 R_ZE-—N\F+=-A=+—H 749 (3,867) (65) (3,183)
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OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUED LIABILITIES 20 HihENRERESERE
2018 2017
—ZE-NF —E—+F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FAET
Accrued rental benefit FEFH & A2 171 231
Accrued audit fees EFTEZER 2,255 2,781
Other accruals H et &M 3,047 5,257
Commission payable A S 6,020 27,825
Employee entitlements EE#Exn 11,458 11,820
Other payables H At &~ 5KIA 2,857 5,358
Interest payable FEATFIS, 5,835 -
31,643 53,272
The carrying amounts of the Group’s other payables and AREBHMENRIEREABENERE
accrued liabilities approximate to their fair values. BHENALEMRE °
CLIENTS’ BALANCES 21 BEF#&&
The balances represent margin deposits received from clients % E AR BB E 15 EE R W EE A
and the realised profit or loss from their trading activities under RBEEEFEARBEETES EBNE &R

normal course of business. The carrying amounts approximate
to their fair values.

CONVERTIBLE BONDS

Pursuant to subscriptions agreements entered into by
the Company on 25 January 2018, the Company issued
convertible bonds with aggregate principal amount of
HK$200,000,000 on 12 February 2018 (the “Issue Date”). The
convertible bonds entitled the holders to convert them into
326,264,273 ordinary shares of the Company at the conversion
price of HK$0.613 (the “Conversion Price”) per share of the
Company at any time from the day following one year from the
Issue Date up to the fifth business day immediately before the
second anniversary of the Issue Date (the “Maturity Date”) and
bear interest at 7.5% per annum. Unless previously redeemed,
converted or cancelled, the Company has to redeem the
convertible bonds on Maturity Date at 100% of the outstanding
principal amount, together with accrued interest, if any.

22

AN EE - REEEEQALERESE -

CIE: Y38t

BEARFTR=ZE—N\F—A=+HHF]
N2 REWRE  ARRERZ=ZZE—N\F=
A+=B (®%THHB)) BT ASETEA
200,000,000/ 7T 2 AJ # A & % - AJ A A%
BEHE T 158 AR AT A 81T H BREET —
FrBAREEETITHER MBS
AIFEAMEEEA ([2/HIBE ) |FEARIBER 1%
B EENR0.613B T ([RRE]) Eins
RN T 2326,264,273E@A% - FF KA
7.5% o BRIFIRATEE - 8y - AR
FIZER 2Bl AR R EE RS 5 2 100%:&E
RFEETFIE (W E) BRI AR ES -

JAEAEHR

x
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22 CONVERTIBLE BONDS (continued)

The Conversion Price is subject to anti-dilutive adjustments
due to change of management and anti-dilution events such
as consolidation, sub-division or reclassification, bonus issue,
capital distribution, rights issue of shares or options over
shares, rights issue of other securities, issue at less than the
then current market price, other issue at less than the then
current market price, modification of right of conversion, other
offer to shareholders and other events. If the Conversion Price
pursuant to any adjustment is below the par value of each
share, the Conversion Price shall be adjusted to an amount
equal to the par value of on share instead.

Save as disclosed above, the terms and definitions of the
convertible bonds are set out in the respective subscription
agreements and disclosed in the Company’s announcements
dated 25 January 2018 and 12 February 2018.

In the presence of the adjustments to the Conversion Price
mentioned above, the convertible bonds may not exchange
a fixed number of the Company’s own equity instrument
for a fixed amount of cash. Therefore, the components of
the convertible bonds are accounted for separately as host
liability component and conversion option derivative. The fair
values of the host liability component and conversion option
derivative were determined at the respective date of issue.
The host liability component represented the present value of
the contractual stream of future cash flows discounted using
the prevailing market interest rate of similar non-convertible
instruments and carried at amortised cost. The effective
interest rate of the liability component is 19.25%. Subsequent
to the initial recognition, the liability component is carried
at amortised cost while the conversion option derivative
embedded in the convertible bonds are measured at fair value,
where changes in fair value recognised in profit or loss.

22 TWBRRESR (2

BMEEFNEREELRESRIELRES
A MaxEREERABREMHEEA6
FAIREF DR - BITAR - EADIK -
A IR HE  BAbRE S 2 A% - IER
ERBITMERET  RERERRITHE
ZEAMBEETT - (ERTHRAME - MBCRIEEE
b B A R EMFAT o W R EA TG Bk
BEERESRERN ZEE - BERESHE
EEERBRNIEEZSRE -

bR Bt ERE AN - ATARE S AR R E
EFNSENRERZERN - WRAAFH
HE—_FT—N\F—A-_+HREE=_Z—N
FZA+Z—HHMRAEFRERE -

£ R RERERNBERT - AJRERES
HAREBEIREE SRS R IBBEE A
NARFB S#Em T A - Bt - I BRE
FHMARRER D 0 B E B E AR MR A
PTETEAR - TREE D MR EITE
TANAAEKRSEAMETANEE - £
BERDEARKIRERE LEED A EALL
AR T ARITH SRR IRE
WIZEHK AT - BIEE D WERA=X
7319.25% - M A HER L - AEH DI
HIHRCAIRR - TR A AT AR E S B AR
ENET BB AREE EAREES
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22 CONVERTIBLE BONDS (continued) 22 FIBRES (&)
The components for the issue of the convertible bonds and LT A AN E SR AE AR BB 0 MR T N Y &
their movements for the year are set out below: HEY O :

Financial

Financial liabilities at

liabilities at fair value

amortised through

cost profit or loss

- debt - derivative
portion portion Total

RARE

rEE TARSEH
BAG R THEE

cHMAE —-$T&E
— &% 4 =R wmEm
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FEx FET
At 1 January 2018 R=ZB-N\F—-H—H - - -
Issuance of convertible bonds BT A[ AR EH 181,815 42,040 223,855
Deferred losses upon issuance 277 RFIE L &518 (19,375) (4,480) (23,855)

Fair value gain recognised BHERA R EWS (4iE6)

(Note 6) - (26,042) (26,042)
Interest expense s 28,399 - 28,399
Interest payment FI B AR (13,274) - (13,274)
Amortisation of deferred losses & %817 1 1T &5 18 # §54

on conversion component (K1:#6)

(Note 6) - 1,082 1,082

At 31 December 2018 R-ZZE—N\EFE+=ZHA=1+—H 177,565 13,500 191,065

JAEAEH

K

E i R % < P A L PR )
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23

24

SHARE CAPITAL 23 BRZ
Number Issued
of shares share
in issue capital
ERTROAHE BERBITERE
HK$'000
FET
As at 1 January 2017 N-—E—+tF—H—H 2,033,240,000 20,332
Issuance of new ordinary shares upon 771 & A% 4 B 3577 A9
exercise of share options HE AR 50,000 1
As at 31 December 2017 RZE—+tF+-H=+—H 2,033,290,000 20,333
As at 1 January 2018 and RZE—N\F—A—HK
31 December 2018 —E-N\F+=ZRA=1+—H 2,033,290,000 20,333

CAPITAL RESERVE

The balance represents the difference between the book
value of the net assets of KVB Kunlun New Zealand Limited,
KVB Kunlun Pty Limited and KVB Kunlun International (HK)
Limited over the par value of the shares issued by LXL Capital
Il Limited, LXL Capital Ill Limited and LXL Capital IV Limited in
exchange for these subsidiaries as part of the reorganisation
completed in 2012.

24

BARFE

5% %5 8 $EKVB Kunlun New Zealand
Limited * KVB Kunlun Pty Limited } E &
B (BB BARAREEFENEAE
Ed| XL Capital Il Limited * LXL Capital IlI
Limited &2LXL Capital IV Limited/E &7 —
T ——_FEKNEE—IFDBARIBEZE
M AR MEITHRNEENEZEE -
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25 RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES ARISING FROM 25 Bi& T EfiELaE oY E
FINANCING ACTIVITIES

The changes in the Group’s liabilities from financing activities, AEEMEZHEAENEFH (BREESR
including both cash and non-cash changes are as follows: JER S E)) HI T -
Finance Finance
leases due leases due  Convertible  Interest
within 1 year after 1 year bonds payable Other Total

R-FRIH R-FRIH
ZHEHE ZREEE TRREZ EAAR Hitr st

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
TR TEx THEx T#Ex TEz TEzx
At 1 January 2018 RZB-N\§-A-H 47 205 - - - 252
Changes from financing REEEREFEH
cash flow:
Repayment of finance EEREHERE
lease obligations (12) (42) - - - (54)
Issuance of convertible BB ES
bonds - - 200,000 - - 200,000
Interest paid BRFE - - (7,439) - (29)  (7,468)
Interest payable ERFIE - - (5,835) 5,835 - -
Exchange adjustments EiAZ 0] (17) - - - (21)
Other changes: Hir 28
Interest expenses FIBFX 11 - 28,399 - 29 28,439
Fair value gain on the ARESRAREH
embedded portion of the 2 AR EMZE
convertible bonds - - (26,042) - - (26,042
Amortisation of the deferred AT [ (& A8 ()
losses on conversion LB E R
component of the
convertible bonds - - 1,982 - - 1,982
At 31 December 2018 R=%-N\%
+=A=+-8 42 146 191,065 5835 - 197,088

— AFAR#H,

-z
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25 RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES ARISING FROM 25 Bi& T EifiELaE YR (&)
FINANCING ACTIVITIES (continued)

Finance Finance Borrowing Borrowing
leases due leases due due within due after
within 1 year after 1 year 1 year 1 year Total
R—ERIE R-FEIS —FRIE  —FRIE
JHERE  cRENE 21 21 st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THT THT THT T THT
At 1 January 2017 R-E-t&-5-H 18 = 55,835 - 55,853
Changes from financing ~ BEFHRER
cash flow: BE
Repayment of finance BEmERERE
lease obligations (41) - - - (41)
Repayment of borrowing EREE - - (55,835) = (55,835)
Exchange adjustments ERAZ 1 4 - = 5
Other changes: Hitr 25
New finance lease HRERE 63 201 - - 264
Interest on finance lease REMEZFS 6 - - - 6
At 31 December 2017 R=B-tF
+ZA=+-H 47 205 - - 252

REPORT 2018
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26 SHARE OPTION SCHEME

On 19 August 2015, the Board of Directors of the Company
granted 40,000,000 share options to 95 individuals
(“Grantees”) for their subscription of new ordinary shares of
HK$0.01 each in the share capital of the Company.

These share options are exercisable at HK$0.95 per share,
with varying vesting period and validity from the date of grant.
35 out of 95 of the Grantees were granted share options
which are exercisable for a period of three years commencing
on the date of grant to 18 August 2018. 12 out of 95 of the
Grantees were granted share options which are exercisable
for a period of three years commencing on the date falling on
the first anniversary of the date of grant to 18 August 2019,
with a vesting period of one year from the date of grant.
The remaining 48 Grantees were granted options which are
exercisable for a period of two years commencing on the
date falling on the second anniversary of the date of grant to
18 August 2019, with a vesting period of two years from the
date of grant. Among the 40,000,000 share options granted,
12,200,000 share options were granted to the directors and
chief executives of the Company.

The Group has no legal or constructive obligation to
repurchase or settle the options in cash.

26 EfERTE

R-Z—RENA+HIA  ARFEFES
m195% A ([ ##H A ) 2 H40,000,00013
BARE - RESREAQARRAFEFRE
B0.01 B T B 3T AR -

% LB AAE IR T AR AR (9 0.958 TL AV (B 1%
FLATTHE - BRE AR NEBERE
WHEAA Rl o 95 R IER AR B35 B R A&
BTN EL A== —N\F/\A
+NABAIE=FZHEARITEZ BRRE -
BHER AT 125 ERAER F AR
HHBH—RAFERBRAE_ZT—NFEN
A+ NBAIE=FZHERNTHEZER
o REBHARBRE BB —F 8T
ABHIER NER TR AEE HHARBEFE
BEiE=F—hF/N\A+/\HAEILRF
ZEARIATTE 2 B - BB EABRE T
HEAREET R F o B % #940,000,0001% &
RiES - RAREEREETHABER
12,200,000 B A% 4 ©

AEBY EERHIEEEEARSHED L
MEERERRE -

i
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%
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26 SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued) 26 BRRRESTE (&)

Movements in the number of share options outstanding are as

MARITENBREZBZZHMT :

follows:
Outstanding Outstanding
asat Granted Forfeited Exercised asat
31 December during during during  31December  Exercise Exercise
Grantee Date of grant 2017 the year the year the year 2018 price  period
RZB-t# RZF-N\fF
tZA=1-A RER tZA=t-H
ERA REAH HATE  RERRHE gl RERTE WA TEE EHE
HKS
BT
Liu Stefan 19 August 2015 8,300,000 - (8300,00) - - 095 19 August 201510
18 August 2018
iz “Z-RENAthE “Z-RENAthB
ECE-)\E
NATIR
Huang Songyuan 19 August 2015 3,500,000 - (3,500,000) - - 095 19 August2015to
18 August 2018
=IER “E2-1%7\RthA “E2-1%7\RthA
ECE-)\E
NATIR
Wong Yiu Kit Emest 19 August 2015 250,000 - - - 250,000 095 19 August 2017 to
18 August 2019
ERR “Z-RENAthE “E2-tF#7\RthA
EZE-NE
NATIR
Stephen Gregory McCoy 19 August 2015 1,000,000 - (1,000,000) - - 095 19 August 201510
18 August 2018
Stephen Gregory McCoy “Z-RENAthE “E-RENATAA
e e
o NATIR
Z Zhao Guixin 19 August 2015 300,000 - (300,000) - - 0.95 19 August 2015 to
5 18 August 2018
z fiatid “5-1%\AthA “E2-3%7\RthA
a ECE-)\E
= NATIR
=
; Corenlis Jacobus Keyser 19 August 2015 300,000 - (300,000) - - 0.95 19 August 2015 to
§ 18 August 2018
o Corenlis Jacobus Keyser “E2-1%7\RthA “E-RENATAA
< EoE-)\E
2 NATIR
z
z



Grantee
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26 SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

Outstanding
asat

31 December
2017
R-E-tE
t=A=t-A
WR{THE

Granted
during
the year

REARE

26 BRAERTE (E)

Forfeited
during
the year

Exercised
during
the year

RER

#Rl RERTE

Outstanding
asat

31 December
2018
RZB-N\E
TEHET=H
WA

Exercise
price

kg
HK$
B

Exercise
period

I

Lin Wenhui

HE

Employees of group companies

SEARER

Employees of group companies

SEARER

Employees of group companies

SEARER

Consultants

B

Consultants

B

19 August 2015

“F-1%\AthA

19 August 2015

“F-1%\AthA

19 August 2015

“F-1%\AthA

19 August 2015

“F-1%\AthA

19 August 2015

“F-1%\AthA

19 August 2015

“F-1%\AthA

300,000

14,050,000

1,000,000

3,750,000

400,000

500,000

(300,000) -

(14,050,000) =

(300,000)

(50,000)

(100,000) -

= 0.95

1,000,000 0.95

3,450,000 0.95

350,000 0.95

400,000 0.95

19 August 2015t
18 August 2018
“E-RENATIA
E2E)\F
NRTIB

19 August 2015t
18 August 2018
“E-RENATIA
EIE)\F
NRTIB

19 August 2016 to
18 August 2019
“E-ENATHA
EIENE
NATIB

19 August 2017 to
18 August 2019
“2-tEN\ATAR
EIENE
NATIB

19 August 2016 to
18 August 2019
“E-ENATHA
EIENE
NATIB

19 August 2017 to
18 August 2019
“2-tEN\ATAR
EIENE
NATIB

33,650,000

(28,200,000)

5,450,000
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26 SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

The Binomial Option Pricing Model has been used to estimate
the fair value of the options. The variables and assumptions
used in computing the fair value of the share options are based
on the directors’ best estimate. The value of an option varies
with different variables of certain subjective assumptions.
Details of the share options granted on 19 August 2015 were
as follows:

Weighted average share option HK$0.3133
price at the grant date:

Risk free interest rate: 0.821%

Expected volatility: 59.08%

Expected dividend yield: 1.63%

Expected exercise multiple: Directors: 2.8x exercise price

Others: 2.2x exercise price

The measurement date of the share options was 19 August
2015, being the date of grant of the share options. The
expected dividend yield is determined with reference to
historical dividend payment history of comparable listed
companies up to the measurement date. The expected
volatility of share price is determined with reference to
annualised historical weekly volatility of comparable listed
companies’ share prices as of the valuation date, as extracted
from Bloomberg.

No share option expenses (2017: HK$381,000) were
recognised in the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income during the current period.
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— IR HiRE T R SR A LA (A R B SO
WARME - sFHEBEREAREMANER
REZRTDEREFHEEMR - BREE
ERER LT BRBNEHTRMEL - 1
—ZE-RFNAATNBERHOBRENF
BT :

B B B ingE 0.3133/ 7
T RERRAEERE
BRI 0.821%
TEERRIE 59.08%
TEHR B ¢ 1.63%
TRERI TR S BE : 7{FEE2.85F

Hity - {7EE2.21%

BRENFAEEHRR-_Z—HF/\A+N
B BREEREN B - FEHIREERT)
2EMELBR ETAREEFE R NG
ER BRI MEE © IRE H TE R I8
2ERBAZENA B LR ETARNK
BE =G AN FEE(CORESREKEM
EE -

ANEER ARG 2 s R IR B A
M (ZZF—+4F : 381,000/87T) °
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26 SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

On 29 December 2016, the Board of Directors of the
Company granted 40,000,000 share options to 95 individuals
(“Grantees”) for their subscription of new ordinary shares of
HK$0.01 each in the share capital of the Company.

These share options are exercisable at HK$0.592 per share,
with varying vesting period and validity from the date of grant.
37 out of 95 of the Grantees were granted share options which
are exercisable for a period of three years commencing on
the date of grant to 28 December 2019. 9 out of 95 of the
Grantees were granted share options which are exercisable
for a period of three years commencing on the date falling
on the first anniversary of the date of grant to 28 December
2020, with a vesting period of one year from the date of grant.
The remaining 49 Grantees were granted options which are
exercisable for a period of two years commencing on the date
falling on the second anniversary of the date of grant to 28
December 2020, with a vesting period of two years from the
date of grant. Among the 40,000,000 share options granted,
11,750,000 share options were granted to the directors and
chief executives of the Company.

The Group has no legal or constructive obligation to
repurchase or settle the options in cash.

26 BRAERTE (E)

R—_E—XR"F+_A=—+1LB &A
AIEE 2 M5B AT ([EEAD &Hj
40,000,00017 i izt - HEEFRBEA LD

B% A Hh & A% E{E0.0178 JT R T @ AR -

7% E M IR M AT IR B AR AR 19 0.5927 TT A (B
BTATTE  BREBHETNSEBER
BREAF R - 95F R AF HI7HER A
EEFIRBREEBHRERAZE = —NF
+— A=+ N\BARLE=FZHEATEZ
FEARHE - 05/ ER A 9 R A
TAOREHBEH—AFE R E_F
—EFE+ A -+ N\BAIL=FZHM
ATTE 2 BB - BREEABRX L B A
T4 o BB T A9RER AR T A IR
AEMBEFERRRAE S _FTF+=
AZ+N\BAIEMFEZBHBEAITEZE
[t - BREE AR BHBARE - B
# 1 #940,000,00017 i AR #EH - N A FE
= REZITHABER11,750,00017 88 1%
T o

AEBY EERHIEEEEARSHED L
MEERERRE -
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26 SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued) 26 BRESTE (E)
Movements in the number of share options outstanding are as MARITEERRESE ESmT
follows:
Outstanding QOutstanding
asat  Granted  Forfeited  Exercised as at
31 December during during during ~ 31December  Exercise  Exercise
Grantee Date of grant 2017 theyear  theyear  theyear 2018 price  period
RZE-t% RZF-N\f
tZA=t-H RER RER RER TZA=t-A
ERA REAH WA b #Rl fife HATE  TRE TREME
HK$
BT
Liu Stefan 29 December 2016 8,000,000 - - - 8,000,000 0592 29 December 2016 to
28 December 2019
Bz 5k “E-AE+-F-tRAE
TZAZthA Z5-NETZAZTNR
Huang Songyuan 29 December 2016 3,050,000 - - - 3,050,000 0592 29 December 2016 to
28 December 2019
R 5k “E-RE+-B-thBE
i Z5-NETZAZTNR
Wong Yiu Kit Emest 29 December 2016 250,000 - - - 250,000 0592 29 December 2018 o
28 December 2020
B3 Ik Z3-\E+ZRZtNAZE
tZAZthA ZSIRETZAZTN\R
Stephen Gregory McCoy 29 December 2016 1,000,000 - - - 1,000,000 0592 29 December 2016 to
28 December 2019
Stephen Gregory McCoy ZE5F 5 ETZRZTNAE
tZAZthA ZE-AEtZRAZHI\A
Zhao Guixin 29 December 2016 300,000 - - - 300,000 0592 29 December 2016 to
28 December 2019
el 0k “E-NET-B-thAE
E TZAZtAA i Sk gt g -
:E Corenlis Jacabus Keyser 29 December 2016 300,000 - - - 300,000 0592 29 December 2016 {0
& 28 December 2019
Corenlis Jacobus Keyser “EE ZE-"ETZAZThRE
+ZB=thB ZE-NETZAZTNE
Lin Wenhui 29 December 2016 300,000 - - - 300,000 0592 29 December 2016 to
28 December 2019
iy 5k “E-AE+-F-tRAR
TZAZthA Z5-NETZAZTNR

KVB KUNLUN FINANCIAL GROUP LIMITED ANNUAL
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26 SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued) 26 FERAESTE (&)
Outstanding QOutstanding
asat  Granted  Forfeited  Exercised as at
31 December during during during 31 December  Exercise  Exercise
Grantee Date of grant 2017  theyear  theyear  theyear 2018 price  period
RZE-t% RZZ-N\%
TEr=k RER RER RER TZA=1-H
ERA RYAH AT b Rk fife HATE  TRE  REME
HK$
BT
Employees of group companies 29 December 2016 16,450,000 - (1,250,000) - 15,200,000 0592 29 December 2016 to
28 December 2019
£ENFES 5k “E-REt-R-thAE
TZAZthA ZE-NETZAZTNR
Employees of group companies 29 December 2016 900,000 - - - 900,000 0592 29 December 2017 to
28 December 2020
SELFIES ZE-1F ZE-+Ft-R-ThAZ
tZAZthA ZECEETC AR
Employees of group companies 29 December 2016 6,700,000 - (1550,000) - 5,150,000 0592 29 December 2018 to
28 December 2020
£BAFES N2 “B-\F+-B-thHE
tZAZthA ZEZETZAZTN\R
Consultants 29 December 2016 450,000 - (50,000) - 400,000 0592 29 December 2017 to
28 December 2020
B 30 ZE—tFtZfZThRE
tZAZthA ZECEETZACH\A
Consultants 29 December 2016 200,000 - (100,000) - 100,000 0592 29 December 2018 to
28 December 2020
BE 0k “E-\E+-A-thAZ
+ZA=thA ZECZETZAC A
37,900,000 - (2950,000) - 34,950,000
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26 SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

The Binomial Option Pricing Model has been used to estimate
the fair value of the options. The variables and assumptions
used in computing the fair value of the share options are based
on the directors’ best estimate. The value of an option varies
with different variables of certain subjective assumptions.
Details of the share options granted on 29 December 2016
were as follows:

Weighted average share option HK$0.2385
price at the grant date:

Risk free interest rate: 1.443%

Expected volatility: 70.97%

Expected dividend yield: 0%

Expected exercise multiple: Directors: 2.8x exercise price

Others: 2.2x exercise price

The measurement date of the share options was 29 December
2016, being the date of grant of the share options. The
expected dividend yield is determined with reference to
historical dividend payment history of comparable listed
companies up to the measurement date. The expected
volatility of share price is determined with reference to
annualised historical weekly volatility of comparable listed
companies’ share prices as of the valuation date, as extracted
from Bloomberg.

A total of HK$424,000 (2017: HK$1,087,000) share option
expenses were recognised in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income during the current year.
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26 BRAERTE (E)

— I3 A SR SR A A 3
PRS0 1E © B SRR 2 7 (8P R PO B
RRR YRR E B RAE(E - BAEE
R R LB BROEBT R « 1
—F—XF+ A+ AR EH R
PRI -

B B B ingE 0.2385/8 7T
TR B

R 1.443%

TEERRIE 70.97%

TEHR B ¢ 0%

TRERITE(E S BE : 7{FE2.8F

Hity - {7EE2.21%

BRENGGEAHA-_ZT—XRE+_A
AR ARHERES B - TREIAR
BRGSERARLR EMAREEEH
B BAER BN REEEMERT - RENTE
HRE2ERHBEaZENAIELR ETA
AR EHENEAMNFREICBESRE
B T B E

REFRGZE 2 EINERERE B AE
F & H A424,0008 L (Z T — L F -
1,087,000/ 7T) °
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26 SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

On 22 March 2018, the Board of Directors of the Company
granted 40,000,000 share options to 82 individuals
(“Grantees”) for their subscription of new ordinary shares of
HK$0.01 each in the share capital of the Company.

These share options are exercisable at HK$0.495 per share,
with varying vesting period and validity from the date of grant.
37 out of 82 of the Grantees were granted share options
which are exercisable for a period of three years commencing
on the date of grant to 21 March 2021. 11 out of 82 of the
Grantees were granted share options which are exercisable
for a period of three years commencing on the date falling
on the first anniversary of the date of grant to 21 March 2022,
with a vesting period of one year from the date of grant.
The remaining 34 Grantees were granted options which are
exercisable for a period of two years commencing on the
date falling on the second anniversary of the date of grant to
21 March 2022, with a vesting period of two years from the
date of grant. Among the 40,000,000 share options granted,
12,200,000 share options were granted to the then directors
and chief executives of the Company.

The Group has no legal or constructive obligation to
repurchase or settle the options in cash.

A 1 B 5 A M R

26 BRAERTE (E)

R-ZE—N\EFE=A=—+=H XA ATFES
gme2& At ([E&E A ) 140,000,000
DB - HEEREAQRIRAP T
E{HO.01 B T H T T Ak -

5% 5 A A ] 2 T AR AR 17 0.4957% JT B 8
T LATTEE - BRHE B HRFT A EE R
BRUEAB R - 822 R AR BIS7THER A
ERTIRRE AR E_ - —F=
AZ+—BAIE=FZ8BRAITE 2K
HE o B2 ER AT N BERAEE T
REEBE—AFEHETE T —_—
=A=t+t—BAIE=FZ2HBAITEZE
[ - BFEEABIR L B g —F - &8
TR AR TR N L B MBS
ERRAE_E - —_F=A=+—HBAL
FEE 2 BRI NTT(E 2 BE A - SR Bl = |
i H BT - B /940,000,000
MEERES  AAFRERZEEREETT
B A B ¥##%12,200,00017 B A% #E -
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26 SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued) 26 BRESTE (E)
Movements in the number of share options outstanding are as MARITEERRESE ESmT
follows:
Outstanding Outstanding
asat  Granted  Forfeited  Exercised as at
31 December during during during  31December  Exercise  Exercise
Grantee Date of grant 2017  theyear  theyear  theyear 2018 price  period
R=R-tE R=B-NE
TZAz1-H RER  RER RER tZASt-A .
ERA RYAH AT Rt BRW % HATE HEE fIRHE
BT
Liu Stefan 22 March 2018 - 10,000,000 - - 10,000,000 049 22 March 201810
21 March 2021
ik “T)\E Z3-N\fA-t-RZ
=R=tzH ZEC-£-fZ1-A
Huang Songyuan 22 March 2018 - 3,800,000 - - 3,800,000 049 22 March 201810
N 21 March 2021
=ER It i3 B \(=f-t-R%
=A=tZH “E-_-%=f-1-H
Wong Yiu Kit Emest 22 March 2018 - 1550,000 - - 1,550,000 049 22 March 2018 to
. 21 March 2021
HEf It it ZE-\E=R-t-RE
Zh-T-H “EC-f-f-T-H
Stephen Gregory McCoy 22 March 2018 - 1,000,000 - - 1,000,000 049 22 March 2018 to
21 March 2021
Stephen Gregory McCoy “2-N\E ZZ-\E=A-f2R%
ZR=t1zH ZEZ-4=fZ1-H
Zhao Guixin 22 March 2018 - 400,00 - - 400,000 049% 22 March 201810
21 March 2021
HER ZE)\E 2 \EZACt-HE
=A=1zH ZEC4=AZ1-H
Corenlis Jacobus Keyser 22 March 2018 - 400,000 - - 400,000 0495 22 March 2018 to
21 March 2021
Corenlis Jacobus Keyser “2)\E Z3-N\f=f-t-R%
=A=+ZA ZE--£-f-1-A
Lin Wenhui 22 March 2018 - 400,000 - - 400,000 049 22 March 201810
% . 21 March 2021
5 e “E)\E ZE-\(=R-t-R%
2 =R=tzH ZEC-£-fZ1-A
2 Employees of group companies 22 March 2018 - 13,600,000  (800,000) - 12,800,000 049 22 March 2018 to
2 21 March 2021
Z £BNAER it ZE-\FZffoA%
Z =A=tZH ZE--¥=f=1-H
a Employees of group companies 22 March 2018 - 1,900,000 = = 1,900,000 049 22 March 201910
= i 21 March 202
= NG “2-N\F “E-NE=A-1ZRZ
= SAZTzA “ECCFZACT-A
§ Employees of group companies 22 March 2018 - 6,150,000 (1,250,000) - 4,900,000 049 22 March 2020 to
@] 21 March 2022
2 £EN7ES “EN\E “ERE-fCBE
® ZR=tzH ZEIE=AZ1-H
= Consultants 22 March 2018 - 800000  (250,000) - 550,000 049% 22 March 20191t
™ 21 March 2022
Z R ZE)\E - N5=R-t-B%
= =A=1zH ZEIE=AZT-A
% - 40,000,000  (2,300,000) - 37,700,000
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26 SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

The Binomial Option Pricing Model has been used to estimate
the fair value of the options. The variables and assumptions
used in computing the fair value of the share options are based
on the directors’ best estimate. The value of an option varies
with different variables of certain subjective assumptions.
Details of the share options granted on 22 March 2018 were as
follows:

Weighted average share option HK$0.1735
price at the grant date:

Risk free interest rate: 1.668%

Expected volatility: 56.39%

Expected dividend yield: 0%
Expected exercise multiple: Directors: 2.8x exercise price

Others: 2.2x exercise price

The measurement date of the share options was 22 March
2018, being the date of grant of the share options. The
expected dividend yield is determined with reference to
historical dividend payment history of comparable listed
companies up to the measurement date. The expected
volatility of share price is determined with reference to
annualised historical weekly volatility of comparable listed
companies’ share prices as of the valuation date, as extracted
from Bloomberg.

A total of HK$5,951,000 share option expenses were
recognised in the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income during the current period.

26

BRESE (E)
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27 BALANCE SHEET AND RESERVES MOVEMENT OF 27 A A S EEEREAREBEST
THE COMPANY

Balance sheet of the Company AATZEEEB/R
As at 31 December
Rt+t=—HA=+—H
2018 2017
—E-N\HF —FT—+tF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET TA&T
ASSET BE
Non-current asset ERBEE
Investment in subsidiaries (Note 29)  RHIEB AR 2% & (K1:£29) 160,461 156,560
Total non-current assets FRBEEHAE 160,461 156,560
Current assets MENEE
Cash and bank balances /e MIRTT & 359,908 95,674
Amounts due from subsidiaries FEUS B 8 A B Z FRIB 67,426 68,638
Loans to a subsidiary LT —RHREBARIZER - 101,603
Prepayments and other receivables TR FRIE K H At fE YR SR8 721 301
Total current assets RBEEEE 428,055 266,216
Total assets EEH#E 588,516 422,776
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES ErkEE
Share capital PR 20,333 20,333
Reserves (Note (a)) & (M it (a)) 202,693 199,329
Retained earnings R BT 165,842 182,635
Total equity EFAE 388,868 402,297
Non-current liability FRBEME
Convertible bonds A RS (E 25 191,065 =
5 Total non-current liability FRBEEAE 191,065 -
> Current liabilities B S &
= Amounts due to subsidiaries JEAST B B X B 5RIR 69 17,321
z Other payables and accrued liabilities — E b &~ 57008 K fe =1 & & 8,514 3,158
= Total current liabilities BB EAE 8,583 20,479
§ Total liabilities BEHE 199,648 20,479
%
= Total equity and liabilities BEXREE 588,516 422,776
Z
z The balance sheet of the Company was approved by the AARIBEABREEZeN —=T— NF
4 Board of Directors on 18 March 2019 and was signed on its — B+ N\BHLETHUNTESARAEEE -
Z behalf.
5 Liu Stefan Wong Yiu Kit Ernest

Ve EEA
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27 BALANCE SHEET AND RESERVES MOVEMENT OF 27 AA @ EESBEXREBEEE (&)
THE COMPANY (continued)

Note (a) — Reserve movement of the Company Mizt(@)— A=A r 2 EE S
Retained
Reserves earnings
fw1E REEF
HK$'000 HK$'000
TET FAET
As at 1 January 2017 R=—=F—tF—H—H 198,157 156,830
Profit for the year FERF - 25,480
Share option scheme FEfRfE T &I 1,154 314
Issuance of new ordinary shares 1T{E RS R 1T T L @ A%
upon exercise of share options 18 11
As at 31 December 2017 R—-=ZE—+t&E+=-—A=+—8 199,329 182,635
As at 1 January 2018 R=-ZF—-—N\EF—H—H 199,329 182,635
Loss for the year FEGE - (19,804)
Share option scheme g AR EET S 3,364 3,011
As at 31 December 2018 R-—-ZEE—N\E+=-BA=+—8 202,693 165,842
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28 DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT'S 28 EENSREEENHE
EMOLUMENTS

(a) Directors’ emoluments

(a) EEEE
AEEBHE—FT—N\FE_FT—+tF
+_A=+—HItFERAQRAES
S ENHE S o

Emoluments paid/payable to the directors of the
Company by the Group during the years ended 31
December 2018 and 2017.

For the year ended 31 December 2018 BE-Z—N\F+=-A=+—HLF

=
Employer's Estimated
contribution  Discretionary  value of other
Director ~ Salaryand  to pension bonuses  benefits (Note
Name of director BENZ fee  commission scheme (Note (b)) (@) Total

R
$ek  Exg#e RiPad  fhiEE
g2he iz HELER (Wit) W) @it

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000  HK$'000
TEn TEx T TEx Tz Tén
Executive Directors: Hi7ES.
Mr. Liu Stefan i 484 2970 18 2918 185 28244
Mr. Huang Songyuan (Appointed on mEREE(RZE-NF
21 May 2018) TAZT-REZf) 391 814 - 8,492 637 10,334
Mr. Wong Yiu Kit Emest (Appointed on ERGTEMZE-NE
21 May 2018) ER=+-REZf) 147 975 18 11,126 260 1252
Non-executive Directors: F4fEES:
£ Mr. Li Zni Da (Retired on 21 May 2018) FEEERZE-N\E
2 BAZT-BEf) a - - - - a
2 Mr. Stephen Gregory McCoy Stephen Gregory McCoy %&£ 120 - 31 324 185 660
; M. Li Jiong (Appointed on SHEE(MZF-N\E
z 21 May 2018) BA-t-REZE) 74 - - - - 74
é Mr. Xu Jiangjang (Appointed on HRRRE(WZF-N\E
% 21 May 2018) ER=+-REZf) %4 - - - - %4
% Independent Non-executive Directors: BUEHTES:
= Ms. Zhao Guixin BEERT 20 - - - 74 314
’2 Mr. Cornelis Jacobus Keyser Cornelis Jacobus Keyserst & 240 - - - 74 314
% Mr. Lin Wenhui WEL A 20 - - - 74 314
g
5 2,057 4,759 67 42,860 3,158 52,901
g
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28 DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S 28 EE=ERSRTEENMS (&)
EMOLUMENTS (continued)

(a) Directors’ emoluments (continued) (a) E=®= (&)
For the year ended 31 December 2017 BE-ZFT—+tHFT-A=1T—HIL*F
=

Estimated

Employer's value

contribution  Discretionary of other

Director ~ Salaryand  to pension bonuses benefits
Name of director EEHZ fee  commission scheme  (Note(b))  (Note(a)) Total

vyl

#ek EXRHE  BEEA EHEE
E£ 3 e HERR  (WEL)  WEe) it
HK$000  HK$OO0 ~ HK$000  HK$000  HKSOOD  HKS000
TR  TEAT  TER TR TExT  TER

Executive Directors: HIES:
Mr. Liu Stefan e 240 2,700 18 4,800 - 7,848
Mr. Ng Chee Hung Frederick REBEE (RZE—F

(Resigned on 17 November 2017) +—A+tH M) 211 1,301 16 736 - 2,264
Non-executive Directors: FHTES !
Mr. Li Zhi Da FEERE 120 - - - - 120
Mr. Stephen Gregory McCoy Stephen Gregory McCoy

it 120 - - - - 120

Independent Non-executive Directors: By FHTES

Ms. Zhao Guixin HEETT 240 - - - - 240
Mr. Cornelis Jacobus Keyser Cornelis Jacobus Keyser
pi:d 240 - - - - 240
Mr. Lin Wenhui 90t 240 - - - - 240
1,411 4,001 34 5,626 - 11,072
During the years ended 31 December 2018 and 2017, HE—_E—-N\EE_ZET—F+FE+_H4
no directors of the Group waived any emoluments and =t+—BLEHFE- *ﬁﬁ$%@§$ﬁﬁ( .
no emolument was paid to any of the directors as an E(EA[ENE - BANEE I EL ES :
inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as TEMES ER/IMAREEMNA <
compensation for loss of office. R B 1 B sk /e B R (S o Ly
[
Note (a): Other benefits are share options. Hizt(a) : EHhiE R AR Rk - D<§
&
Note (b): Certain executive directors of the Company are Kiztb) - ARElETHITEEZAMIG Eé
entitled to discretionary bonus payments which are TEAIRIE - BEZEIREFE =
determined with reference to the Group’s operating RS2 B AR L 24 B gﬁj
results, individual performance of the directors and B AKRIE RBBETIS ST ER %
relevant market statistics during the year. METE ;‘]%
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28 DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’'S 28 EERSHATHEHENINS (&)

EMOLUMENTS (continued)

(a) Directors’ emoluments (continued)

(a) EEBE (&)

2018 2017
—E-NF —ET—tF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET TFA&T
Emoluments paid or receivable in PEARKETES (TH2E
respect of a person’s services as /AETEX,%W}%’&ET) ) AR 755
. 2~ sk e Uk ) Bl &
a director, whether of the company
or its subsidiary undertaking 2,057 1,411
Emoluments paid or receivable in REFRHUER AR SEMNE
respect of director’s other services Qﬁ%a%ﬁi\{mﬁﬁ%ﬁ'ﬁaﬁ
) : . BYAENES
in connection with the management
of the affairs of the company or its
subsidiary undertaking 50,844 9,661
52,901 11,072
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28 DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S
EMOLUMENTS (continued)

28 EENRSAREEENME ()

(b) Five highest paid individuals (b) EEHEEFAL

The five highest paid employees during the years ended
31 December 2018 and 2017 included three and two
directors respectively, details of whose remuneration are

HE_FT-N\FE=
E—i—— EI IEEFE - E%Ei

= — A
S¥HEED

FIBE=ERkMEES  HEMEFE

set out in Note 28(a) above. Details of the remuneration B _ECHiEE28(a) © Eﬁ%#%%?%
of the remaining non-directors, highest paid employees HFEEREBEZ_ZT—N\EN_ZFT—

during the years ended 31 December 2018 and 2017 are

F+=A :+—EI¢¢F£E’\JEJ+I<£#I%

as follows: ;YT :
2018 2017
—E-NF —t&F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAET
Salary and commission Fe kfe 1,896 3,000

Employer’s contribution to EERAKRESEEIHK

pension scheme 35 126
Discretionary bonuses BB AL 3,954 2,525
5,885 5,651
No emoluments have been paid to these individuals as HE—_E—N\ER—_ZT—+F+_—H

an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as
compensation for loss of office during the years ended 31
December 2018 and 2017.

The emoluments of the highest-paid individuals of the

=t—HLFE- $EEE,4%F‘EUE§¥/\:|:SE
BN VB 7 DA S 52 181 5 h0 ARy B 22

Bk (E R BERL S o

REBZEREFHAL (BREFIN) KB

Group other than the directors fall within the following BRUTEE :
bands:
2018 2017
—E-N&F —t&F
Emolument bands e ;
— HK$0 to HK$1,000,000 — 078702 1,000,000/% 7T - = Z
— HK$1,000,001 to HK$ 1,500,000 — 1,000,001/ 7T & w0
1,500,000/ 7T - 2 T

— HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000

— 1,500,001/% 7T %

2,000,000/ 7T -

— HK$2,500,001 to HK$3,000,000

— 2,500,001 T E

3,000,0007% 7T 1

— HK$3,000,001 to HK$3,500,000

— 3,000,001 7T %

3,500,000/% 7T 1

E i R % < P A L PR )
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29 INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES 29 AMIBARIZRE

As at 31 December 2018, the Company had direct and indirect NR_E—N\F+_A=+—"H ' x2alRn
interests in the following subsidiaries: THMBAREAE BEE REZEER :
Particulars
of issued Equity
Place of incorporation Principal activities share capital/ interest
Company name and kind of legal entity and place of operation paid-in capital held
ERTRE/
NRER SRR EEERER TEXBREEHY HERAFHE HEORE
LXL Capital | Limited " British Virgin Islands, Investment holding, British Virgin Islands US$600 100%
Limited liability company (direct)
LXL Capital | Limited <7 RERLES ARAMARA REER RBRAES 600 T 100%
(B#)
KVB Kunlun New Zealand Limited New Zealand, Provision of leveraged foreign exchange NZ$34,466,551 100%
Limited liability company. and other trading services, New (indirect)
Zealand
KVB Kunlun New Zealand Limited AEH - BREEAR REERINER AR 5RE - 34,466,551 A1 AT 100%
gl (RI%)
KVB Kunlun Securities (NZ) Limited New Zealand, Provision of securities brokerage, NZ$1,000,000 100%
Limited liability company. New Zealand (indirect)
KVB Kunlun Securities (NZ) Limited 87 - BREFAA REEEFRLE  BAK 1,000,0004 B T 100%
(RIE)
KVB Kunlun Pty Limited Australia, Provision of leveraged foreign exchange AU$2,800,010 100%
Limited liability company. and other trading services, (indirect)
Australia
KVB Kunlun Pty Limited BN BREERA REERINMER AR SR - 2N 280001027 100%
(RIE)
KVB Kunlun International (HK) Limited ~ Hong Kong, Provision of management services, HK$100,000,000 100%
] Limited liability company. leveraged foreign exchange and (indirect)
E other trading services,
2 Hong Kong
5 ERER (BE)BRAT &% ARAELA REEEERS  BRANMER 100,000,000/ 7T 100%
2 EthR 5T - A (RI)
Z,
z LXL Capital II Limited " British Virgin Islands, Investment holding, British Virgin Islands US$400 100%
a Limited liability company. (indirect)
E LXL Capital Il Limited <7 RERAHE BREAAR RELER ZBRERES 400%TT 100%
5 (RIE)
2 LXL Capital IIl Limited e ! British Virgin Islands, Investment holding, British Virgin Islands US$300 100%
= Limited liability company (indiirect)
= LXL Capital Il Limited 47 EERLEE  BREMLH RERR EERLES 300£TT 100%
Z (RigE)
&
Z LXL Capital IV Limited " British Virgin Islands, Investment holding, British Virgin Islands US$100 100%
g Limited liability company (indirect)
o LXL Capital IV Limited %% KERAES BREAAF REER  ABRLHES 100% 7T 100%
&2 (RI#E)
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29 INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 29 RMIBARIZIRE (&)
Particulars
of issued Equity
Place of incorporation Principal activities share capital/ interest
Company name and kind of legal entity and place of operation paid-in capital held
BRTRE/
NRER EMAL SR EEERER TEEBREERE BRRAFE HENRE
LXL Capital VIII Limited "’ British Virgin Islands, Investment holding, British Virgin Islands US$100 100%
Limited liability company (indirect)
LXL Capital VIIl Limited #<7 EBRAES HREAAA REER ZBRLES 100%7 100%
(RI%)
LXL Capital V Limited " British Virgin Islands, Investment holding, British Virgin Islands US$100 100%
Limited liability company. (indirect)
LXL Capital V Limited #27 RBRIHES BREAAA REER RBRLES 100% 7T 100%
(%)
LXL Capital IX Limited " British Virgin Islands, Investment holding, British Virgin Islands US$100 100%
Limited liability company. (indirect)
LXL Capital IX Limited %7 KERAHE BREAAF REER  ZBRLES 100% 7T 100%
(%)
Yorkastle Capital Limited Hong Kong, Investment holding, Hong Kong HK$1,000,000 100%
Limited liability company (indirect)
BHEAERAA ] GIN RERK B8 1,000,000 T 100%
(i)
Zhuhai Henggin Kunlun Financial People’s Republic of China, Inactive, RMB50,000,000 100%
Exchange Limited Limited liability company People’s Republic of China (indirect)
KERERBHEMR AT REARAAE  AREAAH ERe% hEARLAE AE# 100%
AR 50,000,0007C (F%&)

Note 1: No audited financial statements have been prepared as these
companies are incorporated in a jurisdiction which does not
have any statutory audit requirements.

Hiatt1 - BRZEAR MM FE
EEYEETMEATERZRT

HT B AR RS BRI TSR -

i

J\AEAE

%

E i R % < P A L PR )
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30 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Parties are considered to be related if one party has the ability,
directly or indirectly, to control the other party or exercise
significant influence over the other party in making financial
and operating decisions. Parties are also considered to be
related if they are subject to common control.

On 29 January 2015, KVB Kunlun Holdings Limited, the then
controlling shareholder of the Company, and CITIC Securities
entered into a share purchase agreement (the “Share
Purchase Agreement”) pursuant to which CITIC Securities has
agreed to acquire 1,200,000 shares of the Company (the “Sale
Shares”) from the controlling shareholder (the “Transaction”).
In accordance with the Share Purchase Agreement, CITIC
Securities has nominated CITIC Securities Overseas to
purchase the full legal and beneficial ownership of the Sales
Share. Subsequent to the completion of the Transaction, KVB
Kunlun Holdings Limited ceased to be the fellow subsidiaries
and are now referred to as “other related parties” as they are
controlled by some common key management personnel.

Zhuhai Henggin Kunlun Financial Exchange Limited (“KVB
ZHHQ”"), entered into a membership agreement with TPME
during the year ended 31 December 2016. Pursuant to the
membership agreement, TPME provides a spot trading
and settlement platform for precious metals trading and the
relevant consulting, training and management services to
KVB ZHHQ. TPME is controlled by CITIC Limited, an entity
incorporated in Hong Kong which has significant influence
over CITIC Securities Overseas.

As disclosed in Note 13 to the consolidated financial
statements, as a result of the Suspension, the trading right of
TPME was fully impaired as at 31 December 2017.

For the outstanding balance due from or to related parties, net
amount is presented when the Group has a legally enforceable
right to set off the recognised amounts, and intends to settle on
a net basis.

30 EBARS

i —J7 B BE ) B MEIE S = — T A&
MBEREERREH S —HEEERTE
7 BB R R - 7 FHARIESIE
DIVER SR

RZFE—RF—HZ+1B  XAFEK
7% % BEKVB Kunlun Holdings Limited 2
FREREAFE] SR B B e (IR BB B 17
&) Bt PIEEFRE RIERR R
f51,200,0000& A"~ B & 1 ([EHE IR 9 1)
(IZx5%1E]) - BREROHEERZ  $17E
AEAF IR B EREHF B INE B HERMD A
EEEEREREEE - RTKRH1E
KVB Kunlun Holdings Limited T~ /& [/ %
MEAR - IRBAIEMEART] - REA
BERETHREETEABEZES o

BE_Z—RE+_A=+—HILFEH
B WEREERIEBIZTLERA
A(EMREREDEXZECERS
FRRISL & Bl - IRIBE Bina - K2R
TEBRIMRERWERZERHE—FEES
BRER S REEFE - ARBREHET
Bl R EERS - RKEETBXZFHT
B ERNDBRABES - ZATRER
A - R EIEFBINERERTE
e

MANAER S M IS MR M 13 HE - ANY
BEE REETBRXIAZXZEER
—E—+F+ZA=1+—HE2EREME -

T UK PR BREE T R BB AR S
AREBERG R RFIRIHC A
W FREEEHEB 2 FEFE -
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30 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued) 30 BEBARB (&)

(a) The Group had the following material transactions with its (a) AEBERFARNEEBEBRTREETNE
related entities during the year: ARXSWT :
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—tF
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
Hat FTER FHET
Transactions with related parties BELX5
Management fee expenses for the ﬁﬂiﬁﬂiﬁﬁﬁ%%
provision of financial system services %%g%;%;ggﬁ
L - IEXEBIRE ERA
MmM@m%ﬂmmwmmpf S B EE -
enterprise resources planning system
support to: \ -
— the then immediate holding company ~ — & B EZZRA A (i) 696 664
Amount paid for the provision of AT 2RI (R e
software development and gﬁéﬁﬁwﬁfﬁ?
mai.ntetnan?]e serr;/icnis, rI]'; irr:rg;t;:ztr:JCr: é.% i i%%ﬁ EEVI‘E‘% § }%é
project management and mat AT 4 AR 75 8O FRIA -
services and IT risk assessment
services to: \
—an other related party —E bR (ii) 32,880 25,757
Referral fee paid for introducing and Fﬂ%;@ﬁjiﬁfl\iﬂ’ N
referring prospective clients to the NBEEF TAKER
. ENE:
Group: \
- an other related party —H iRy (iii) - 2,588
Amount paid for the provision of FIA T R Al ST R R
software maintenance, upgrade Zﬁ;é * FHBR BRI IR
: R ZIE ¢
and support services from: }
— an other related party — Hfth B 75 (iv) 354 353
Amount received for the sharing of FEATH ’ﬁﬁj WERE A A
the offices to: émﬂﬁ:\
— other related parties —H b REEE (v) 1,267 3,143
Amount paid for the sharing of A TR HEARA S
the offices to: EHHIA pil
— other related parties —E fh B R 7 (v) 2,741 289 =

S

E i R % < P A L PR )
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30 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

30 BB RS (42)

(a) (continued) (a (&)
2018 2017
—E-N\E —E—tF
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
Mt st FTEx FHExT
Cash dealing income for the provision RATARRERERS
of cash dealing services: AR 75 4 B ) 3R 8 32 5 W
A
— other related parties — H b A Bt (vi) 3,309 1,136
Amounts due from related parties FE e B Bt 75 B9 K OB
Balances with related parties: B H fth R B 77 D AS R
- TPME —REETBRHM (vii) 569 4,582
Notes: Bt

(M)

(i)

(ifi)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

Management fee expenses are charged for the provision
of financial system services which include the provision
of enterprise resources planning system support with
reference to the costs incurred.

Amounts are paid for the provision of software development
and maintenance services, IT infrastructure project
management and maintenance services and IT risk
assessment services.

Referral fees are paid for introducing and referring
prospective clients to the Group in accordance with the fee
agreement.

Amounts are paid for the provision of software
maintenance, upgrade and support services based on the
terms on agreement signed between parties.

Amounts are received and paid for the sharing of the
offices based on the agreement signed between parties.

Cash dealing income is recognised when cash dealing
transactions have been completed by market makers with
reference to prevailing exchange rate.

()

(if)

(iii)

(iv)

(V)

(vi)

EEER BRI ES R
EREERHEEEREERMAX
BRSEELNE M mUER

BUER LB R B MR TS - BRARL
REETAE BTN EERY A
b R B 1 £k AR 795 0 2 A MO SRR

RIBREHHERENERENEZS T
REBMZSOENE -

L HR G B 4 T AR S SR RS
i 32 A5 B9 R IR TH AR IR AT £ % 75 P 2%
Rl 2 MR IR T EE R ©

RIBFTOR TR Z R LB R
= 1 U B AN KR

REXHWARTHHERTERNRE
R G2 EBRITIERER -
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RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)
(a) (continued)

Notes: (continued)

(vii) Deposits placed are unsecured and non-interest bearing.

(b) Key management includes directors (executive & non-
executive) and the remuneration of the key management
personnel of the Group are disclosed in Note 28:

COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES
Operating lease commitments

The Group leases offices under non-cancellable operating
lease commitments existing at the year end. Leases were
negotiated for an average term of 3 to 5 years.

The Group is required to give six-month notice for termination
of these leases.

30 BB RS (42)

31

(a (&)
Btet - (&
(vii) FRIfERZ FRAEER R RS -
(b) XEEFEZEETEE (BERITRIERN
TER)REEZEEABNFHF N
FTo8H FE ©
AERFREE
ReEHERE

AREBRBERSFRCENTAIBEHLE
MEAREHERAE  -HERFH=51
FhER -

AEBAZHNEABMT AR IEZER
= .

2018 2017

—E-N\F —E—tF

HK$°000 HK$’000

THER FHATT

Within one year —F R 14,182 10,826
One to five years —ERF 23,173 8,357
37,355 19,183

APPROVAL OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The financial statements were approved and authorised for
issue by the Board of Directors on 18 March 2019.

32 #HLEMEIEHRE

AU BHREBEFER _FT—NF
T\ B #HEfE R RT3 o

A

i

J\AEAE

x

E i R % < P A L PR )
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A summary of the results and of the financial position of KVB L T&HIIEmBEEScHEBEGR AR ([AA
Kunlun Financial Group Limited (the “Company”, together with & - ERERB AT SGBIAER ) BE R
its subsidiaries, the “Group”) for the last five financial years, as A KFE 2 2 & R EA AR - JhFEsEE
extracted from the published audited financial statements, is set out & FI|2$ & 4% > BA 5 R 35 ©

below.
For the year ended 31 December
BEt-A=1+—-HLEE
2018 2017 2016 2015 2014
—B-NFE —T—+F TR F —T-LF —T-0OF
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHET FAET FHL FET FETT
Total income WAL 471,111 514,932 362,607 406,811 188,634
Profit before tax B H4 B 4 A 51,757 35,019 54,243 128,149 47,697
Profit for the year F A5 Fl 34,249 27,354 38,688 94,709 35,081
Total comprehensive income FRE2EN =B
for the year 19,144 31,212 40,716 83,328 29,785
As at 31 December
R+=A=t+—H
2018 2017 2016 2015 2014
—E-N\F —Z—+F ZT—RFE —T-HF —T—NF
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FHET FHET FET FHET
Total assets BEHLE 1,139,242 1,400,785 1,082,158 1,068,776 626,510
Total liabilities BEESE (567,536) (853,558) (567,641) (603,366) (233,787)
571,706 547,227 514,517 465,410 392,723
Total equity and liabilities BEZREE 1,139,242 1,400,785 1,082,158 1,068,776 626,510
Net current assets MENEEFE 712,811 505,056 475,645 447,080 379,837
Total assets less current BEERMDEE
liabilities 767,819 550,638 515,368 466,049 392,929

KVB KUNLUN FINANCIAL GROUP LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT
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( Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability )
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